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CORPORATE INFORMATION
~EEH
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Mr. OR Chun Wai Dennis
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Mr. BAI Tao
Mr. OR Chun Wai Dennis

REGISTERED OFFICE

Cricket Square
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681
Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS OF THE GROUP’S
SUBSIDIARIES IN CHINA

Unit Nos. 2201 to 2208

Level 22, South Tower, Poly International Plaza
No. 1 Pazhou Avenue East, Haizhu District
Guangzhou City, The PRC

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG
CHINA

Room 5706, 57th Floor, Central Plaza
18 Harbour Road
Wanchai, Hong Kong, China

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER
OFFICE

SMP Partners (Cayman) Limited

Royal Bank House, 3rd Floor, 24 Shedden Road
P.O. Box 1586, Grand Cayman KY1-1110
Cayman Islands

HONG KONG CHINA BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Union Registrars Limited

Suites 3301-04, 33/F

Two Chinachem Exchange Square
338 King’s Road

North Point, Hong Kong, China
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
DEER

AUDITOR

Moore CPA Limited

Certified Public Accountants and Registered Public Interest
Entity Auditor

801-806 Silvercord, Tower 1, 30 Canton Road, Tsimshatsui
Kowloon, Hong Kong China

LEGAL ADVISOR

Jingtian & Gongcheng LLP

Suites 3203-3207, 32/F, Edinburgh Tower

The Landmark, 15 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong China
PRINCIPAL FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS
China Huarong Asset Management Co., Ltd.
China Great Wall Asset Management Co., Ltd.
Jinshang Bank Co., Ltd.

Shanxi Bank Co., Ltd.

Hua Xia Bank Co., Ltd.

STOCK CODE

00866

WEBSITE

http://www.ginfagroup.com
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MBRE

Summary of the Group’s results, assets, liabilities and equity AEERBERETBFEENESL  BE AEF
for the last five financial years is set out below: NESFEENT :

RESULTS RE

For the year ended 31 December
BEt+t-A=+—HLEE
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
—E-=F —ZT—-_— — B —F —E-FTF —FT-NHF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETT ARBTT ARETT ARKBTT

Turnover ] 3,449,182 3,794,039 4,559,180 2,247,363 2,799,520
Gross profit EF 878,020 1,273,283 1,941,119 355,315 406,558
Operating profit/(loss) — #&&£& %5,/ (E518) 523,859 1,020,470 4,330,857 (3,946,158) 287,071
Profit/(loss) before BRE RIS F,(B518)

taxation 352,137 766,781 3,970,096  (4,312,998) (4,506)
Income tax (expense)/ FiigH (F%), E%

credit (160,110)  (276,745)  (782,186) 876,128 85,229
Profit/(loss) for the year & R FI,/ (E518) 192,027 490,036 3,187,910  (3,436,870) 80,723

Profit/(loss) attributable FEAEEF,/ (&)
to:
Equity shareholders RAGERFEA

of the Company 200,346 456,543 2,793,546  (2,901,499) 81,421
Non-controlling R
interests (8,319) 33,493 394,364 (535,371) (698)
192,027 490,036 3,187,970  (3,436,870) 80,723
Coal handling and B ERE5E
trading volume (Fm)
(’000 tonnes) 5,187 4,528 6,115 5,964 7,602
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND EQUITY EE  AERER

As at 31 December

R+=-—A=+—H
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
—E-=F T —ET-—F —ZET-FF —T-NF

RMB'000  RMB'O00O  RMB'000  RMB'0O00  RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTT ARBETIT ARBTE ARBTT

Total assets BERAE 7,857,573 7,850,531 7,896,513 5,297,925 9,354,633
Total liabilities BERE 7,538,655 7,037,320 (7,579,998) (8,194,009) (8,789,369)
Total equity/(deficit) i (B4l 858 318,918 813,211 316,515  (2,896,084) 565,264

ZE-=FF# ANNUAL REPORT 2023 5



CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ETEHES

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Directors” or the
“Board”) of China Qinfa Group Limited (the “Company”),
| hereby present the annual result of the Company and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2023.

| am pleased to announce that after the Group’s acquisition of
the SDE project in Indonesia in 2021, with the rich experience
and strength accumulated over the years, we have completed
the construction and put into operation the first large-scale
modern underground coal mine in Indonesia. We invested
capital and brought advanced underground mining equipment,
technology and management experience to Indonesia. While
developing the Group’s overseas business, we have promoted
the mining technology upgrade of Indonesia’s coal industry
and helped it give full play to its natural resource advantages.
Among which, SDE Mine No. 1 has started trial operation in the
fourth quarter of 2023. The opening ceremony was attended
by business people from Indonesia and China to witness the
historic moment of the Group’s entry into the overseas coal
industry. SDE Mine No. 1 has officially entered the production
stage from the construction stage, confirming the joint efforts
of the Group and the Indonesian authorities. | would like
to thank the Indonesian authorities once again for actively
providing a stable, fair and friendly business environment for
foreign-invested enterprises, allowing the Group to truly enter,
integrate and take root in Indonesia.

The Group firmly believes that a company’s long-term success
cannot be achieved only by focusing on the Group’s profits.
“Take from the society and give back to the society” is the
Group’s development belief. As | mentioned in the opening
ceremony of SDE Mine No. 1, “Only when we land can we take
root.” We will take root in Indonesian, build local communities,
promote local employment, and thereby improve the quality of
life of local residents. The Group has always regarded talents
as the most important asset of the Company. Committed to
talents cultivation and development, the Group provides on-
the-job training programs for local employees, striving to train
them to become professional technicians and prepare them
for their long-term development in the Group. It also provides a
high-quality talent reserve for the Indonesian coal industry.

6 CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HEZZEEHFRAR
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2023 is undoubtedly a remarkable year for the Group. It is
also the tenth year of the establishment of the comprehensive
strategic partnership between China and Indonesia. Over the
past ten years, under the “21st Century Maritime Silk Road”
initiative, the scale of bilateral trade has continued to expand,
promoting the deepened economic and trade development
and personnel exchanges and cooperation between China and
Indonesia. The Group cherishes the current excellent situation
of bilateral relations. Looking into the future, this Maritime Silk
Road is expected to be further widen, providing unlimited
development potential.

Looking back over the past few decades, the Group has
experienced many challenges. When faced with various
difficulties, the Group has been united as one to overcome
them. Finally, | would like to take this opportunity to extend my
sincere gratitude to the Board and all our staff. | would like
to thank everyone for years of hard work and perseverance
which have made China Qinfa Group what it is today, a
coal enterprise rooted in China and moving towards the
international market.

Xu Da
Chairman
28 March 2024
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWED T

The Group is a leading non-state owned thermal coal supplier
in China, and it operates an integrated coal supply chain,
including coal mining, purchase and sales, filtering, storage
and blending of coal in the PRC and Indonesia. During the
year ended 31 December 2023, the Group continued to focus
on these business activities and expanded its integrated coal
supply chain to the overseas.

BUSINESS REVIEW

As the COVID-19 pandemic that has lasted for three years has
subsided, China’s economy and society have fully returned to
normal operations since the first quarter of 2023. However, it
will still take longer for domestic productivity to fully return to
the growth trajectory before the pandemic.

Accelerating the release of high-quality production capacity
to ensure the supply of thermal coal has remained the central
tenet of the coal industry. According to the National Bureau
of Statistics, raw coal output in 2023 was 4.66 billion tonnes,
representing a year-on-year increase of 2.9%. Imported coal
was 470 million tonnes, representing a year-on-year increase
of 61.8%. From the supply side, new domestic production
capacity has continued to be released in 2023. At the same
time, due to factors such as China’s opening up of Australian
coal imports and Russia’s coal trade moving eastward due to
Western sanctions, the total amount of imported coal this year
has surged as compared with last year, and the coal inventory
levels has been at a high level. From the demand side, the
macroeconomy has been in an adjustment stage, and the
demand for thermal coal from domestic downstream industries
has yet to be fully released. Domestic thermal coal has
maintained the fundamentals of broad supply and demand.

Overall, the coal market price in 2023 has showed a trend of
first falling and then rising. Under the policy of improving the
coal market price formation mechanism promoted by China,
coal prices have fallen from the highs in 2022. However, coal
prices have not fluctuated significantly and have stabilized
within a reasonable range.

8 CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HEZZEEHFRAR
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Renewal of SDE Coal Mine’ Mining Business License

The Indonesian coal mine project has been one of the Group’s
major investment projects in recent years. On 25 May 2021,
the Group acquired 70% equity interests in PT Sumber Daya
Energi ("SDE”), which held the coal mining operation license
of the Sungai Durian coal mine in Kotabaru, South Kalimantan
Province, Indonesia. After several years of active preparations,
SDE has begun operating coal mining trials in Indonesia in the
fourth quarter of 2023.

In 2023, SDE has successfully renewed its mining business
license in respect of a coal mine located in Sungai Durian,
Kotabaru, South Kalimantan, Indonesia. The renewed mining
business license will expire on 14 May 2034. The Group further
acquired 5% equity interest of SDE from a third party during
the year. As at 31 December 2023, the Group holds 75%
equity interests in SDE.

Coal Excavator Procurement and Coal Sales Agreement

On 5 January 2023, Qingdao Qinfa Energy Ltd. (“Qinfa
Energy”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into a coal sales agreement with Zhengzhou Coal
Mining Machinery Group Company Limited (“ZMJ”) for a term
starting from 5 January 2023 to 31 December 2023, pursuant to
which, Qinfa Energy would sell 200,000 tonnes of coal to ZMJ
per year, which would then be resold by ZMJ to two existing
customers of the Company. The sole purpose of the above
arrangement is to ensure that under the procurement contract
dated 28 December 2022 entered into between Qingdao Qinfa
Materials Supply Limited (“Qingdao Qinfa”), another indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and ZMJ in respect
of the procurement of equipment, Qingdao Qinfa will fulfil its
payment obligations to ZMJ.

EEEN WD

SDER & < SRIBK L 7 vl 2 E A

HNEREBERAEERFREARETEEHZ
— e ZE-_—FAA-+HA AEEREPT
Sumber Daya Energi ([SDEJ)70%3% % + SDE#F
BHEMME S & T EEHSungai Durian
BB 2 RIS E TR - KBRFNRBRERE -
SDEER=ZZE==FFNEMARRINEEITHERE
A -

SDEERZZ-=FRNBHEMNENEEME
2 /4 FTE & &Sungai Durianﬂ]ﬁﬂgﬂﬁﬁéﬁ%m
BHAIE c BHENRBELHFIEBERZ
MERATHARE - AEERFRE— %
FiE— S W SDERS5 %A AE © #_?_—¢+_
A=4+—H  N&EE#ESDERT5%AXHE -

ERMREREREEH S

RZZBE-=%—ARHB AQTHEEZEMNBEA
RIBEERERRARAR ([FEEFR])BEINE
TR E B (D AR AR (TE R ]) 5T FHi /A
TE - ARHBE-_E-_=F+_-_A=+
—BIEMEREERZE - B R RE
HREEFFOAEMMEKR  BFHEEKEE
FTREAARNBEER, - LT —B &
AERARB DS HEL2ENBARETEREY
BHEERAR(EERE)) HAEMERRER
BRI ARA S _Z_F+ A=+ \HHK
BANET  SELRRHEHERABABITNNRE
ﬁ%o
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEEN WD

As of 31 December 2023, the Group owned five coal mines RZZE_=F+-_A=+—H AEEEHH%
in China and one coal mine in Indonesia. The table sets forth A REEXEBILEENEHE —BERE - TREIE
certain information about these coal mines. S HENETER -

10

Production
Location Ownership Site area capacity Operation status
b B BEESHL [k EERN EERR
(million
(sg. km) tonnes)
Ca/N::)) (A&Em)
Huameiao Energy Shuozhou Shanxi 80% 4.25 1.5 Under operation
— Xingtao Coal
FEXRER - HEKE  LLEEEAM giE
Huameiao Energy Shuozhou Shanxi 80% 2.43 0.9 Under operation
— Fengxi Coal
EXRER - BAEKEE  ILFEHAM EER
Huameiao Energy Shuozhou Shanxi 80% 2.88 0.9 Under operation
— Chongsheng Coal
EXRER -SAKE WEHM EEH
Shenda Energy Xinzhou Shanxi 100% 4.01 0.9 Under development
- Xinglong Coal (Temporarily
suspended)
HIERIR - BFE L F T FEH (EE)
Shenda Energy Xinzhou Shanxi 100% 1.32 0.9 Under development
—Hongyuan Coal (Temporarily
suspended)
RERLIR - R L FE DTN FEEH (1)
Sumber Daya Energi Kalimantan, 75% 185 N/A  Trial operation
— SDE Coal Indonesia
Sumber Daya Energi EfE TEA RITRE
— SDEME % MEE

CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HEZZEEHFRAR



COAL CHARACTERISTICS

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Characteristics and typical commercial coal quality of the

EEEWED

AEBHELREMEENREEROFE AR

commercial coal produced by the Group’s operating mines are MBS 0T -
as follows:
Huameiao Huameiao Huameiao Shenda Shenda Sumber
Energy - Energy - Energy - Energy - Energy - Daya
Xingtao Fengxi  Chongsheng Xinglong Hongyuan Energi -
Coal Coal Coal Coal Coal SDE Coal
EXR EXR ExXR Sumber
B - 2R - BR-  ®HEgR-  ®%E#R - DayaEnergi
Coal Quality Characteristic RERE EREE BEEE RARE HERX RERE  -SDERX
Coal Seam R 4,8,9,10, 11 11 9.2, 11 2,5 2,56 B
Moisture (%) KD (%) 7-10 8-12 8-12 85 85 6.8-7.7
Ash (db, %) KA (db %) 20-28 20-28 20-28 2145 30-72 33.7-35.1
Sulfur (db, %) EHE(db %) 14-19 1.2-16 16-25 152 145 0.6-1
Calorific Value (average, BEAETY -
kcallkg, net, ar) F+/F%
F{E - ar) 46505200  4500-5,100  4,600-5,150 4,838 4187 4,450-4,500

—Z_—=#%3 ANNUAL REPORT 2023 11



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEE WD

OPERATING DATA BELEHE
Reserves and Resources RERER=E
Huameiao Huameiao Huameiao Shenda Shenda ~ Sumber
Energy-  Energy-  Energy—  Energy—  Energy - Daya
Xingtao Fengxi Chongsheng Xinglong Hongyuan  Energi-
Coal Coal Coal Coal Coal  SDE Coal Total
Sumber
EXR  EXR  EXR HE Bz Daya
#R- MR- #F-  ®R-  #8F- Energi-
EEEX BERE AKX REHEX ZEEX SDEAX st
Reserves #E
Reserves as of 1 January BE-Z-=%-H-H
2023 (M) W2 (BEN) 12.41 6.87 443 13,50 1046 308.71 356.38
Less: Total coal reserve depleted  J5 - FRIRIEIEE HHE
from mining operation for MBEREE
the year (M) (BEW) (2.88) (2.89) (1.74) = = (0.76) (8.27)
Reserves as of 31 December BE-Z-=F+-f
2023 (Mt) =t-BNRE(EER) 9.53 3.98 269 13.50 10.46 307.95 348.11
- Proven reserves -BRBREE 551 = = = = 870 14.21
- Probable reserves - fhEHEE 4.02 398 2.69 1350 10.46 299.25 333.90
Resources (measured + indicated) &7 & (B +12 % 19)
Resources as of 1 January BE-E-=F-A-H
2023 (M) HERE(REM) 4483 8.12 988 35.08 20.87 589.22 708.00
Less: Total coal reserve depleted & : FRIRIBIEEER
from mining operation for MBREREE
the year (Mt) (BEm) (2.88) (2.89) (1.74) = = (0.31) (7.82)
Resources (measured + indicated) HZE-Z-=%£+=f
as of 31 December 2023 (Mt) =t-HNERE (F%
+EH) (BEE) 41.95 5.23 8.14 35.08 20.87 588.91 700.18
Resources (inferred) as of HE-E-=F+ZH
31 December 2023 (M) =t-AHEREH#ER)
(REW) 5.82 140 3.97 10.75 2.58 3794 403.92
Note: B 5

The Group engaged an independent mineral industry consultant to estimate the

FAEEBRFT-HBUBEEBEEAT - RETHJIORCS BIfhET42

PR SAEERSDERE HIEBH AT

total coal reserves and resources in accordance with the JORC Code of: BRRFERERE :
(i) the Fengxi Coal, Chongsheng Coal and SDE Coal with cut-off date of 31 (i)

December 2023; =®+=ZA=+—8:
(i) the Xingtao Coal, Xinglong Coal and Hongyuan Coal with cut-off date of (i)

31 December 2020.

12 CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HE&=R&EBER A
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The following table sets forth the full-year production figures at

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

the abovementioned mines for the years indicated:

TRIRE

=R EEE

WRBRAREEN R FER RS -

Year ended 31 December
BE+=-A=+—HLEE

2023 2022

—E-=F —E-—
’000 tonnes '000 tonnes
Raw coal production volume RREEE Fmg T g
Huameiao Energy — Xingtao Coall ERRELIR - EFEE 2,878 1,837
Huameiao Energy — Fengxi Coal EXHEALR - BEREE 2,894 2,259
Huameiao Energy — Chongsheng Coal EXHEER - SAEE 1,740 2,870
Sumber Daya Energi — SDE Coal Sumber Daya Energi — SDEf{ 2 139 -
Total 45 7,651 6,966

Year ended 31 December

BZE+-ZA=+—-HLEE
2023 2022

—EB-= —EF-—
’000 tonnes '000 tonnes
Commercial coal production volume (Note) &3 & & 2 (Ff &%) F W T Ha
Huameiao Energy — Xingtao Coall EXHELR - EfPRE 1,870 1,188
Huameiao Energy — Fengxi Coal EREEY ch/ %@ﬁ% 1,881 1,468
Huameiao Energy — Chongsheng Coal EXRER - SARE 1,131 1,866
Total #Et 4,882 4,522

Note:  According to the competent person’s report as at cut-off date of 31 LiEss
December 2021, the historical operation of the Xingtao Coal achieved
an average of 65% of mixed marketable raw coal yield. According to the
competent person’s report as at cut-off date of 31 December 2023, the
historical operation of the Fengxi Coal and Chongsheng Coal achieved

an average of 65% of mixed marketable raw coal yield.

HEEBALTRE
HERSRREA A HERER ©

RBEBILERAPR-E - —F+-A=+—HHAERA
THE  BEREENRTEEETYE
RRESE - BREBLAHR T _=F+_"A=+—H

BEEEREFAEENBEEET

§'J65%E’] A=) Tiﬁ
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEE WD

Exploration, Mining and Development Expenses BiE - HEREREREA

The Group’s exploration, mining and development expenses

consist of the following amounts:

AEENBHE  FRMAZERRRATERE

Year ended 31 December

BE+-—A=+—HLEE

2023 2022

—E-= =
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ET T AREET T
Materials and consumables Yk KBRS 210,661 115,022
Staff cost BT 406,239 455,921
Utilities UNZE -5 47,635 59,951
Overhead and others B R AR R EoAth 1,038,803 1,152,120
Evaluation fee EE 113 1,054
Total et 1,703,451 1,784,068

FINANCIAL REVIEW B 7% B R
Revenue Y &=
Year ended 31 December
BE+=-A=1+—HLEE
2023 2022
—E-=F —E-CF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T AREFIT
Coal business IR ETS 3,449,182 3,794,039
3,449,182 3,794,039

14 CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HE&=R&EBER A



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENWED N

Coal business R

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—HLEE

2023 2022
—E-=F —_ET-—
’000 tonnes '000 tonnes
T g Fug
Coal Handling and Trading Volume of Coal BREBHOEREERESE
Business 5,187 4528

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the volume of the &HZ_ZE_=F+_A=+—HILFE KA&H
Group’s coal handling and trading increased as compared MWEKEEREFER S -_FHFTIEM - &
with 2022. The coal selling prices during the year ended 31 ZE-ZE-=F+-"F=+—HIEE  EREE
December 2023 were in range between RMB330 per tonne T F&BEA R¥EI30 Tt =M ARKM41TT2ME -
and RMB941 per tonne, as compared to the coal selling prices M —Z — —FHE XK ESEEIN FEHEARES528
between RMB528 per tonne and RMB1,295 per tonne in 2022,  JTTESWIA R 1,2057T 2 o FHEREBEHRF

Average coal selling price decreased during the year. R e
The average coal selling price and the average monthly coal HE T -+ _-_A=-+—HBHI=-AFES
handling and trading volume for each of the three years ended F * TR KR ECEAFTHEARREEREFHE
31 December 2023 are set forth in the table below: HINR T -
Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=+—-HILEE
2023 2022 2021
—E-=H§ —E_— —E-—%F
Average coal selling price R RERE
(RMB per tonne) (BWEARMIT) 665 838 736

Average monthly coal handling and F#& AEREE K&
trading volume ('000 tonnes) B 5= (FHE) 432 377 510

—Z_—=#%3 ANNUAL REPORT 2023 15



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEE WD

The Group sells blended coal which is sourced solely from the
PRC domestic markets to customers, including power plants
and coal traders. Most of the Group’s customers are located in
the coastal regions of China. Power plants purchase coal for
use in the combustion processes to produce steam for power
and heat. The following table sets forth information regarding
the Group’s revenue from coal business by industry segment
during the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022:

RNEBREE G BB A TSR R R ERE
BREETERESHREEREIBERFE - A£EBE
FZBUNP RS - B2EREEEXAR
WRIERIE  EARARREERER - TRH
NAEBRBE TS -_=ZFR_T-_—_F+_A
=+ BUFERTESIE D HE R ERE K
HER

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—HLEE

2023 2022
—E-=F —E-=

Percentage Percentage

Revenue of revenue Revenue of revenue

gt E [y g

g B Wz B

RMB’000 % of total RMB’000 % of total

AR®BT T (%) ARETT (%)

Power plants BHER 347,342 10.1 850,414 22.4

Coal traders HIRE S 3,101,840 89.9 2,943,625 77.6

Total 4t 3,449,182 100 3,794,039 100

Cost of Sales HERA

Cost of sales of the Group in 2023 amounted to RMB2,571.2
million compared with RMB2,520.8 million in 2022. The cost
remained largely constant.

16 CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HE&=R&EBER A
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The table below set forth the cost of sales of the coal business
segment:

EEEWED

TREFIREREE D FFOHERA -

Year ended 31 December

BE+=-A=1+—HLEE
2023 2022

—EC-=HF —E-—
RMB million RMB million
ARBBET ARERET

Cost of coal transportation R E B B R 868 737
Cost of self-produced coal B ER R A 1,703 1,784
Materials, fuel, power FxE - AR Eh 258 175
Staff costs BT A 406 456
Depreciation and amortisation P8 R 5 898 958
Others Hth 141 195
Total cost of sales of coal business segment B ¥ 755 ZBAV A $E E A 2,571 2,521

The Group produced coal mainly from Shanxi province in the
PRC. The following table sets forth information regarding the
Group’s origins of coal based on sales volume and revenue in
20283 and 2022:

REBTEEPEILAELEERK - TRHIA
BAEER _ZE_=FR T -__FiREE kK
HoMEZ ERRRER

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—HLFE

2023 2022
—EB-=F —_F-—
Sales Sales

volume Revenue volume Revenue
fHE W &= HE e
’000 tonnes RMB’000 ’000 tonnes RMB’000
Origins of coal 5 5 SRR T AR¥Tx Fug AR®ETFIT
China s 5,187 3,449,182 4,528 3,794,039

The Group has stable coal production and has established
stable cooperative relationships with its key PRC domestic
customers.

AEBBRERENRREERRE T EPEBER
BEFEYTREAERE -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEEN WD

Gross Profit

The Group’s gross profit margin was 25.5% during the year
ended 31 December 2023 as compared with gross profit
margin of 33.6% during the year ended 31 December 2022.
Gross profit margin decreased mainly due to the decrease in
average selling price of thermal coal.

Other Income, Gains and Losses

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group’s other
income, gains and losses amounted to a net gain of RMB2.0
million, representing a decrease of approximately RMB83.5
million, as compared with a net gain of RMB85.5 million in
2022. The decrease in other income, gains and losses in 2023
was mainly due to a decrease in net gain on the substantial/
non-substantial modification of borrowing from approximately
RMB42.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2022 to
net loss on non-substantial/non-substantial modification of
borrowing approximately RMB14.5 million for the year ended
31 December 2023.

Distribution Expenses

Distribution expenses increased by 5.1% to RMB2.2 million for
the year ended 31 December 2023, as compared with RMB2.1
million in 2022. The distribution expenses remained constant
although trading volume increased.

Administrative Expenses

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group’s
administrative expenses amounted to RMB297.6 million,
representing a decrease of 2.5%, as compared with RMB305.3
million in 2022. The administrative expenses remained largely
constant.

Other Expenses

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group’s other
expenses amounted to RMB11.2 million, representing a
decrease of 59.9%, as compared with RMB27.9 million in 2022.
The decrease in other expenses was mainly due to decrease
in penalty.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Net Finance Costs

Net finance costs of the Group in 2023 amounted to RMB171.7
million, representing a decrease of 32.3%, as compared with
RMB253.7 million in 2022. The decrease was mainly due to
repayment in borrowings.

Profit attributable to the equity shareholders of the
Company

Profit attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2023 was RMB200.3 million,
as compared with profit attributable to the equity shareholders
of the Company of RMB456.5 million in 2022. The decrease in
profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company was
mainly attributable to the net effect of:

(i) the decrease in the average coal selling price in 2023
as compared with 2022;

(ii) the increase in the coal handling and trading volume in
2023 as compared with 2022; and

(iii) impairment losses on property, plant and equipment
and coal mining rights due to decrease in average coal
selling price.

NET CURRENT LIABILITIES AND CURRENT RATIO

As of 31 December 2023, the Group had net current liabilities
of RMB3,324.8 million, compared with RMB4,155.8 million
as of 31 December 2022. The Group’s current ratio as of
31 December 2023 was 0.36, compared with 0.33 as of 31
December 2022. The current liabilities and current ratio was
improved because repayment schedule of certain borrowing is
renewed.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE AND COMMITMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group incurred an
aggregate capital expenditure of RMB1,136.3 million (2022:
RMB780.3 million) mainly related to the purchase of plant
and equipment. Capital commitments contracted for but not
incurred by the Group as of 31 December 2023 amounted to
RMB26.2 million (2022: RMB264.4 million), which were mainly
related to the purchase of plant and equipment.

EEEN WD

B AN R R

AEBR_ZBE-_=ZFHNHBERAFELESA
E“R%W?L?OO,OOOE TR IT - —FARK
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QRS FE ARMLERR
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEE WD

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

There has been no material change in the capital structure
of the Company during the year. The capital of the Group
companies are mainly the ordinary shares and perpetual
subordinated convertible securities (“PSCS”).

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND CAPITAL
STRUCTURE

The Group adopts stringent financial management policies
and strives to maintain a healthy financial condition. The Group
funds its business operations and general working capital by
internally generated financial resources and bank and other
borrowings. As at 31 December 2023, the Group recorded net
current liabilities of RMB3,324.8 million (2022: RMB4,155.8
million).

The Group has taken initiative to enhance the financial
flexibility by diversifying the funding bases and obtain medium
term loans to replace short term loans. The Group is currently
negotiating with financial institutions to renew and extend
bank borrowings and consider ways to improve the Group’s
working capital. As of 31 December 2023, the cash and cash
equivalents of the Group amounted to RMB302.7 million (2022:
RMB856.6 million) because of the repayment of loan at the end
of 20283.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As at 31 December 2023, the bank and other borrowings of
the Group amounting to RMB1,876.1 million (31 December
2022: RMB3,447.5 million) were classified as current liabilities.
Due to breach of loan covenants and/or occurrence of default
events (including the breach of cross default clauses), certain
bank and other borrowings with the aggregate carrying
amount of approximately RMB492.4 million (31 December
2022: RMB1,330.6 million), in which the aggregate amount
of RMB492.4 million (31 December 2022: RMB739.6 million)
was past due, and aggregate amounts of nil (31 December
2022: RMB536.0 million) and nil (2022: RMB55.0 million) were
repayable within one year and after one year respectively from
the end of reporting date based on the agreed scheduled
repayments set out in the respective loan agreements, had
become due for immediate repayment. The bank and other
borrowings carried interest at rates ranging from 1.85% to 7.8%
(as at 31 December 2022: 2.5% to 7.8%) per annum. As at 31
December 2023, 90.4% and 9.6% (2022: 90.3% and 9.7%)
of the Group’s bank borrowings are at fixed interest rate and
floating interest rate, respectively. As at 31 December 2023,
90.4% and 9.6% (2022: 90.3% and 9.7%) of the Group’s bank
borrowings are at fixed interest rate and floating interest rate,
respectively.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had total banking
and other borrowing facilities of RMB3,566.0 million (2022:
RMB3,520.8 million), of which RMB3,566.0 million (2022:
RMB3,520.8 million) were utilised.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s cash and cash
equivalents were held predominantly in RMB, except amount
of RMB12.7 million in United States dollars (“USD”), amount
of RMBO0.8 million in HKD, amount of RMB21.6 million in
Indonesian Rupiah, amount of RMB1.7 million in Euro, amount
of RMBO0.7 million in Singapore Dollar. All the Group’s bank
and other borrowings were made in RMB.

The gearing ratio (calculated as borrowings netted off sum
of cash and cash equivalents and pledged and restricted
deposits divided by total assets) of the Group as at 31
December 2023 was 29.8% (2022: 32.1%). The gearing ratio
decreased due to repayment of loan during the year of 2023.

For the funding policy, the Group funds its working capital
and other capital requirements from a combination of various
sources, including but not limited to internal resource and
external borrowing at reasonable interest rates.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWEDN

For the treasury policy, the Group adopts centralized
management on financing activities and prudent financial
management approach on the use of capital.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had total banking and
other borrowing of RMB3,566.0 million (31 December 2022:
RMB3,520.8 million), of which RMB84.1 million (31 December
2022: RMB74.7 million) were made in Euro and RMB3,481.9
million (831 December 2022: RMB3,446.1 million) were made in
RMB.

EXPOSURE TO FLUCTUATIONS IN EXCHANGE
RATES

The Group’s cash and cash equivalents are held predominately
in RMB, USD and Indonesian Rupiah. Operating outgoings
incurred by the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC are mainly
denominated in RMB while overseas purchases are usually
denominated in USD and Indonesian Rupiah. The Group’s
subsidiaries usually receive revenue in RMB. Hence, the
Directors do not consider that the Group faces significant
exposure to foreign exchange fluctuation risk.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS OF THE GROUP

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s assets in an aggregate
amount of RMB2,899.5 million (2022: RMB2,732.7 million)
in forms of property, plant and equipment, coal mining and
bank deposits were pledged to banks and asset management
companies for credit facilities granted to the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

PLEDGE OF SHARES BY THE CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDER

Fortune Pearl International Limited, which is wholly-owned by
Mr. Xu Jihua, the controlling shareholder, pledged 949,000,000
shares of the Company, representing approximately 38.06%
of the issued share capital of the Company, for the purpose
of securing the loans of approximately RMB1,666.5 million as
at 31 December 2023 (as at 31 December 2022: RMB2,008.4
million) owed by certain subsidiaries of the Group to a creditor.
In addition, pursuant to the debt restructuring proposal, if there
is any material change in the shareholding of the Company
held by the controlling shareholder of the Company, the
creditor shall have the right to withdraw the debt reduction
and the revised repayment schedule granted to the Group.
For details, please refer to the announcement of the Company
dated 9 August 2018, 22 December 2020, 10 May 2021 and
22 December 2023.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES,
ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES

During the year, the Group did not have any significant
investments, material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND LITIGATIONS

Except for certain matters related to litigations disclosed
in Note 39 to the consolidated financial statements in this
announcement, the Group did not have any material contingent
liabilities as at 31 December 2023.

FINAL DIVIDEND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
DECEMBER 2023

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: Nil).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION

As of 31 December 2023, the Group employed 3,348
employees. The Group has adopted a performance-based
reward system to motivate its staff and such system is reviewed
on a regular basis. In addition to the basic salaries, year-end
bonuses may be offered to staff members with outstanding
performance.

Subsidiaries of the Company established in the PRC are also
subject to central pension scheme operated by the local
municipal government. In accordance with the relevant national
and local labour and social welfare laws and regulations,
subsidiaries of the Company established in the PRC are
required to pay on behalf of their employees a monthly social
insurance premium covering pension insurance, medical
insurance, unemployment insurance and other relevant
insurance. Subsidiaries of the Company incorporated in Hong
Kong China have participated in mandatory provident fund
scheme, if applicable, in accordance with Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance.

Moreover, the Company adopted a post-IPO share option
scheme to incentivise and retain staff members who have
made contribution to the success of the Group. The Directors
believe that the compensation packages offered by the Group
to its staff are competitive in comparison with market standards
and practices.

BUSINESS OUTLOOK

Looking forward to 2024, domestic stabilising economic
policies will gradually be put into place, and production
and supply are steadily increasing. It is expected that
various policies and measures that China will continue to
be introduced to stabilise, promote growth, and optimise
the structure of the economy, which should increase market
demand and improve the job market. From the demand side,
good domestic economic fundamentals will support coal
demand, and production capacity and demand are expected
to be fully released in 2024.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

From the supply side, China’s policy of increasing production
and ensuring supply will continue, and high-quality coal
production capacity will continue to be released. The energy
consumption structure in Asian countries is still dominated by
coal. In the absence of new coal supply sources, competition
for coal among countries will be fierce. It is expected that coal
imports may decrease slightly as compared with 2023. Supply
and demand of domestic thermal coal is expected to remain
fundamentally sufficient.

Overall, the global economy in 2024 will face in-depth
adjustment. However, as coal is expected to remain as a main
energy source in the foreseeable future, and international
tensions and the competition for coal procurement will support
the international coal market price, the international coal price
is expected to remain relatively stable under the influence of
many international factors.

SDE Coal Mine is an important project in which the Group has
invested huge resources in recent years. It is also a milestone
in the Group’s international expansion. Since the successful
acquisition of SDE in Indonesia in 2021, the Group has been
carrying out hard work in the local area until the first SDE mine
officially started trial operation in the fourth quarter of 2023.
In 2024, the Group will make full use of resources of SDE
Coal Mine and carry out follow-up construction of the SDE
project with high standards, including strengthening terminal
construction to ensure that coal can be quickly transported
by sea from the SDE mining area to ports in southern China.
The Group will continue to develop new underground mining
projects, promote the industrial upgrading of Indonesia’s coal
mining industry, assist the local coal industry in upgrading
open-pit mining to underground mining, and import smart
mining technology to the local area. At this stage, the second
SDE mine is still under active construction. Once the second
SDE mine begins its operation, it is believed that the synergy
between the two SDE mines will create great development
potential for the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEEN WD

Creating profits is not the only focus of the Group’s future
development. It is equally important to protect and respect
the interests of all stakeholders. The Group shoulders its
social responsibilities and strictly adhere to Indonesia’s
labour, environmental protection, production safety and other
requirements. In the future, the Group will further strengthen
communication with local people and promote inclusion
through social welfare activities such as building roads,
building new schools and subsidising hospitals in local
communities. In addition to investing in local communities, the
Group will continue to actively recruit locally and improve the
quality of human resources in the Indonesian mining industry
through various training programmes, skills development and
knowledge exchange.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has complied with the applicable code
provisions in the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) as
set out in Appendix C1 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) during
the financial year ended 31 December 2023.

MATERIAL UNCERTAINTIES RELATED TO GOING
CONCERN

We draw attention to note 2 to the consolidated financial
statements, which highlights that the Group had net current
liabilities of approximately RMB3,324,762,000. As at 31
December 2023, the borrowings and accrued interest
amounting to an aggregate amount of approximately
RMB492,444,000 and approximately RMB176,405,000
respectively had been due for immediate payment. In addition,
as at 31 December 2023, there were several unsettled
litigations against the Group mainly requesting the Group to
repay certain payables with interest immediately.

These conditions, along with other matters as set forth in note 2
to the consolidated financial statements, indicate the existence
of material uncertainties which may cast significant doubt over
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

AUDIT COMMITTEE OF THE BOARD

An audit committee was established by the Board on 12 June
2009 with written terms of reference in compliance with the
Code. The primary duties of the audit committee are to review
and supervise the Group’s financial reporting process and
internal controls. The members of the audit committee of the
Board are the three independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. HO Ka Yiu Simon, Prof. SHA Zhenquan and Mr.
JING Dacheng. Mr. HO Ka Yiu Simon is the chairperson of the
audit committee of the Board.

The audit committee has reviewed the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the financial year ended
31 December 2023.
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The Board presents this annual report, together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2023 (the “Consolidated Financial
Statements”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The Group is principally engaged in the coal operation
business involving coal mining, purchase and sales, filtering,
storage, blending of coal. The principal activities of the major
subsidiaries of the Company are set out in note 20 to the
consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Details of the business review and outlook of the Group are
set out in the section headed “Management Discussion and
Analysis” on pages 8 to 27 of this report.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Directors are aware that the Group’s financial condition,
results of operation, businesses and prospects may be
affected by a number of risks and uncertainties as follows:

Risks of macroeconomic fluctuations and national policies

Coal industry is closely linked to the macroeconomy and
industrial regulatory policies. With current complex external
environment, there have been economic downward pressure
and relative measures by government. The Group will continue
to monitor the macroeconomic development and to adjust its
strategies to cope with the risks.

Risk of fluctuation on commodity price

International and domestic coal prices are affected by various
microeconomic factors, industrial factors, national policies,
market demand and supply, characteristics of coal and
volatility in prices of other raw materials for power generation
etc. The Group will flexibly adjust its strategies and implement
measures such as cost control to minimise the impact on profit
margin caused by fluctuation on coal price.
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Risk of safety production

The production process of coal mining involve complex
uncertainties that involve higher safety risks. The Group
continues to strengthen its safety management and control
system by implementing assessment on significant safety risks,
risk prevention measures, regular inspections, regular safety
production training, upgrade on automation of production
process, review of procedure on addressing potential safety
hazards and promotion of safety awareness among employee.

Risks of creditability and liquidity

Due to slowdown of domestic economy, the Group’s
customers may suffer from liquidity and cash flow problems
that will inevitably affect the recoverability of the Group’s trade
receivables and the Group’s liquidity. The Group will closely
monitor its credit exposure, continuously evaluate the collection
history of its customers, adjust the credit line and credit period
given to customers and closely monitor the Group’s liquidity
requirements on ongoing basis in order to maintain sufficient
reserves of cash for operational need.

FINANCIAL KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

The following table sets forth certain of our key financial ratios
as of the dates and for the years indicated.
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Year ended 31 December

BE+-—A=+—HLEE

Notes 2023 2022
B aE —E=-= —E-=
Profitability ratios BRI htb=
Gross profit margin ER= 1 25.5% 33.6%
Net profit/(loss) margin Fm A, (EE) X 2 5.6% 12.9%
Liquidity ratios REBESER
Current ratio BN L 3 0.36 0.33
Gearing ratio BEEARLE 4 29.8% 32.1%
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Notes:

30

The calculation of gross profit margin is based on gross profit divided
by revenue for the year indicated and multiplied by 100%. Gross profit
margin is decreased due to decrease in average selling price of thermal
coal.

The calculation of net profit margin is based on profit/(loss) for the year
divided by revenue for the year indicated and multiplied by 100%. Net
profit/(loss) margin is decreased due to the net effect of:

(i) the decrease in the average coal selling price;

(i) the increase in the coal handling and trading volume;

(iii) impairment losses on property, plant and equipment and coal
mining rights due to decrease in average coal selling price;
and

(iv) decrease in net gain on the substantial/non-substantial

modification of borrowing from approximately RMB42.5
million for the year ended 31 December 2022 to net loss on
non-substantial/non-substantial modification of borrowing
approximately RMB14.5 million for the year ended 31
December 2023.

The calculation of current ratio is based on current assets divided by
current liabilities as of 31 December 2023. Current ratio was improved
due to renewal of certain borrowings.

The calculation of gearing ratio is based on borrowings netted off sum
of cash and cash equivalents and pledged and restricted deposits
divided by total assets. The gearing ratio slightly decreased due to
repayment of loan during the year.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

Environmental, social and governance policies of the Company
are listed out below. For details of environmental performance,
please refer to “Environmental, Social and Governance Report”
of this annual report.

Environment

° To strictly abide by environmental laws and regulations
in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”), including
but not limited to Environmental Protection Law of the
PRC, Environmental Impact Assessment Law of PRC,
Law of the PRC on Promotion of Cleaner Production,
Law of the PRC on Prevention and Control of Water
Pollution, Law of the PRC on Prevention and Control of
Environmental Pollution by Solid Waste, Law of the PRC
on Energy Conservation, and Renewable Energy Law of
the PRC;

° To strictly abide by environmental laws and regulations
in the Republic of Indonesia (the “Indonesia”),
including but not limited to Law on Environmental
Protection and Management, Government Regulation
on Implementation of Environmental Protection and
Management, Law on Forestry, Government Regulation
on Implementation of Forestry;

° To minimise the possible impact of our operations on
the environment by enhancing the efficiency of our
resource consumption, reducing our pollutant emissions
and improving our hazardous and non-hazardous waste
management;

° To promote green production to reduce our carbon
footprint, and to build climate resilience into our
operations; and

o To identify and assess climate change-related physical
risks and opportunities on a regular basis with a view to
developing appropriate response mechanisms.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEERE

BREHRRRRE

ARBWERE LG REBGBEHINNAT - B
RIERFNFHE  S2HAFHROMGRE  HER

EamE]

i

. BERETHPEARAMBE(HE]DRER
ERER - BRETRI(PBERRRE
) (hBEREZEFTER)  (PERBZR
FEREZR)  (RBEKFREDEZE) - (h
BIE e RE W5 RIRIRMEER) ~ (PEIEA
REIRZ) KRB A BARERE)

. BRI ESFENEHMBE ([ENENRFERE
B BRETRRCGRIZRREREIEE) -
(RERELEEBRBTGH) - (ME
)~ SRR B RBUT RG]

. HEBEBHRITAER CFERERK -
BIERITERYER - A5 R WBERA N
BREENREEEEMERE

o ETRELE  RTRSREE  BRE
YEPRIRRELERS A

. FE F 58RI 3 R A R MR 8 A % IR A L B A
B LABIEEE B RS o

—Z_—=#%3 ANNUAL REPORT 2023 31



DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEHE

Society

32

To strictly abide by society-related laws and regulations
in PRC, including but not limited to those related to
corruption and bribery, discrimination, confidentiality,
conflicts of interest, anti-competitive behaviour, money
laundering, health and safety as well as whistleblowing,
such as Testing Specifications for Coal Mine Safety,
Coal Mine Safety Procedures, Law of the PRC on
the Coal Industry, Law of PRC on the Prevention and
Treatment of Occupational Diseases, Provisions on the
Prohibition of Using Child Labour, Special Protection
Regulations for Juvenile Employees, Provisions on
Prohibiting Corruption and Bribery of the Criminal Law
of PRC, and Labour Law of the PRC;

To strictly abide by society-related laws and regulations
in Indonesia, including but not limited to those related
to Law on Manpower, Government Regulation on
Foreign Workers Utilization, Government Regulation on
Definite Employment Contract, Outsourcing, Working
and Rest Hours, and Termination of Employment, Law
on Agrarian Principles, Government Regulation on
Management Rights, Land Rights, Flats, and Land
Registration, Law on Indonesian Criminal Code, Law on
Corruption Eradication;

To bring value to the communities in which we operate
and create long-term benefits for our employees,
customers and suppliers;

To build a safe and healthy, diverse and inclusive
working environment and provide fair learning
opportunities to our employees;

To practice responsible procurement, and exert
our influence on the supply chain to ensure that our

suppliers meet sustainability standards;

To provide quality coal products that meet and exceed
industry standards and sustainability requirements; and

To encourage our employees to actively fulfill their
social responsibilities at work and in their community.
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Governance

° The Environmental, Social and Governance Committee
(the “"ESG Committee”) was established on 6 December
2021, which is responsible for:

° Monitoring the implementation of this policy and
reviewing it from time to time,

° Approving changes or updates to this policy,
and
o Ensuring that responsible procurement is

practiced during our course of business and
along the entire supply chain, and that our
operations do not have a negative impact on
people and the environment;

o To collect stakeholders’ views on our sustainability
performance and make improvements to it;

° To maintain dialogues with our employees, suppliers
and customers, and properly handle ESG issues related
to the Group;

° To identify, on a regular basis, issues that have
significant economic, environmental and social impacts
on stakeholders and regions in which we operate, and
manage them properly; and

° To monitor and report on our sustainability performance
on a regular basis.

RELATIONSHIP WITH CUSTOMERS

The Group understands the importance of maintaining a good
relationship with customers to meet its immediate and long-
term business goals and development. Therefore, the Group
encourages smooth communication channels and customers
feedback for the Group’s continuous improvement on product
quality and timely transportation.

For details of communication channels with customers, please
refer to “Stakeholder Engagement” in the “Environmental,
Social and Governance Report” in this annual report.
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RELATIONSHIP WITH STAKEHOLDERS

For details of relationship with the employees and suppliers,
please refer to “Stakeholder Engagement”, “People
Empowerment”, “Training and Development” and “Supply
Chain Management” in the “Environmental, Social and
Governance Report” in this annual report.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The directors believe that the Group has complied in all
material aspects with the relevant laws and regulations that are
related to the business and operation of the Group. There was
no material breach of or non-compliance with relevant laws
and regulations which might have a significant impact on its
business.

The Group is subject to various laws and regulations such
as the Company Law of the People’s Republic of China, the
Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Property
Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Coal Industry Law
of the People’s Republic of China, the Environmental Protection
Law of the People’s Republic of China, Labour Law of PRC,
Provisions in the Prohibition of Using Child Labour, the Listing
Rules, the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622), Law on
Limited Liability Company in Indonesia, Law on Investments,
Law on Mineral and Coal Mining in Indonesia, Government
Regulation on Implementation of Mining Business Activities
in Indonesia, Minister of Energy and Mineral Resources on
Procedures for Granting Areas, Licensing and Reporting
to Mineral and Coal Mining Business Activities, Minister of
Energy and Mineral Resources Regulation on Procedures for
Preparing, Submitting and Approving Work Plans and Budgets
and Procedures for Reporting on the Implementation of Mineral
and Coal Mining Business Activities, Law on Environmental
Protection and Management and Law on Manpower, etc. The
Group will continuously ensure compliance through closely
monitor on applicable law and regulations that may have a
significant impact on its business and operation.
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RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income on page 159
of this report.

The Directors did not recommend the payment of a dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2023.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the funds
in share premium account and contributed surplus are
distributable to shareholders, subject to the condition that
immediately following the date on which the distribution or
dividend is proposed to be made, the Company is able to pay
its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

As at 31 December 2023, the Company did not have any
distributable reserves (2022: Nil).
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s articles of association (the “Articles”) or the
laws of the Cayman Islands, being the jurisdiction in which
the Company was incorporated, which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing
shareholders.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the Group’s result for each of the five years
ended 31 December and the Group’s assets, liabilities and
equity as at 31 December 2019, 2020, 2021, 2022 and 2023
are set out on page 5 of this report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2023, neither the
Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any listed securities of the Company.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year of 2023 and up to the date of this
report are as follows:

Executive Directors:

Mr. XU Da (Chairman)

Mr. BAIl Tao (Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. ZHAI Yifeng (appointed with effect from 1 March 2023)
Ms. DENG Bingjing (appointed with effect from 19 April 2024)
Mr. TAN Yingzhong (resigned with effect from 1 March 2023)

Independent non-executive Directors:

Prof. SHA Zhenguan
Mr. JING Dacheng
Mr. HO Ka Yiu Simon
(appointed with effect from 20 June 2023)
Mr. LAU Sik Yuen (retired on 20 June 2023)

Pursuant to Article 83(3) of the Articles, the Directors shall
have the power from time to time and at any time to appoint
any person as a Director either to fill a casual vacancy on the
Board or as an addition to the existing Board. Any Director
so appointed shall hold office until the next following annual
general meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for
re-election. Any Director appointed pursuant to Article 83(3)
of the Articles shall not be taken into account in determining
which particular Directors or the number of Directors who are
to retire by rotation.

Pursuant to Article 84 of the Articles, at each annual general
meeting one-third of the Directors for the time being shall
retire from office by rotation provided that every Director
shall be subject to retirement at an annual general meeting at
least once every three years and shall then be eligible for re-
election.

Mr. HO Ka Yiu Simon and Ms. DENG Bingjing, who were
appointed by the Board on 20 June 2023 and 19 April 2024,
respectively will retire in accordance with Article 83(3) of the
Articles while Prof. SHA Zhenquan and Mr. JING Dacheng
will retire by rotation in accordance with Article 84(1) of the
Articles. Ms. DENG Bingjing, Prof. SHA Zhenquan, Mr. HO Ka
Yiu Simon and Mr. JING Dacheng, being eligible, would offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the
annual general meeting has an unexpired service contract
with the Company which is not determinable by the Company
within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS

Save for the Structure Contracts (as defined in the Prospectus),
the details of which are set forth in the paragraphs
under “Connected Transactions” below, no transactions,
arrangements and contracts of significance in relation to
the Group’s business to which the Company and any of its
subsidiaries or holding company was a party and in which
a Director is or was materially interested or had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the year or at any time during the year.

INDEPENDENCE OF THE INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of its independent non-
executive Directors the confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and the
Board considers the independent non-executive Directors to
be independent.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of Directors and senior management
as at the date of publication of the annual report are set out on
pages 66 to 71 of this report.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2023, the interests and short positions
of the Directors and chief executive of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571 of the Laws
of Hong Kong) (the “SFQO”)), which were required (a) to be
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO; or (b) to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies
(the “Model Code”) contained in Appendix C3 to the Listing
Rules were as follows:

Interests in the Company
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Approximate percentage
of issued share capital

Number of shares of the Company (%)
HAEAREBITRA A
B EE Bo (%)
Long Short Long Short
Name of Director Nature of interest positions positions positions positions
EEnE REmME i) KA HE KRB
Mr. XU Da (Note 1) Beneficial Owner 93,135,251 Nil 3.74 Nil
fRE L A (B EE1) EmBEAA i i
Mr. BAI Tao Beneficial Owner 50,000,000 Nil 2.01 Nil
BEE%E EmEB A i i
Mr. Zhai Yifeng Beneficial Owner (Note 2) 2,000,000 Nil 0.08 Nil
BARIE K& EmEB AHE2) i i
Notes: FizE -
1. Mr. XU Da, being a Director, is also acting as the Chairman of the 1. EFERETENREESTGER -
Board.
2. The beneficial interest represents 2,000,000 shares that may be issued 2. ExBmARBER T —AFMNA=+HBERET

pursuant to the full exercise of the options granted to Mr. ZHAI Yifeng
under the Share Option Scheme on 30 April 2015.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, none
of the Directors or chief executive of the Company had
interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required
(a) to be recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO; or (b) to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code.

BIR TR TR MK I§ 5% 4 R B AR AR D BT (5 10 T AE 3%
77#92,000,0008 A £ °

BREMFEREN RZBEZ=F+=—A=*+—
H ARAEFHUERRTHRABBMENEARR R
HAMAEEE(E& LES MAERHEXVED)
2G5  BERDSKEFTHES(EFMBEK
PIZE3E2{E M EBRLENARBFEZLMA
(o) IR IFIZ AT RIZAME AR 7 KRB T 2 e o
AR o

—Z_—=#%3 ANNUAL REPORT 2023 39



DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEERE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARE CAPITAL OF THE
COMPANY

As at 31 December 2023, the interests and short positions of
the persons, other than a Director or chief executive of the
Company, in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
as recorded in the register of interests required to be kept
by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO were as
follows:

Number of shares

FERRRADAREPZEBHERKXE

RZFZ=F+-A=+—8 " TIALHAER
AEEXHZERITRABINRARE Z BN KRHE
BB F - BARARRRIEREZ B GRDIE
36T E 2 R B MRS 2 e MR R -

Approximate percentage
of issued share capital of
the Company (%)

HERATERITRAEAZ
RHEE BB D (%)
Name of shareholder Nature of interest Long Short Long Short
positions positions positions positions
BREME LB ERMtE i) RE iy RE
Mr. XU Jihua (Note 1) Beneficial owner 14,229,610 Nil 0.57 Nil
wEELEPTEED EmBEAA i i
Interest in a controlled
corporation 1,350,618,938 Nil 5417 Nil
e NI o v i i
Fortune Pearl International Beneficial owner
Limited (Note 1) 1,350,618,938 Nil 54.17 Nil
PREBRERAB (T BEmEEA i i
Note: fizE -
1. Mr. XU Jihua is the father of Mr. XU Da and father-in-law of Ms. DENG 1. REFELERBELENXBRBKELEINRS °

Bingjing. Mr. XU Da is the chairman and an executive Director of
the Company. Ms. DENG was appointed as the executive Director
of the Company with effect from 19 April 2024. Mr. XU Jihua is
interested in 100% shareholding of Fortune Pearl International Limited
(“Fortune Pearl”), which in turn is interested in 1,232,618,938 shares
and 118,000,000 shares which may be allotted and issued upon full
conversion of the PSCS held directly by Fortune Pearl. By virtue of the
SFO, Mr. Xu Jihua is deemed to have interests in the shares so held by
Fortune Pearl.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, the
Company had not been notified by any persons (other than
Directors or the chief executive of the Company) who had
interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of
the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO,
or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than pursuant to the Share Option Scheme detailed in
note 33 to the consolidated financial statements, at no time
during the year ended 31 December 2023 was the Company
or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable
the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in, or debts securities (including debentures) of,
the Company or any other body corporate and none of the
Directors, their spouses or children under the age of 18, had
any rights to subscribe for securities of the Company, or had
exercised any such rights.

PERPETUAL SUBORDINATED CONVERTIBLE
SECURITIES

The Company had outstanding PSCS in the principal amount
of HKD194,700,000 as at 31 December 2023, which was
convertible into ordinary shares in the Company at the initial
conversion price of HKD1.65 per conversion share (subject to
adjustments). Assuming the exercise in full of the conversion
rights attaching to the PSCS at the initial conversion price,
a total of 118,000,000 conversion shares will be issued. The
PSCS were held by Fortune Pearl. The sole ultimate beneficial
owner of the Fortune Pearl is Mr. Xu Jihua, who is the father of
Mr. Xu Da and the father-in-law of Ms. Deng Bingjing and the
controlling shareholder of the Company.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Subject to the applicable laws, every director of the Group’s
companies shall be entitled to be indemnified by the relevant
company against all costs, charges, losses, expenses
and liabilities incurred by him or her in the execution and
discharge of his or her duties or in relation thereto pursuant
to their respective Articles of Associations. Such provisions
were in force during the course of the financial year ended 31
December 2023 and remained in force as of the date of this
report.
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REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration policy of the Group to reward its employees
is based on their performance, duties and responsibilities,
qualifications and competence displayed. The Group has
adopted a performance based rewarding system to motivate
its employees and such system is reviewed on a regular basis.
In addition to the basic salaries, year end bonuses will be
offered to those staff members with outstanding performance.

Emoluments payable to the senior management of the Group
are decided by the remuneration committee of the Board,
having regard to the Group’s operating results, individual
experience, performance and responsibility, and the
compensation levels adopted by companies of comparable
size engaging in similar business.

Emoluments payable to the Directors are decided by the
remuneration committee of the Board, having regard to the
compensation levels adopted by companies of similar size
engaging in similar business.

Details of the Directors’ emoluments and emoluments of the
five highest paid individuals in the Group are set out in notes
12 and 13 to the consolidated financial statements.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the year.

DONATIONS
During the year, charitable donations of RMB263,404 were

made by the Group (2022: RMB4,248,000) to enhance social
development in various aspects.
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MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The percentages of purchases and sales for the year
attributable to the Group’s major suppliers and customers were
as follows:
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Purchases KB
— the largest supplier - A HIER 30.19%
— five largest suppliers in aggregate - hARHERER 48.51%
Sales SHER
- the largest customer -mARP 34.6%
— five largest customers in aggregate -AREFAF 89.1%

None of the Directors, their close associates or any shareholder
(which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5%
of the Company’s share capital) had an interest in these major
suppliers or customers.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

New Heads of Agreements in Relation to the Acquisition of
Mining Business License C and Mining Business License
G and Reduction of Shareholding Interest in New Mining
Company C and New Mining Company G

In light of the foreign ownership limitation, on 30 October 2023,
Initiative Energy Investment Limited (“Initiative Energy”) and
Veneration Energy Investment Limited (“Veneration Energy”),
the wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company, entered into
the new heads of agreements to restructure the transaction
and reduce its shareholding interest in a new mining company
C and new mining company G to 70% and to amend certain
terms of the heads of agreement C and heads of agreement G
in relation to the investment in the said companies.
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Heirs of Kokos Jiang, who hold over 99% shareholding
interest in each of the sellers who entered into the new heads
of agreements with Initiative Energy and Veneration Energy
respectively, own 25% equity interest in PT Sumber Daya
Energi (“SDE”), which is a non-wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company. As SDE does not fall within the ambit of
insignificant subsidiaries under Rule 14A.09 of the Listing
Rules, (i) heirs of Kokos Jiang, including Inneke Wiratirana
(who are substantial shareholder of SDE), (ii) the sellers (which
are owned as to over 99% by heirs of Kokos Jiang), (iii) Eric
Wiratirana (brother of Inneke Wiratirana) and (iv) PT Widyanusa
Mandiri (a company owned as to 99% by heirs of Kokos Jiang)
are regarded as connected persons of the Company at the
subsidiary level under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. As
such, the transactions contemplated under the New Heads of
Agreements constituted connected transactions under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

As (i) the Board (including the independent non-executive
Directors) has approved the new heads of agreements
and the transactions contemplated thereunder; and (ii) the
independent non-executive Directors have confirmed that the
terms of the transactions under the new heads of agreements
are fair and reasonable, on normal commercial terms and
in the interests of the Company and the Shareholders as a
whole, the transactions contemplated under the New Heads
of Agreements are subject to reporting and announcement
requirements but are exempt from circular, independent
financial advice and independent shareholders’ approval
requirements pursuant to Rule 14A.101 of the Listing Rules.

For details, please refer to the Company’s announcements
dated 30 October 2023 and 7 November 2023.
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Reduction of Shareholding Interest in New Mining
Company A

During the vetting process of obtaining approval for the
transfer of the mining business license A to PT Suprema
Marulabo Energi (“SME”), the Minister of Energy and Mineral
Resources in Indonesia advised that the foreign ownership
in SME shall be limited to 70%. As such, Splendid Energy
Investment Limited (“Splendid Energy”), the wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into the sale and purchase
agreement (the “Transfer Agreement”) with a new company
(the “Seller Controlled Entity”), which is owned as to 99%
by Inneke Wiratirana and as to 1% by Eric Wiratirana, to
restructure the transaction and reduce its shareholding interest
in SME from 75% to 70%. Pursuant to the Transfer Agreement,
Splendid Energy shall transfer 5% shareholding interest in SME
to the seller Controlled Entity.

Pursuant to the heads of agreement A (as amended and
supplemented by the addendum A) in respect in investment
in a new mining company A, the seller of the mining
business license A shall be entitled to 15% of total saleable
coal production instead of dividend payment from SME.
Notwithstanding the reduction of the Group’s shareholding
interest in SME, the Group’s entitlement to 85% of the total
saleable coal production of SME shall remain unchanged. Save
for the reduction of the Group’s shareholding interest in SME,
the other terms and conditions of the heads of agreement A
(as amended and supplemented by the addendum A) remain
unchanged and in full force and effect in all respects.
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Heirs of Kokos Jiang (including Inneke Wiratirana) own 25%
equity interest in SDE, which is a non-wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company. As SDE does not fall within the ambit of
insignificant subsidiaries under Rule 14A.09 of the Listing
Rules, the Seller Controlled Entity, which is owned as to 99%
by Inneke Wiratirana and as to 1% by Eric Wiratirana (brother
of Inneke Wiratirana), is regarded as a connected person of
the Company at the subsidiary level under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. As such, the transaction contemplated under the
Transfer Agreement constituted connected transaction under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. As (i) the Board (including
the independent non-executive Directors) has approved the
transaction contemplated under the Transfer Agreement; and
(i) the independent non-executive Directors have confirmed
that the terms of the transaction contemplated under the
Transfer Agreement are fair and reasonable, on normal
commercial terms and in the interests of the Company and
the Shareholders as a whole, the transaction contemplated
under the Transfer Agreement is subject to reporting and
announcement requirements but exempt from circular,
independent financial advice and independent shareholders’
approval requirements pursuant to Rule 14A.101 of the Listing
Rules.

For details, please refer to the Company’s announcements
dated 3 January 2020, 13 May 2021, 3 January 2022, 30
October 2023 and 17 November 2023.
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STRUCTURE CONTRACTS

The Group carried out the following continuing connected
transactions (other than continuing connected transactions
that are exempted under Rule 14A.76(1) of the Listing Rules)
during the year ended 31 December 2023:

On 12 June 2009, Zhuhai Qinfa Logistics Co., Ltd. (“Qinfa
Logistics”), which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, each member of the China Qinfa Group (as defined
in the Prospectus), and their respective equity interest holders
(which include Mr. XU Jihua, Mr. XU Da, Mr. LIU Jingwei and
Ms. ZHOU Lusha, all being the then Controlling Shareholders
of the Company (as defined in the Prospectus)) entered into
the Structure Contracts (as defined in the Prospectus) for a
term of 10 years pursuant to which Qinfa Logistics agreed to
pay an annual fee of RMB10,000 to each member of the China
Qinfa Group for the exclusive management and operation
of the coal operation business and the inland shipping
transportation business of the China Qinfa Group, and all
economic benefits and risks arising from the business of the
China Qinfa Group are transferred to Qinfa Logistics. Further
details of the Structure Contracts are set forth in the section
headed “Reorganisation and the Structure Contracts” in the
Prospectus.

The Stock Exchange has granted a perpetual waiver pursuant
to the Rule 14A.105 of the Listing Rules to the Company
for all transactions under the Structure Contracts from
strict compliance with the applicable announcement and
independent shareholders’ approval requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

In accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Board
engaged the auditor of the Company to perform procedures on
the above continuing connected transactions in accordance
with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000
(Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or
Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with reference
to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

The auditor has issued his unqualified letter containing
his findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Rule 14A.56.
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The independent non-executive Directors have confirmed
that the above-mentioned continuing connected transactions
for the Company were entered into: (i) in the ordinary and
usual course of the Group’s business; (ii) in accordance
with the terms of the respective agreements governing such
transactions on terms that were fair and reasonable and in
the interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole;
and (iii) either on normal commercial terms or on terms no
less favourable to the Group than those available to or from
independent third parties.

Besides, the independent non-executive Directors have
conducted an annual review on the Structure Contracts and
have confirmed that (i) the transactions carried out during
2023 have been entered into in the ordinary and usual course
of the Group’s business; (ii) the transactions carried out during
2023 have been entered into in accordance with the relevant
provisions of the Structure Contracts and so that all revenue
generated by China Qinfa Group has been retained by Qinfa
Logistics; (iii) any new contracts or renewed contracts have
been entered into on the same terms as the existing Structure
Contracts and are fair and reasonable so far as the Group is
concerned and in the interests of the shareholders as a whole;
and (iv) no dividends or other distributions have been made by
any member of China Qinfa Group to its equity interest holders.

The Group comprises China Qinfa Group (as defined in the
Prospectus) and Hong Kong Qinfa Group (as defined in the
Prospectus). Having considered the demand for coal imported
from overseas into China and the expansion of the Group’s
overseas coal operation business, the Directors strategically
planned to centralise the management and operation of the
Group’s coal business in China and overseas markets and
determined that Hong Kong Qinfa Group should manage
and operate the coal operation business in China through
the establishment of Zhuhai Qinfa Logistics Co. Ltd. (“Qinfa
Logistics”), a member of Hong Kong Qinfa Group and an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company in February
2008.

48 CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HE&=R&EBER A

BIUFRTEERBRLARRRZHEHER S
TN AKE—RBBEHBIZTEIL ¢ (iRIE
ZERHEBHHERE L - MIFHRBERFAE
ARAEARFRREENGD  RINVZEFEHEKE
RETL - IR TBRBYFE =T RAAEEF LK
REBABILE =T FEZFKETAL -

SN - BIFRITEFCRRBEOETFER
AU ERNR _E_=FEETIRHERAE
BEBOEER —RBERTEER : (R =_F=
—FRETZRZERERBAH 2 BBIEKRF]
Yo MPBEREEREELZMARACHFEY
MRE  (IEAFHENLERENIRRERAR
BAENMERZGEFETIZERAKREMS @ B
RNFEEBENMARREBEND  R(ivVVPBERES
FEMRE AR EREERTAAFLERE
HEAM DR

AEBHTFEREEE(EERERER) REE
REEE(EERARER)AK - KREETEY
BINEORKOBREAEE R BINER L ZE
X1 BEERMUEMA IR —AKENTELE
SNTIBRREBNEBREE IR _FENF
“RAREBAFREEEREBRIINEREDR
BERAR(RZEYMR] REARZERENKER
AMARRNEZREEMNB AR REEMEEH
BIRRETR -



As disclosed in the Prospectus, after verbal consultations
with the relevant PRC governmental authorities at Zhuhai at
which the Group operated its coal business, the Directors
understood that the PRC governmental authorities did not
grant Coal Operation Certificates to foreign equity controlled
companies as a matter of practice. In addition, according
to the relevant provisions of (i) the Catalog of Industries for
Encouraged Foreign Investment (2019 Edition), the domestic
waterway transport industry is not included in the category of
encouraged foreign investment; (ii) the Special Administrative
Measures (Negative List) for Foreign Investment Access
(2019 Edition) (the “Negative List (2019 Edition)”), a domestic
waterway transportation company shall be controlled by
PRC parties; and (iii) the Regulations on the Management of
Domestic Waterway Transportation revised on 24 February
2020, the PRC government implements an administrative
licensing system for relevant companies engaged in domestic
waterway transportation business, while reviewing the foreign
shareholders and their proportion of shareholding in the
company according to the above-mentioned Negative List
(2019 Edition). If the proportion does not meet the requirements
of the Negative List (2019 Edition), such administrative licenses
cannot be obtained. These views had been confirmed by the
PRC legal advisers of the Company.
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In order to allow Hong Kong Qinfa Group to manage and
operate the coal operation business in China, the Engagement
Agreements and the Pledge Agreements (as defined in the
Prospectus) (collectively the “Structure Contracts”) were
entered into under which all the business activities of China
Qinfa Group are managed and operated by Qinfa Logistics
and all economic benefits and risks arising from the business
of China Qinfa Group are transferred to Qinfa Logistics.
Pursuant to the equity transfer agreements dated 25 October
2010, 15 December 2010 and 17 December 2010, equity
interests of Qinhuangdao Development Zone Qinfa Trading
Co., Ltd., Yangyuan Guotong Coal Trading and Transportation
Co., Ltd. and Datong Xiejiazhuang Jinfa Trading and
Transportation Co., Ltd have been transferred to the Group. As
of 31 December 2022, Zhuhai Qinfa Trading Co., Ltd (“Zhuhai
Qinfa Trading”) and Zhuhai Qinfa Shipping Co., Ltd. (“Zhuhai
Qinfa Shipping”) remained controlled by the Group under the
Structure Contracts. As advised by the PRC legal advisers
of the Company, foreign investment is allowed to operate
coal trading business according to the Guidance of Foreign
Investment (Amended 2017). As such, the Company proposes
to unwind the contractual arrangement of Zhuhai Qinfa Trading
in due course. In addition, as the business scope set out in
the Business License for Corporation of Zhuhai Qinfa Shipping
and the general cargo ship transportation it actually engaged
in domestic coastal regions and central and downstream
Yangtze River regions are managed under the Negative
List, the operating entity shall be controlled by PRC parties.
Accordingly, Zhuhai Qinfa Shipping still needs to sign relevant
framework agreements with Zhuhai Qinfa Logistics Co., Ltd.
and/or other entities to meet compliance requirements.
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Mr. Xu Jihua, Ms Wang Jianfei, Mr. Xu Da, Zhuhai Qinfa Trading
and Zhuhai Qinfa Shipping entered into the Engagement
Agreements and the Pledge Agreements on 12 June 2009.
Qinfa Logistics is entitled to all the revenue of Zhuhai Qinfa
Trading and Zhuhai Qinfa Shipping after deducting all relevant
costs and expenses (including taxes) and has the right to
acquire any or all of the equity interests and/or assets of
Zhuhai Qinfa Trading and Zhuhai Qinfa Shipping at the lowest
possible amount and at such time as permitted by the relevant
PRC laws and regulations. All equity holders of Zhuhai Qinfa
Trading and Zhuhai Qinfa Shipping have granted to Qinfa
Logistics a pledge over the equity interests in equity holders
for the purpose of securing the performance of the contractual
obligations under the Structure Contracts. Any amendment to
the Structure Contracts shall be subject to the approvals of
(i) the directors nominated by Qinfa Logistics to Zhuhai Qinfa
Trading and Zhuhai Qinfa Shipping, and (ii) for the purpose
of promoting good corporate governance, the shareholders in
general meeting. No amendments to the Structure Contracts
can be made unless required under the Listing Rules or
approved by Qinfa Logistics in writing in advance. For
details of the Structure Contracts, please refer to the section
headed “Reorganisation and the Structure Contracts” in the
Prospectus.

The Structure Contracts, taken as a whole, permit the financial
results of Zhuhai Qinfa Trading and Zhuhai Qinfa Shipping
and economic benefits of their business to flow onto Qinfa
Logistics. In addition, all the directors in Zhuhai Qinfa Trading
and Zhuhai Qinfa Shipping are to be nominated by Qinfa
Logistics. Through its control over the directors of Zhuhai
Qinfa Trading and Zhuhai Qinfa Shipping, Qinfa Logistics is
able to monitor, supervise and effectively control the business,
operations and financial policies of Zhuhai Qinfa Trading and
Zhuhai Qinfa Shipping so as to ensure due implementation of
the Structure Contracts. The Structure Contracts also enable
Qinfa Logistics to exercise control over and to acquire the
equity interests and/or assets of Zhuhai Qinfa Trading and
Zhuhai Qinfa Shipping at the lowest value and at such time
as permitted by the relevant PRC laws and regulations with
an undertaking from the Controlling Shareholders to provide
to Qinfa Logistics all the consideration received pursuant to
any such acquisition. Based on the Structure Contracts, the
Directors consider that, notwithstanding the lack of equity
ownership between members of Zhuhai Qinfa Trading and
Zhuhai Qinfa Shipping and Hong Kong Qinfa Group, Qinfa
Logistics is entitled to control the business of Zhuhai Qinfa
Trading and Zhuhai Qinfa Shipping in substance. On this
basis, the financial position and operating results of Zhuhai
Qinfa Trading and Zhuhai Qinfa Shipping are included in the
Group’s consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEHRE

REELRE  ERRLL  REXLE  WERE
BHLMIKRBREMENR _TZNF A+ -HF
YERABHEIERER - REWRERWEIRE
REE G RINERBEFENABRA RS
BRKALRAX(BHERE) - XEENERTE
AR MR AT BV [ IR AR RE o BUA R MOR MR P
AARERESHEBREREBEIRIKNERHE
BN EHRER,REE - RERETT
BBEHANAHNELE  RERBREFHRKERE
MENMARGSRBEACRTREMR YRR
BARBHERTEEIR - BREBAOEREAER
BARNREDRESEREREZEINIKER
EMENEEE  RINVSEERIFNEEER
ANBRRAEG LRI E - BRIFB EmRAZ
RERKEREYREAEEME DRI FHR
BANELEMAER - EARBAONFE &
SERRERREAREBSL]—E -

REBENEBERLETBREREEIRKNERHE
FUEm I AR EEBNEENZRARTEY
me I WERBE S RIKERBEMENME
EEFHFEDRRESL - BBRBMRYKER
BREGRINEREMEEEHNZHIRE  FEDR
AER  EEREMENRERZRESHRIIWER
EMEMNER - @B RFHERER - EMEREE
BITREAY -RBAONTAEREMREINE
RBEAGRIKNEREMENRER,LEEHIN
2 N AR A B P BUA R FOA R AT ERT R & E(E
ENERABREBZERENREE - mER
BRAEEGAREDREREFIREBEETAZE
WD WRNAE ERRBAN  EFRR
BERERBESGNKREREMERTERESE
BEKRBRARZERBBREAAERE  BRE
MRBEE EBEREHIREREE D RINEREM
BONER - BENY - WERBEFRIKERH
A& B B B R R B R AR R BAR A B
BH®KRA -

—Z_—=#%3 ANNUAL REPORT 2023 51



DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEHE

As a result of the Structure Contracts, Zhuhai Qinfa Trading
and Zhuhai Qinfa Shipping are accounted for as the
Company’s subsidiaries, and their financial position and
operating results are consolidated in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements. The revenue and total asset value
subject to the arrangements under the Structure Contracts
amounted to nil (2022: RMB11,464,000) for the year ended 31
December 2023 and approximately RMB318,529,840 (2022:
RMB127,382,000) as of 31 December 2023, respectively.

The Structure Contracts are governed by the PRC laws and
provide for the resolution of disputes through arbitration in
accordance with the arbitration rules of China International
Economic and Trade Arbitration Commission in force at that
time (the “CIETAC Arbitration Rules”) in China. Accordingly,
the Structure Contracts would be interpreted in accordance
with the PRC law and any disputes would be finally resolved by
arbitration in accordance with the CIETAC Arbitration Rules.

There are risks involved with the operation of the Group
under the Structure Contracts. To the best knowledge of the
Directors, if the Structure Contracts are considered to be in
breach of any existing or future PRC laws or regulations, the
relevant regulatory authorities would have broad discretion in
dealing with such breach, including:

- imposing economic penalties;

- discontinuing or restricting the operations of Hong Kong
Qinfa Group or Zhuhai Qinfa Trading and Zhuhai Qinfa

Shipping;

- imposing conditions or requirements in respect of the
Structure Contracts with which Zhuhai Qinfa Trading
and Zhuhai Qinfa Shipping may not be able to comply;

- requiring the Group to restructure the relevant
ownership structure or operations;

- taking other regulatory or enforcement actions that
could adversely affect the business of the Group; and
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- revoking the business licences and/or the licences or
certificates of Zhuhai Qinfa Trading and Zhuhai Qinfa
Shipping and/or voiding the Structure Contracts.

The Group takes the following measures to mitigate the
risk and to ensure proper implementation of the Structure
Contracts:

(a) as part of the internal control measures, major issues
arising from implementation and performance of the
Structure Contracts are reviewed by the board of
directors of Qinfa Logistics on a regular basis which is
no less frequent than on a quarterly basis;

(b) matters relating to compliance and regulatory enquiries
from governmental authorities (if any) are discussed at
such regular meetings which is no less frequent than on
a quarterly basis; and

(c) the relevant business units and operation divisions of
the Hong Kong Qinfa Group report regularly, which is
no less frequent than on a monthly basis, to the senior
management of Qinfa Logistics on the compliance and
performance conditions under the Structure Contracts
and other related matters.

The Board confirmed that there is no material change in the
contractual arrangements under the Structure Contracts
and/or the circumstances under which they were adopted,
and their impact on the Group. The Board also confirmed
that save for the removal of restrictions on foreign equity
controlled companies to operate coal trading business as
disclosed above, there is no removal of restrictions that led
to the adoption of the Structure Contracts. The Engagement
Agreements and the Pledge Agreements were renewed on 12
June 2019.
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The Foreign Investment Law of the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC”) (the "Foreign Investment Law"), the
Regulations on the Implementation of the Foreign Investment
Law of the People’s Republic of China (the "Implementation
Regulations") and the Interpretation of the Supreme People’s
Court on Several Issues Concerning the Application of
the Foreign Investment Law of the People’s Republic of
China (the "Judicial Interpretation"), which came into force
simultaneously on 1 January 2020, have not been updated.
However, the National Development and Reform Commission
and the Ministry of Commerce issued Order No. 47 and
Order No. 48 on 27 December 2021, thereby promulgating
respectively the Special Administrative Measures (Negative
List) for Foreign Investment Access (2021 Edition) and the
Special Administrative Measures (Negative List) for Foreign
Investment Access in Pilot Free Trade Zones (2021 Edition),
effective 1 January 2022, while the Special Administrative
Measures (Negative List) for Foreign Investment Access
(2020 Edition) and the Special Administrative Measures
(Negative List) for Foreign Investment Access in Pilot Free
Trade Zones (2020 Edition) will be repealed on the same
date. General cargo shipping in Chinese coastal cities and
the middle and lower reaches of the Yangtze River is still on
the 2021 edition of the negative list for foreign investment
access, as an operating entity in such business is required
to be controlled by a Chinese party. On 17 February 2023,
the China Securities Regulatory Commission (CSRC) issued
the “Trial Administrative Measures for the Overseas Issuance
and Listing of Securities by Domestic Companies” (the “Trial
Administrative Measures”) with five supporting guidelines
(the “Filing System”), with effect from 31 March 2023. The
“Trial Administrative Measures” and the Filing System above
stipulate that these measures and this system apply to both
domestic companies that seek to be listed directly (i.e. H-share
companies) and those that seek to be listed indirectly (i.e.
“red-chip” companies, as they are commonly known in the
industry, including companies operating with a variable interest
entity (“VIE”) structure), and these companies are required
to go through the filing procedure with the CSRC. They are
required to file their overseas listing application with the CSRC
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within 3 working days after submitting their application. The
CSRC will issue a filing notice and publicize it on its website
within 20 working days after receiving all the information.
Regarding the filing management of VIE-structured companies,
the CSRC, when answering reporters’ questions, mentioned
that “for the overseas listing of VIE-structured companies, the
filing management will adhere to the principles of marketization
and the rule of law to enhance regulatory coordination. The
CSRC will solicit opinions from relevant competent authorities,
file for the overseas listing of VIE-structured companies that
meet compliance requirements, and support companies to
use two markets and two kinds of resources to develop and
grow.” Thus, it is clear that a VIE-structure company must
complete the filing procedure before it is eligible to be listed
overseas. In that case, a VIE-structured company may not be
eligible to be listed overseas if the CSRC refuses to accept
its filing. In answering reporters’ questions, the CSRC also
expressly stated that “they will adhere to the principle of non-
retroactivity of laws, prioritize stability, and seek progress in
stability, thereby ensuring the smooth implementation of our
filing management". Thus, it is understood that a company that
has already been listed will not be liable for its past listing.
When answering reporter’s questions, the CSRC made it
clear that “companies that have already been listed overseas
when the ‘Trial Administrative Measures’ come into effect will
be regarded as existing companies, and existing companies
are not required to file with us immediately. These companies
only need to file with us as required for any subsequent filing
matters such as refinancing.” Further interpretations of the
PRC government in future on legal systems governing foreign
investment may also bring uncertainties to the Company’s
corporate structure, subsidiary management, corporate
governance and business operations.

The Company will pay close attention to the implementation
and possible further interpretation of the Foreign Investment
Law by the relevant PRC authorities, and will engage legal
advisors and industry consultants to provide opinions on the
impact and possible solutions to ensure timely compliance
with the Foreign Investment Law by making necessary
responses and adjustments to its implementation and further
interpretation.
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Details of the related party transactions of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2023 are set out in note 38
to the consolidated financial statements. The related party
transactions as disclosed in note 38(b), the transactions with
Qinfa Industry as disclosed in note 38(a) and the remuneration
to the directors of the Company, which formed part of the
“Key management personnel remuneration” described in note
38(d) to the consolidated financial statements constituted
exempt continuing connected transactions under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules and accordingly, are exempted from
the disclosure requirements in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. Save as disclosed above, the other related party
transactions as disclosed in note 38 to the consolidated
financial statements did not constitute connected transactions
or continuing connected transactions under chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules. The Company confirmed that it has complied
with the disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

The PSCS was approved by the independent shareholders on
31 December 2012. In view of the current financial position of
the Company, the Company elected to distribute payments of
approximately HKD5,841,000 for the year ended 31 December
2023 pursuant to the terms of the PSCS.

The Directors confirm that the Company has complied with the
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Company has adopted a Share Option Scheme (the “2009
Share Option Scheme”) on 12 June 2009 and a Share Option
Scheme on 27 June 2018 (the “2018 Share Option Scheme”).
The principal terms of the schemes are as follows:
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Share Option Schemes

On 12 June 2009, the Company adopted the 2009 Share
Option Scheme which shall be valid and effective for a period
of ten years commencing from 12 June 2009. The Company
has terminated the 2009 Share Option Scheme and adopted
the 2018 Share Option Scheme pursuant to a resolution
passed by the Shareholders at the general meeting on 27
June 2018. The 2018 Share Option Scheme shall be valid
and effective for a period of 10 years commencing from 27
June 2018. No further options can be granted pursuant to the
2009 Share Option Scheme. Nonetheless, options granted
prior to the termination of the 2009 Share Option Scheme shall
continue to be valid and exercisable in accordance with the
rules of the 2009 Share Option Scheme. No share options had
been granted under the 2018 Share Option Scheme since its
adoption. The major terms of the 2009 Share Option Scheme
and the 2018 Share Option Scheme (collectively, the “Share
Option Schemes”), which are substantially the same, are set
out below.
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The purpose of the Share Option Schemes is to provide
incentive or reward to eligible persons (including full time
or part time employees, executive, non-executive directors
and independent non-executive directors of our Group) for
their contribution to, and continuing efforts to promote the
interests of, the Company and to enable the Company and its
subsidiaries to recruit and retain high-caliber employees.

The subscription price shall be a price determined by the
Directors, but shall not be less than the highest of (i) the
nominal value of the share; (ii) the closing price of the shares
on the date of the offer; and (iii) the average closing price of
the shares for the five trading days immediately preceding the
date of the offer.

The total number of shares issued and which may be issued
upon exercise of the options granted under the Share Option
Scheme to an employee in any 12-month period shall not
exceed 1% of the shares in issue. Any further grant of options
in excess of this limit shall be subject to the approval of
shareholders in a general meeting.

An option may be exercised at any time during a period to be
determined by the Board, which shall not in any event exceed
ten years from the date of grant. The Share Option Schemes
do not specify any minimum holding period. The acceptance
of an offer must be made within 30 days from the date of offer
with a non-refundable payment of HKD1.00.

On 17 January 2012, the Company has granted share options
(the “Options”) to subscribe for a total of 20,751,196 new
ordinary shares of the Company under the 2009 Share Option
Scheme to 15 eligible participants of the 2009 Share Option
Scheme at the exercise price HKD1.50 per share (which
represents the highest of (i) the closing price of HKD1.50 per
share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet
on the date of grant; (ii) the average closing price of HKD1.392
per share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation
sheets for the 5 trading days immediately preceding the date
of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of HKDO0.10 per share).
The Options are valid for a period of 10 years from 17 January
2012 to 16 January 2022. None of the Grantees is a director,
chief executive or substantial shareholder of the Company or
an associate (as defined in the Listing Rules) of any of them.
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The Options may be exercisable at any time during the option
period, provided that the maximum number of Options which
each Grantee is entitled to exercise at the below period shall
not exceed:

(a) in respect of the period from 17 January 2012 to 16
January 2013, 40% of the total number of Options
granted to him;

(b) in respect of the period from 17 January 2013 to 16
January 2014, 30% of the total number of Options
granted to him; and

(c) in respect of the period from 17 January 2014 to 16
January 2015, 30% of the total number of Options
granted to him.

On 30 April 2015, the Company has further granted Options
to subscribe for a total of 157,500,000 new ordinary shares of
the Company under the 2009 Share Option Scheme to eligible
participants of the 2009 Share Option Scheme at the exercise
price HKDO0.485 per share (which represents the highest of (i)
the closing price of HKDO0.485 per share as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the date of grant; (ii) the
average closing price of HKD0.484 per share as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the 5 trading
days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the
nominal value of HKDO0.10 per share). The Options are valid
for a period of 10 years from 30 April 2015 to 29 April 2025.
Among the total of 157,500,000 Options granted at the date of
grant, 1,500,000 Options were granted to the Directors, and
156,000,000 Options were granted to eligible participants who
were not directors, chief executive or substantial shareholders
of the Company, nor an associate (as defined in the Listing
Rules) of any of them. Among the eligible participants of
156,000,000 Options granted, three eligible participants
with 24,000,000 Options granted to them were subsequently
appointed as Director on 12 April 2017 and 1 March 2023
respectively. Among the 25,500,000 Options granted to
Directors, 23,500,000 Options were lapsed upon resignation or
retirement of Directors on 4 May 2018, 21 September 2018, 3
April 2019, 5 March 2021 and 20 June 2023.
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The Options may be exercisable at any time during the option
period, provided that the maximum number of Options which
each Grantee is entitled to exercise at the below period shall
not exceed:

(a) in respect of the period from 30 April 2015 to 29 April
2016, 40% of the total number of Options granted to
him;

(b) in respect of the period from 30 April 2016 to 29 April
2017, 30% of the total number of Options granted to
him; and

(c) in respect of the period from 30 April 2017 to 29 April
2018, 30% of the total number of Options granted to
him.

Set out below is further information on the outstanding options
granted under the 2009 Share Option Scheme as at the date of
this report:
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Number of share options outstanding

HRTERREHR
Approximate
percentage
of issued
share capital
At Lapsed At 31 of the
Category/Name of 1 January during  December Exercise Company
participant Date of grant 2023 the year 2023  price HKD  Exercise period (%)
i fERRRE
i i :3 BIRK
t St 3 T=A BOEI
SHREER /KA REEH -A-B REAX¥ =t-B TEEEx TEH (%)
Executive Director
BITES
Mr. Zhai Yifeng 30 April 2015 2,000,000 - 2,000,000 0.485  30/04/2015 to 0.08
(Appointed with effect ZE-hFNA=TH 29/04/2025
from 1 March 2023) “E-RENA=
BResit TAZEZE-HE
(BZZZ=F=f—Afe MA=thA
BZ)
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Number of share options outstanding
HRTERREHR
Approximate
percentage
of issued
share capital
At Lapsed At 31 of the
Category/Name of 1 January during  December Exercise Company
participant Date of grant 2023 the year 2023  price HKD  Exercise period (%)
7 ERRRE
R ZgC-=fF BITRA
b g2 +ZR LE O
SHEER,/HA REEH -B—-B RERX¥ =t-B f&EEEx &8 (%)
Independent non-executive
Director
BUFBITES
Mr. LAU Sk Yuen 30 April 2015 500,000 (500,000) - 0.485  30/04/2015 to -
(Retired on 20 June 2023) —ZE—HFMA=1A 29/04/2025
BIHREE —Z-nFEA=
(RZZB-=%XA-*+H THEZZ-RE
RfE) MA=TAA
Sub-total
et 2500,000  (500,000) 2,000,000 0.08
Employees 30 April 2015 42,000,000 - 42,000,000 0.485  30/04/2015 to 1.68
&8 “Z-RFMA=1A 29/04/2025
—2-0%
MA=+AZE
“ZE-RF
MA=thA
Sub-total 42,000,000 - 42,000,000 1.68
it
Total 44,500,000 (500,000) 44,000,000 1.76
At
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Notes:

The fair value of options granted on 17 January 2012 and 30 April 2015 under
2009 Share Option Scheme respectively was determined using the “Binomial
Option Pricing Model”. The significant inputs into the model were:

o risk-free rate of return — 1.51% and 1.64% per annum respectively;

o forecast fluctuations in share price — 55.31% and 53.89% respectively;
and

o forecast dividend yield = 2.11% and 0% per annum respectively.

Based on the inputs above to the “Binomial Option Pricing
Model”, the total fair value of the outstanding options as at the
grant date (i.e. 17 January 2012 and 30 April 2015 respectively)
was approximately HKD11,642,000 and HKD28,667,000. The
“Binomial Option Pricing Model” is designed to assess the
fair value of options and is a common choice among various
option pricing models for assessing the fair value of options.
The value of the options depends on the valuation arrived at
based on certain subjective assumptions on variables. Any
changes in the variables used may cause a substantial effect
on the assessment of the fair value of the options.

As at 31 December 2023, the total number of share options
outstanding under the 2009 Share Option Scheme was
44,000,000. During the year ended 31 December 2023,
500,000 share options were lapsed, and no share options
had been granted or cancelled under the 2009 Share Option
Scheme. No further options can be granted pursuant to the
2009 Share Option Scheme.

No share options had been granted under the 2018 Share
Option Scheme since its adoption and there was no
outstanding share option under the 2018 Share Option Scheme
as at 1 January 2023 and 31 December 2023, respectively. The
number of share options available for grant under the scheme
mandate of the 2018 Share Option Scheme was 249,341,398
as at 1 January 2023 and 31 December 2023, respectively.
As at the date of this annual report, the number of securities of
the Company available for issue under the 2018 Share Option
Scheme was 249,341,398, representing approximately 10% of
the issued share capital of the Company as at the date of this
report.
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BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

The total bank and other borrowings of the Group as at 31
December 2023 amounted to approximately RMB3,566.0
million. Particulars of the bank and other borrowings are set out
in note 28 to the consolidated financial statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, the
Company has maintained sufficient public float with at least
25% of the shares held by the public as required by the Listing
Rules as at the date of this report.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors is or was interested in any business
apart from the Group’s business, that competes or is likely to
compete (either directly or indirectly) with the Group’s business
at any time during the year ended 31 December 2023 and up
to the date of this report.

As disclosed in the Prospectus, Fortune Pearl, Mr. Xu Jihua,
Ms. Wang Jianfei, Mr. Xu Da, Mr. Weng Li, Mr. Liu Jingwei, Ms.
Zhou Lusha and Ms. Liu Xiaomei (the “Initial Covenantors”)
entered into the deed of non-competition dated 12 June
2009 (the “2009 Deed of Non-Competition”) in favour of the
Company.

On 30 September 2022, the Company and Fortune Pearl,
Mr. Xu Jihua and Mr. Xu Da (collectively, the “Covenantors”)
entered into a deed of non-competition (as amended
and supplemented by a supplemental deed of non-
competition dated 10 October 2022) (the “2022 Deed of
Non-Competition”) to amend the existing non-competition
undertakings and supersede the 2009 Deed of Non-
Competition. The Covenantors have provided the Group with
written confirmations that they and their associates (other than
members of the Group) have fully complied with the 2022 Deed
of Non-Competition throughout the year ended 31 December
2023.
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The independent non-executive Directors have conducted an
annual review on the Covenantors’ compliance with the 2022
Deed of Non-Competition, the options, pre-emptive rights or
first rights of refusals provided by the Controlling Shareholders
on their existing or future competing businesses.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Covenantors
and their respective close associates did not direct any
Business Opportunity (as defined in the 2022 Deed of Non-
Competition) to the Group. Therefore, the independent non-
executive Directors did not conduct any review on the decision
made in relation to Business Opportunity.

TAXATION OF HOLDERS OF SHARES
Hong Kong China

The purchase, sale and transfer of shares registered in the
Company’s Hong Kong branch register of members will be
subject to Hong Kong stamp duty. The current rate charged on
each of the purchaser and seller (or transferee and transferor)
is 0.1% of the consideration or the value of the shares
being bought/sold or transferred (rounded up to the nearest
HKD’000). In addition, a fixed duty of HKD5.00 is currently
payable on each instrument of transfer of shares.

Cayman Islands

Under the present Cayman Islands laws, transfers and other
dispositions of shares in the Company are exempt from
Cayman Islands stamp duty.

Consultation with professional advisers

Intending holders and investors of the Company’s shares are
recommended to consult their professional advisers if they
are in any doubt as to the taxation implications (including tax
relief) of subscribing for, purchasing, holding, disposing of or
dealing in shares. It is emphasised that none of the Company
or its Directors or officers will accept any responsibility for any
tax effect on, or liabilities of, holders of shares in the Company
resulting from their subscription for, purchase, holding,
disposal of or dealing in such shares.
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AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming annual
general meeting to re-appoint Moore CPA Limited (formerly
known as Moore Stephens CPA Limited) as auditor of the
Company.

On behalf of the Board,

XU Da

Chairman

Guangzhou, 28 March 2024
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management as at the
date of publication of this report are set out below:

DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. XU Da (#}3), aged 39, was appointed as an executive
Director on 9 October 2014. Mr. XU is also the Chairman of
the Group and the Chairman of the Environmental, Social
and Governance Committee of the Board. Mr. XU achieved
a bachelor degree in 2008. Mr. XU has more than 10 years
of working experience in the Group. He joined the Group as
import and export manager in 2009. Mr. XU did not hold other
directorship in any listed companies during the last three
years.

Mr. BAI Tao (H#§), aged 40, was appointed as an executive
Director on 9 October 2014. Mr. BAl is also the Chief Executive
Officer and a member of the remuneration committee,
nomination committee and the Environmental, Social and
Governance Committee of the Board. Mr. BAl is principally
responsible for the Group’s overall management and operation.
Mr. BAI graduated from Cardiff University with a bachelor and
master degree in civil engineering. In 2022, Mr. BAI obtained
a master degree in business administration from Tsinghua
University. He joined the Group as general manager of Zhuhai
Henggqin Coal Exchange Centre in 2012. Prior to joining the
Group in 2012, Mr. BAI worked as a manager of engineering
management department in a company listed in the Shanghai
Stock Exchange. Mr. BAI did not hold other directorship in any
listed companies during the last three years.
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Mr. ZHAI Yifeng (ZfXiI£), aged 40, was appointed as an
executive Director on 1 March 2023. Mr. ZHAl is also a member
of the Environmental, Social and Governance Committee of the
Board. Mr. ZHAI joined the Group in 2008 and is currently the
vice president of the Group and the chairman of the sales and
logistics department of the Group, responsible for overseeing
the logistics and sales of coal. Mr. ZHAI is also a director of
certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. ZHAI has over 14
years of experience in coal marketing and coal import-export
business. Mr. ZHAI did not hold any directorship in any other
listed companies in the past three years.

Ms. DENG Bingjing, aged 39, was appointed as an executive
Director with effect from 19 April 2024. Ms. DENG is the
general manager of the Beijing branch of Zhuhai Qinfa
Logistics Co., Ltd, a subsidiary of the Group. Ms. DENG is
also the wife of Mr. XU Da, the Chairman of the Group and the
daughter-in-law of Mr. XU Jihua, the controlling shareholder
of the Company. Ms. DENG graduated from Cardiff University
in the United Kingdom with a Bachelor of Science degree.
In 2009, Ms. DENG obtained a Master of Science degree in
International Economics, Banking and Finance from Cardiff
University in the United Kingdom. Ms. DENG had worked in
major banks in the PRC and gained experience in financial
products and banking operations. In the past three years, Ms.
DENG did not hold any directorship in other listed companies.
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Independent non-executive Directors

Professor SHA Zhenquan (#iR#), aged 64, has been
an independent non-executive Director of our Company
since September 2018. Prof. SHA is also the Chairman of
the remuneration committee and the nomination committee
of the Board and a member of audit committee. He has
been a professor of the School of Business Administration
of South China University of Technology (EfE T KE)
since April 2003. Professor Sha is a member of the 12th
National Committee of Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference (FRIARBUAH B E®Z 2L E®). Professor
Sha was engaged as a counselor of Guangdong Province
by Guangdong Provincial Government since March 2019.
Professor Sha has been an independent non-executive
director of Canvest Environmental Protection Group Company
Limited (E23RREHHRAF]) (stock code: 1381) since
2014 and Shenzhen Overseas Chinese Town Co., Ltd. (&3l
ZEH KRB AR AT (stock code: 000069) since April 2020,
a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange. He was
an independent director of Shenzhen Noposion Pesticide Co.,
Ltd ORYIFEEERIERHBR A A]) (stock code: 002215) from
December 2009 to December 2015, an independent director
of Sincap Group Limited (stock code: 5UN), a company listed
on Singapore Exchange from May 2012 to September 2014,
an independent director of Dongling International Investment
Co., Ltd. (EMNEZBERIEER KD BRAF]) (formerly known
as Dongling Grain and Oil Co., Ltd. (BN R ZE MM AR
‘A A]))(stock code: 000893) from June 2012 to January 2020,
Letong Chemical Co., Ltd. (3k/82i@(t TIRH B R A 7)) (stock
code: 002319) from August 2013 to August 2019, which are
companies listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange. Professor
Sha obtained a bachelor of science degree in mathematics
from East China Normal University (ZEZREI# AZ) in 1982, a
master’s degree in engineering from South China University of
Technology (ZEfIE T AE) in 1991 and a doctor’s degree in
philosophy from City University of Hong Kong in 2001. Save
as disclosed above, Prof. SHA did not hold any directorship in
other listed companies during the last three years.
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Mr. JING Dacheng (B2 KH), aged 75, was appointed on 3
April 2019 as an independent non-executive Director, member
of the remuneration committee, nomination committee and
audit committee of the Board. Mr. JING is a member of the
Communists’ Party of the PRC and has years of experience
in public service. He was recruited by the military in 1968
and served the positions of soldier, squad leader in the army,
cultural section chief of the political department of guard force
division no.4 of Hebe provincial military region, secretarial
section chief and chief of coordination section of Qinhuangdao
military division. From May 1986 to June 2007, Mr. JING served
as a member of district committee and standing committee
and political committee of the armed forces division of Haigang
District, Qinhuangdao, Hebe Province, CPC Haigang District
designated secretary and executive deputy district chief of
the people’s government of Haigang District and chairman of
the standing committee of the National People’s Congress in
Haigang District. He officially retired from his duties in August
2008. Mr. JING did not hold any directorship in other listed
companies during the last three years.

Mr. HO Ka Yiu Simon, aged 45, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 20 June 2023. Mr. HO
is also the chairman of the audit committee of the Board. Mr.
HO holds a Bachelor degree in Accountancy from The Hong
Kong Polytechnic University. He is an associate member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr.
HO has over 20 years of experience in auditing, professional
accounting and financial management. He has been the chief
financial officer of Cali (Hong Kong) Biosciences Limited, a
biopharmaceutical company, since September 2022. Mr. Ho
served as chief financial officer and company secretary of
Glory Sun Financial Group Limited (stock code: 1282) from
December 2018 to September 2022 and he served as Chief
Financial Officer and company secretary (resigned on June
2014) of China Energy Development Holdings Limited (stock
code:228) (“China Energy”) from May 2011 to December
2018, whose shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Mr. HO was a senior audit
manager in one of the top tier international accounting firms
before joining China Energy in May 2011. Save as disclosed
above, Mr. HO did not hold any directorship in other listed
companies during the last three years.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. QI Jinyuan (B$8JR), aged 55, is the chairman of the
Group’s Coal Mine Division, and is principally responsible for
the management and operation works on coal mine business.
Mr. QI graduated from Renmin University of China in 1990
with a bachelor’'s degree in national economic planning and
management, and obtained a master degree in business
administration from it & & # 4 (Hebei Provincial Party
School) in 2003. Mr. QI has more than 20 years of experience
in the field of investment management and financial planning
with specialty in taxation planning works on financial aspect.
Mr. Ql was appointed as the vice chairman of Shanxi
Huameiao Energy Group Company Limited, a member of the
Group in September 2015 and as the vice president of the
Group in February 2016.

Mr. CHEN Ke (FR#}), aged 41, is the general manager of the
coal mining division of the Group and is responsible for the
management and operation of the coal mining business of the
Group. Mr. CHEN graduated from China University of Mining
and Technology in 2007 with a bachelor’s degree in mining
engineering. Mr. CHEN also obtained a master’s degree
in mining engineering from China University of Mining and
Technology in 2010. Mr. CHEN held key positions as engineer-
in-charge and chief engineer in a subsidiary of Xuzhou Coal
Mining Group, a large state-owned coal enterprise. Since
joining the Group in 2017, Mr. CHEN has held the positions of
engineer-in-charge and mine manager of Chongsheng Coal
Mine of the Group. Mr. Chen was promoted to the deputy
general manager of the coal mining division in 2022 and was
promoted to the general manager in 2023 to head the coal
mining business of the Group. Mr. CHEN has over 12 years
of working experience in the coal mining related industry
and possesses professional qualifications as a senior mining
engineer in the PRC.

Mr. JIA Youliang (EfE R), aged 60, is the deputy general
manager of the coal mining division and is responsible for the
management and operation of the coal mining business of the
Group. Mr. JIA graduated from Shandong University of Science
and Technology in 2013 with a master’s degree in engineering
in the field of mining engineering. Mr. JIA joined the Group
in 2018 as the deputy general manager of the coal mining
division. Mr. JIA has over 10 years of experience in the field of
mining engineering and possesses professional qualifications
as a senior mining engineer in the PRC.
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Mr. LIU Zhaoyi (21Jk%), aged 56, is the mine manager
of Xingtao Coal Mine and is mainly responsible for the
management of Xingtao Coal Mine, a coal mine of the Group.
Mr. LIU joined the Group on 1 March 2018 and was the
deputy general manager of the coal mining business. Mr. LIU
graduated from China University of Mining and Technology
with a bachelor’s degree in mining engineering in 2005 and
obtained a master’s degree in mining engineering from China
University of Mining and Technology in 2013. Prior to joining
the Group, Mr. LIU held the positions of deputy engineer-in-
charge and chairman of the board of directors of a subsidiary
of Xuzhou Coal Mining Group, a large state-owned coal
enterprise. Mr. Liu joined the Group in 2018 as the assistant
general manager of the coal mining division and was promoted
to the chief of the Chongsheng Coal Mine in the same year
and was re-designated to the chief of the Xingtao Coal Mine in
2022. Mr. LIU has over 30 years of experience in production
management and mining technology in the coal industry and
possesses the professional qualifications as a senior engineer
in the PRC.

Mr. Wen Weisheng (X # ), aged 52, is the vice president
of the Group. He is responsible for the Group’s investment
and financing management. Mr. Wen graduated from South
China University of Technology with a Bachelor's Degree in
Business Administration. He has worked in finance and held
middle management positions in Bank of China and Bank of
Communications as well as Fortune 500 private enterprises.
Mr. Wen joined the Group in 2019 and served as assistant to
the president and vice president. Mr. Wen has over 25 years
of working experience in the financial industry in the PRC and
holds certificates of Certified Financial Planner and Senior
International Financial Manager (SIFM) in the PRC.

Mr. OR Chun Wai Dennis (f1{£3), aged 36, is the company
secretary of the Company. He joined the Company in 2017
as the financial manager. He holds a Bachelor of Commerce
(Accounting and Finance) with The University of New South
Wales. He is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. OR
has extensive experience in audit of listed companies and
private companies in different business sectors gained from
international audit firms in Hong Kong.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is dedicated to maintaining and ensuring
high standards of corporate governance practices. The
corporate governance principles of the Company emphasise
on accountability and transparency and are adopted in the
best interest of the Company and its shareholders. The Board
reviews its corporate governance practices from time to time
in order to meet the rising expectations of shareholders and to
fulfil its commitment to excellence in corporate governance.

The Company has adopted the Corporate Governance Code
as set out in Appendix C1 to the Listing Rules as its corporate
governance code of practices since the listing of its shares on
the Stock Exchange. In the opinion of the Board, the Company
had complied with the code provisions as set out in the
Corporate Governance Code throughout the year ended 31
December 2023.

The Board recognises that corporate governance should be
the collective responsibility of Directors and their corporate
governance duties include:

- to develop and review the policies and practices of
the Company on corporate governance and make
recommendations;

- to review and monitor the training and professional
development of the Directors and senior management;

- to monitor and review the policies and practices of
the Company in compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

- to develop, monitor and review the code of conduct
and compliance manual applicable to the Directors and
employees; and

- to review the Company’s compliance with the Code
Provisions of the CG Code and disclosure in the
corporate governance report.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Responsibilities and Delegation

The Board is charged with providing effective and responsible
leadership for the Company. The Board takes responsibility
to oversee all major matters of the Company, including the
formulation and approval of the Group’s overall objectives
and strategies, internal control and risk management
systems, monitoring its operating and financial performance,
performing the corporate governance duties and evaluating
the performance of the senior management. The Directors,
individually and collectively, have to make decisions objectively
in the best interests of the Company and its shareholders.

All Directors have access to the senior management of the
Group and the company secretary. Management information
is provided to enable them to participate at the meetings or
as and when requested. The company secretary provides
secretarial support to the Board and ensures adherence to
Board procedures and the relevant rules and regulations which
are applicable to the Company.

The Board reserves for its decision on all major matters of
the Company, including the approval and monitoring of all
policy matters, overall strategies and budgets, internal control
and risk management systems, material transactions (in
particular those that may involve conflict of interests), financial
information, appointment of directors and other significant
financial and operational matters.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation
of the Company are managed by the executive Directors and
senior management of the Company under the leadership
of the Chief Executive Officer. The Board has delegated
a schedule of responsibilities to these officers for the
implementation of Board decisions. The Board periodically
reviews the delegated functions and work tasks. Prior to
entering into any significant transactions, the aforesaid officers
have to obtain Board approval.

Board composition
The Board currently consists of seven Directors, four of whom

are executive Directors and three are independent non-
executive Directors.
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Executive Directors:

Mr. XU Da (Chairman)

Mr. BAI Tao (Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. ZHAI Yifeng (appointed with effect on 1 March 2023)
Ms. DENG Bingjing (appointed with effect on 19 April 2024)
Mr. TAN Yingzhong (resigned on 1 March 2023)

Independent non-executive Directors:

Prof. SHA Zhenquan
Mr. JING Dacheng
Mr. HO Ka Yiu Simon
(appointed with effect from 20 June 2023)
Mr. LAU Sik Yuen (retired on 20 June 2023)

All executive Directors are responsible for implementing the
business strategies and managing the business of the Group
in accordance with all applicable rules and regulations,
including, but not limited to, the Listing Rules. All Directors
(including the independent non-executive Directors) have
been consulted on all major and material matters of the Group.
The Company maintains appropriate directors’ and officers’
liabilities insurance.

The number of independent non-executive Directors has met
the requirements under the Listing Rules and Mr. HO Ka Yiu
Simon has appropriate accounting professional qualifications.
The independent non-executive Directors bring a variety
of experience and expertise to the Company. Biographical
details of the independent non-executive Directors are set
out on pages 68 to 69 of this annual report. Each of the
independent non-executive Directors has confirmed in writing
of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Board is of the view that all independent non-executive
Directors meet the independence guidelines set out in Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Each of the Directors is engaged on a service contract (in the
case of the executive Directors) or a letter of appointment (in
the case of the independent non-executive Directors) for a
specific term of three years.

All the appointments of Directors are subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting of the
Company in accordance with the Articles.
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Minutes of Board meetings are being kept by the company

secretary of the Company and are available for inspection by

the Directors.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Company held &=
an annual general meeting, and the Board held seven Board
meetings, all of which were convened in accordance with the
Articles, and the individual attendance of each Director is set

out below:
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Number of attendance/Number of
meetings entitled to attend

HEREEREERE
General Board
Meeting Meeting
Name of Directors EEHR BRAE EEggR
Mr. XU Da mERSE 11 5/7
Mr. BAI Tao E it 11 6/7
Mr. ZHAI Yifeng (appointed with BREXEBZZ-_=F 1/1 5/6
effect from 1 March 2023) ZA—HBREZMD
Ms. DENG Bingjing (appointed with Bkmzt+t(BZFMEF 0/0 0/0
effect on 19 April 2024) A+ B RERE)
Mr. TAN Yingzhong (resigned with BMEEE(E_T_=F 0/0 0/1
effect from 1 March 2023) = A—HRBEHIT)
Mr. LAU Sik Yuen BHREEMN_T_=F 11 3/3
(retired on 20 June 2023) NAZ+TBRMT)
Prof. SHA Zhenquan D IRREHIR 1/1 717
Mr. JING Dacheng HAKEE 1/1 77
Mr. HO Ka Yiu Simon (appointed with ARREE(B_T_=F 0/0 4/4
effect from 20 June 2023) NAZTHEEZT)
CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER FERITHEAR

Mr. XU Da is the chairman of the Board and an executive

EXEeIRFRUTESHELRLAANEREE

Director, responsible for providing advice for the overall REBBERIEHER @ TEBEZEESEF - Hi1T

management and strategic development and overseeing the ZEZHE§ 5"‘5%% THBHE  BEASEERE
operation of the Board. Mr. BAl Tao, an executive Director, £ Pt¥HRE KEBEUANEBRAEEE - =

FERITBARZBELBEB R D
SR 2 ST e

is the Chief Executive Officer, who is responsible for the  MEIRE )
Group’s overall management, corporate development,
strategic planning and the supervision of day-to-day operation.
The segregation of duties and responsibilities between the
chairman and the chief executive officer ensures a balance of

power and authority.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Board established a remuneration committee on 12 June
2009 with specific written terms of reference. The remuneration
committee consists of an executive Director, Mr. BAI Tao and
two independent non-executive Directors, namely Prof. SHA
Zhenquan and Mr. JING Dacheng. Prof. SHA Zhenquan is the
chairperson of the remuneration committee of the Board.

The primary duties of the remuneration committee of the
Board are to review and determine the terms of remuneration
packages, bonuses and other compensation payable to the
Directors and senior management of the Group, as well as
matters relating to share schemes under Chapter 17 of the
Listing Rules. The remuneration committee is also responsible
for establishing transparent procedures for developing such
remuneration policy and structure to ensure that no Director or
any of his/her close associates will participate in deciding his/
her own remuneration, which remuneration will be determined
by reference to the performance of the individual and the
Company as well as market practice and conditions.

Pursuant to code provision E.1.5 of the CG Code, the
remuneration of the senior management by band for the
year ended 31 December 2023 is set out in note 13 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The remuneration committee held three meetings during 2023
to assess performance of executive Directors and certain
senior management and review their remuneration. The
duties of the remuneration committee include determining,
with delegated responsibility, the remuneration packages of
Directors and senior management. All the members attended
the meetings.

FMEES
R—=

- ZTNFRNATZBRIFMZE
T UHITEBNEARERE FHEZESE
B RRTEFAHREELMEBILIFNTE
= D IRBEHEREFAKEL - DIREHERS
EEeFMERREEXRE -

FINEZE eI ZRENEHNNMEEHTMEE - L
ANENAEEEERSREEBCHMF S
sk - AR EMBRUE+EEBR T ABERNE
FNEE - FHZESTRAERYAEREZR
FF- ABRERBHFMBR AR  BRBEES
FREMETHEALTHSERERZ BEAH
- BEHFMK2EEARKRRBRBERA LTS
EBHRARETE -

RBERERTRZ TR FEEAK  #E=
T =F+_A=+—HIFESRERERS
BIE| D 2 HINE AR & I SRR RE3

FHMEEER T _=—FRARTT=ZREH " A
HERTEERETEMEEENRIR N Rigst
HHFM - HZ B ENBEERERTREEEE
EENRRERENFINES - FAKEHAR

[FEw

Number of

attendance/

Number of

meetings entitled

to attend

HERE,

Name of Directors EEHA BREERE
Mr. BAI Tao HEEEAE 3/3
Prof. SHA Zhenquan IR 3/3
Mr. JING Dacheng AR 3/3
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Board established a nomination committee on 12 June
2009 with specific written terms of reference. The nomination
committee consists of an executive Director, Mr. BAI Tao and
two independent non-executive Directors, namely Prof. SHA
Zhenqguan and Mr. JING Dacheng. Prof. SHA Zhenquan is the
chairperson of the nomination committee of the Board.

The primary duties of the nomination committee of the Board
include determining the policy for the nomination of Directors,
making recommendations to the Board on the appointment
and succession planning of Directors, and assessing of the
independence of the independent non-executive Directors.
The nomination committee carries out the process of
selecting and recommending candidates for directorships
by making reference to the skills, experience, professional
knowledge, personal integrity and time commitments of such
individuals, the Company’s needs and other relevant statutory
requirements and regulations.

The nomination committee held three meetings during 2023
to ensure that the Board has a balance of expertise, skills
and experience appropriate to meet the requirements of the
business of the Company. The nomination committee also
evaluated the effectiveness of the board diversity policy. All the
members attended the meetings.
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Number of

attendance/

Number of

meetings entitled

to attend

HERE,

Name of Directors EEHA BRHERE
Mr. BAI Tao HEEAEE 3/3
Prof. SHA Zhenquan D IRBEH IR 3/3
Mr. JING Dacheng BRI A& 3/3
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APPOINTMENTS, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL OF
DIRECTORS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service
contract with the Company for an initial term of three years.
Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered
into renewed appointment letters with the Company for a term
of three years. Such term is subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election at the Company’s annual general meeting in
accordance with the Articles.

NOMINATION POLICY

The Company formulated the nomination policy, which
set out the key selection criteria and procedures for the
Nomination Committee of the Company to nominate and make
recommendation to the board of directors of the Company on
the appointment of directors and re-election for directors.

1) Nomination criteria

The Nomination Committee shall consider a number
of selection criteria when assessing the suitability of a
proposed candidate, including but not limited to the
following:

(a) personal ethics, reputation and integrity;

(b) professional qualifications, skills, knowledge and
experience that are relevant to the Company’s
businesses and corporate development and
strategy;

(c) willingness and ability to devote adequate time
to discharge the duties as a director and to make
required commitments;

(d) compliance with the criteria of independence
as prescribed under Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules for the appointment of independent non-
executive Directors;
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the “Board Diversity Policy” adopted by the
Company for achieving diversity on the Board
with reference to the Company’s business model
and specific needs, including but not limited to
gender, age, educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and
length of service;

applicable legal and regulatory requirements;
and

any other relevant factors as may be determined
by the Nomination Committee or the Board from
time to time.

Nomination Procedures

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

For filling a casual vacancy or appointing an
additional director to the Board, the Nomination
Committee may select and evaluate such
candidate based on the criteria as set out above
to determine whether such candidate is qualified
for directorship.

For any person that is nominated by a
shareholder for election as a director at the
general meeting of the Company, the Nomination
Committee should evaluate such candidate
based on the criteria as set out above to
determine whether such candidate is qualified.

For the re-election of Director at General
Meeting, the Nomination Committee should
also review and determine whether the retiring
director continues to meet the criteria as set out
above.

On making recommendation, the Nomination
Committee may submit the candidate’s personal
profile to the Board for consideration.

The Board shall have the final decision on all
matters relating to the recommendation of a
candidate to stand for election at a general
meeting.

()

(e)

()
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(f) Where appropriate, the Nomination Committee
and/or the Board should make recommendation
to shareholders in respect of the proposed
election of director at the general meeting.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
COMMITTEE

The Board established an Environmental, Social and
Governance Committee on 6 December 2021 with specific
written terms of reference. The Environmental, Social and
Governance Committee consists of three executive Directors,
namely Mr. XU Da, Mr. BAI Tao, Mr. ZHAI Yifeng (appointed
with effect from 1 March 2023) and Mr. TAN Yingzhong
(resigned with effect from 1 March 2023). Mr. XU Da is the
chairperson of the Environmental, Social and Governance
Committee of the Board.

The primary duties of the Environmental, Social and
Governance Committee of the Board are to assist the Board in
guiding and monitoring the formulation and implementation of
the environmental, social and governance (“ESG”) policy and
work of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”), and to
regularly review the results to ensure compliance with relevant
laws, regulations, standards and regulatory requirements.

The Environmental, Social and Governance Committee
held one meeting during 2023 to formulate and review the
environmental, social and governance responsibilities, visions,
strategies, framework, principles and policies of the Group
and make recommendations to the Board of Directors. All the
members attended the meeting.
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Number of

attendance/

Number of

meetings entitled

to attend

HERE,

Name of Directors EEHA BRHEERE

Mr. XU Da mESE 1/1

Mr. BAIl Tao ShEbites 1/1

Mr. ZHAI Yifeng (appointed with effect BRESRE(BEZE_=F=A —HRBEZET) 1/1
from 1 March 2023)

Mr. TAN Yingzhong (resigned with effect BERBRAEE(BE T =F= A —HEHMT) 0/0

from 1 March 2023)
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company formulated the board diversity policy, which set
out the requirements for diversity in Board members and the
principles for the selection of Directors.

1) Policy summary

To achieve sustainable and balanced development, the
Company sees increased diversity at the Board level as
an essential element in supporting the attainment of its
strategic objectives and its sustainable development.
In planning the Board’s composition, board diversity
needs to be considered from a number of aspects,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. All
Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and
candidates will be considered against objective criteria,
having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the
Board.

(2) Quantifiable measurers and the progress of the
Board Diversity Policy

Selection of candidates of the Company will be based
on a range of diversity perspectives, including but
not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. The ultimate decision
will be based on merit and contribution that the selected
candidates will bring to the Board.

During the reporting period, the nomination committee
reviewed the composition of the Board and concluded
that the Company had met the diversification requirements
with regard to age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills and knowledge. When making
the appointment and re-appointment of Directors in the future,
the nomination committee will nominate new Directors pursuant
to the requirements of the board diversity policy to achieve the
objective of diversity in Board members.
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Measurable objectives include (i) at least one third of the
Board shall be independent non-executive Directors; (ii) at
least one Director is female and (iii) at least one Director shall
have obtained accounting or other professional qualifications.
During the reporting period, items (i) and (iii) have been
fulfilled. Whereas in respect of item (ii), a female director has
been appointed on 19 April 2024.

Gender ratio of employees of the Group as at 31 December
2023 by functions is:

7

A ENERBEE (2P =Z02 - WEFEX
BRBIFATES : (NEL—REBFRKIE
RiNEL>—RBEFCSEAHAEMERER -
REEHR - ()R (i)BDFEWRE - #EREI)
B —HRUEFCR_FT_NFOA+ILEE
FiE-

/

RZFB-_=F+-A=1t—R0 AEERELH
BERVMERILL RN

Number of Number of

male employees female employees

Functions Bige EHEEHA ZHREEHA
Senior management BREEE 10 0
Middle management FRERE 54 5
Administration fTBRAE 557 142
Operation ZEAB 2,496 94
Total =E 3,117 231

The Board has appointed a female director on 19 April 2024,
after which the Board comprises seven Directors, one of which
is female. Male has significant portion in middle management
and operation possibly due to the industry characteristic
that male is traditionally more interested to attend tertiary
education in coal mining engineering than female. Moreover,
the coal mining industry is more attractive to male employee
possibly because there are certain limitations for female in the
underground coal mine such as physically demanding works.
Moreover, the Group strived to maintain gender diversity in
administration function to the possible extent. It is noted that
the administration function has 20.31% of female employees.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

Under the Dividend Policy, the Board has the discretion to
declare and distribute dividends to the shareholders of the
Company, subject to the articles of association of the Company
and all applicable laws and regulations.

In deciding whether to propose a dividend and in determining
the dividend amount, the Board shall consider the following
factors before declaring or recommending dividends:

- operating and financial results;

- cash flow position;

- working capital requirements and expenditure plan;
- interests of shareholders;

- business conditions and strategies;

- taxation considerations;

- restriction on distribution of dividends under the relevant
laws, rules and regulations; and

- any other factors that the Board may consider relevant.

In accordance with the Articles of Association, any dividend
unclaimed for one year after having been declared may
be invested or otherwise made use of by the Board for
the benefit of the Company until claimed. Any dividend or
bonuses unclaimed after a period of six years from the date of
declaration shall be forfeited and shall revert to the Company.
The payment by the Board of any unclaimed dividend or other
sums payable on or in respect of a share in a separate account
shall not constitute the Company a trustee in respect thereof.

The Company will review the Dividend Policy periodically.
There can be no assurance that dividends will be paid in any
particular amount for any given period or at all.
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MODEL CODE FOR DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its code of
conduct regarding directors’ securities transactions. Directors
are reminded of their obligations under the Model Code on
a regular basis. Following specific enquiry by the Company,
all Directors have confirmed that they have complied with
the required standard set out in the Model Code throughout
the year ended 31 December 2023 and up to the date of this
report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Board established an audit committee on 12 June 2009
with specific written terms of reference. The audit committee
consists of three independent non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. HO Ka Yiu Simon, Prof. SHA Zhenquan and Mr. JING
Dacheng. Mr. HO Ka Yiu Simon is the chairperson of the audit
committee of the Board.

The primary duties of the audit committee are to review and
approve the Group’s financial reporting process and internal
control system. The audit committee had reviewed the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2023 and had also discussed auditing, internal
control and financial reporting matters including accounting
practices and principles adopted by the Group.

The audit committee has also monitored the integrity of the
financial statements, annual report and accounts and interim
report and reviewed significant financial reporting judgements
contained therein.
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During the year, the audit committee held three meetings and
all the members attended the meetings.

TEERRE
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Number of

attendance/

Number of

meetings entitled

to attend

HERE,

Name of Directors EEHA BRHERE

Mr. HO Ka Yiu Simon (OE=: e 2/2
(appointed with effect from 20 June 2023) (BZEZ=FAZTHREZT)

Prof. SHA Zhenquan IR 3/3

Mr. JING Dacheng R A 3/3

Mr. LAU Sik Yuen (retired on 20 June 2023) RHIREEMR_Z=F"A=Z+HEME 1/1

During the meetings, the audit committee had reviewed and
recommended the Company’s results announcements and
annual report for the year ended 31 December 2023 and
interim report for the six months ended 30 June 2023 to the
Board for approval. The audit committee also reviewed the
accounting issues raised by the independent auditor of the
Company in respect of the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2023 and the relevant issues
as described in the paragraphs under “Risk Management and
Internal control” below.

DIRECTORS’ INDUCTION AND CONTINUOUS
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

The Group provides to all the Directors a comprehensive
induction package which includes introduction on the
business operations, internal procedures and general policy
of the Company and a summary of statutory and regulatory
obligations of directors under the Listing Rules and other
relevant laws and regulations. During the year, the Directors
are provided with regular updates on the Group’s business,
operations, risk management and corporate governance
matters to enable the Board as a whole and each Director to
discharge their duties. The Directors are also encouraged
to attend both in-house training and training provided by
independent service providers. According to the training
records provided by the Directors to the Company, each of
the directors, namely, Mr. XU Da , Mr. BAl Tao , Mr. ZHAI
Yifeng, Prof. SHA Zhenquan, Mr. JING Dacheng and Mr. HO
Ka Yiu Simon has confirmed that he/she has obtained reading
and training materials during the year under review and has
attended the trainings in relation to various aspects, including
but not limited to, Director’s duties, update on the Listing Rules
amendments and corporate governance practices. In addition,
the Group regularly offers online training to each Director.
During the year, the Group organised 2 hours training to each
Director.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibility for evaluating and
determining the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to
take in achieving the Group’s strategic objectives, maintaining
sound systems of risk management and internal controls and
reviewing their effectiveness to safeguard interests of the
Group as a whole. These systems are designed to manage
rather than eliminate the risk of failing to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable but not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss.

Under code provision D.2.5 of the CG Code, the Group should
have an internal audit function. The Company has no internal
audit function because the Company has engaged an external
risk advisory expert to review the Group’s internal control
system, and report to and advise the Audit Committee and
the Board on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.
The Audit Committee has communicated with the external risk
advisory expert to understand if there is any material control
deficiency. The implementation of the internal control system
has been considered effective by the Audit Committee and
the Board. Nevertheless, the Company will review the need for
an internal audit function on an annual basis. The Group has
also adopted internal control policies to manage and minimise
financial and other risks, ensuring timely and accurate
preparation and reporting of financial information, and
monitoring compliance with laws by the senior management of
the Group in the performance of their duties.

The management of the Group is responsible for designing,
maintaining, implementing and monitoring of the risk
management and internal control system and ensuring that
the Group established and maintained appropriate and
effective systems. Management also assists the Board in
the implementation of the Group’s policies, procedures and
controls by identifying and assessing the risks faced, and
in the design, operation and monitoring of suitable internal
controls to mitigate and control these risks.
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The Group has established an audit committee under the
Board, which has the functions of monitoring compliance
with laws by the Group’s senior management and in its daily
operations, and of carrying out investigations for suspected
breaches of law. The Company convened meetings with the
audit committee periodically to discuss financial, operational
and compliance controls and risk management functions.
Moreover, the Audit Committee assists the Board in leading
the management and overseeing their design, implementing
and monitoring of the risk management and internal control
systems.

The Board reviewed the effectiveness of risk management
process and risk management report including key risks and
mitigation measure, in which it oversaw the development and
implementation of the Group’s risk management system. The
risk management and internal control systems are reviewed
every year and the review covered the period of the year
ended 31 December 2028.

The Board has reviewed the effectiveness of systems and
considered that, for the year ended 31 December 2023, the
risk management and internal control system and procedures
of the Group were reasonably effective and adequate, and no
material deficiencies has been identified.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
Consolidated Financial Statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
Directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless the Directors either intend to
liquidate the group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The Directors have also selected suitable accounting
policies and applied them consistently, adopted appropriate
International Financial Reporting Standards, and made prudent
and reasonable judgements and estimates, and have prepared
the consolidated financial statements on a going concern
basis. The Directors also warrant that the Group’s consolidated
financial statements will be published in a timely manner.

The Directors are assisted by the audit committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

The statement of the auditor of the Group about their reporting
responsibilities for the consolidated financial statements of the
Group is set out in the section headed “Independent Auditor’s
Report” on pages 145 to 158 of this report.

MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO GOING
CONCERN

We draw attention to note 2 to the consolidated financial
statements, which highlights that the Group had net current
liabilities of approximately RMB3,324,762,000. As at 31
December 2023, the borrowings and accrued interest
amounting to an aggregate amount of approximately
RMB492,444,000 and approximately RMB176,405,000
respectively had been due for immediate payment. In addition,
as at 31 December 2023, there were several unsettled
litigations against the Group mainly requesting the Group to
repay certain payables with interest immediately.

These conditions, along with other matters as set forth in note 2
to the consolidated financial statements, indicate the existence
of material uncertainties which may cast significant doubt over
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. Our opinion
is not modified in respect of these matter.
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In order to improve the Group’s financial position, immediate
liquidity and cash flows, and otherwise to sustain the Group as
a going concern, the directors of the Company have adopted
several measures together with other measures in progress
as set forth in note 2 to the consolidated financial statements.
The directors consider that, to the best of their knowledge,
information and belief, having made all reasonable enquiries,
they are not aware of any other material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. Accordingly,
the Directors consider the Group will be able to continue to
operate as a going concern.

The independent auditors opinion is not modified in respect of
these matters and the statement of the independent auditors
of the Company, Moore CPA Limited, about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group is set
out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 145 to 158.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION
For the year ended 31 December 2023, the remuneration to

the Group’s external auditor in respect of audit and non-audit
services provided to the Group is set forth below:

TEERRE

WMINFEA B RRITT2ME - RUEAEEZ
FMBAR - ISR ABEERIRER - K
LEASEBENGEREELLZE  ARrE
EERMETHERMEMERTLIEET -EF
RE - ARFEH R EERERM - BE
KR WEYTABEL G| BHAEERFE
RERNETENERNSMHABRERBNEMR
HEBANEEYE - At - EFRE - AREHS

BRENFFEKE -

B ZEMER W ARRZERTEEL B © kA
RABUZEMAESEESTMELARA
AEREHAEENERENBRETHERTD
A B R EEN RS £ 145651588 ©

ZE AT &
BE-Z-=F+-A=+—BHILEE  x&£H

ZINBRZBE A AR BIR 2 Bz R IFEZIRTE
Z BT

RMB’000

AREFIT

Audit services ZE RS 2,380
Non-audit services* IERZ RS * 1,070
Total A 3,450

Non-audit services related to agreed-upon procedures for assisting the
Company review its condensed consolidated financial statements of
the Group for the six months ended 30 June 2023 and letters on major
transaction during the year.

FFRBRBE A M ARBEHNAKEBRE_T =4
NAZTREREANEALGA BRI ZEERF
IAREFERNEBRZZH RN -
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS RELATIONS

The Company strictly complies with and implements the Listing
Rules to disclose discloseable information on a true, accurate,
complete and timely basis and all other information that might
have significant impact on the decisions of shareholders and
other concerned parties in an active and timely manner. Also,
the Company takes effort in ensuring all shareholders have
equal access to information.

The Group encourages effective communication with both
private and institutional investors and responds to their
enquiries in an informative and timely manner. The Group
has established various forms of communication channels
to improve its transparency, including regular updates
on its corporate information on the Company’s website
(www.ginfagroup.com) in both English and Chinese. An annual
general meeting is called each year and the Directors are
available at the annual general meeting to answer questions on
the Group’s business. Shareholders and stakeholders are also
encouraged to email their views to ir@ginfagroup.com.

The Company has reviewed the implementation and
effectiveness of the shareholder communication policy and
considers that the Company has established an effective
channel of communication with its shareholders.

The management believes that effective communication with
the investment community is essential. The executive Directors
and the chief financial officer of the Company hold regular
briefings and results presentation, attend investor forums and
respond to investors’ call-in enquiries, participate in interviews
with institutional investors and financial analysts in the PRC,
Hong Kong and overseas countries to keep them abreast
of the Company’s business and development as well as
operating strategies and prospects. In delivering information
to investors, the Company also listens to their advice and
collects the feedback from them, in the interests of developing
an interactive and mutually beneficial relationship with the
Company’s investors.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate
resolution is proposed for each substantially separate issue
at shareholder meetings, including the election of individual
directors.

All resolutions put forward at shareholder meetings will be
voted on by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results
will be posted on the websites of the Company and of the
Stock Exchange after each shareholder meeting.

Shareholder(s) holding not less than one-tenth of the paid up
capital of the Company can make a written requisition to the
Board or the Company secretary to convene an extraordinary
general meeting pursuant to article 58 of the Company’s
articles of association. The written requisition must state the
objects of the meeting, and must be signed by the relevant
shareholder(s) and deposited at the registered office of the
Company, which is presently situated at Room 5706, 57th
Floor, Central Plaza, No. 18 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong
Kong China. The same procedure also applies to any proposal
to be tabled at shareholder meetings.

The Company welcomes enquires from shareholders. The
Board will review shareholders’ enquires on a regular basis.
Specific enquiries and suggestions by shareholders can
be sent in writing to the Board or the Company Secretary.
Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the
general meetings of the Company.

AMENDMENTS TO CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There has been no significant change in the Company’s
constitutional document during the year ended 31 December
2023.

On 28 March 2024, the board of directors of the Company
announced that it proposed to amend the existing amended
and restated articles of association of the Company (the
“Articles”) at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company, for the purpose of, among others, bringing the
Articles in line with the latest regulatory requirements in relation
to the expanded paperless listing regime and electronic
dissemination of corporate communications by listed issuers
and the relevant amendments made to the Listing Rules
which took effect on 31 December 2023, as well as other
housekeeping changes.

For details, please refer to the circular for the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company to be despatched to
the Shareholders in due course.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT
PURPOSE AND OBJECTIVE

China Qinfa Group Limited (“Qinfa” or the “Company”, together
with its subsidiaries the “Group” or “We”) is pleased to publish
the eighth Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”)
report (the “Report”) to our stakeholders. The Report presents
stakeholders with a clear overview of our ESG management
approach, measures and performance of our material
sustainability issues, with an aim to strengthen their confidence
and understanding of the Group and our ESG efforts.

REPORTING SCOPE AND PERIOD

Unless otherwise stated, the reporting scope includes the
operations at our Guangzhou office, Xingtao Coal Mine and
Fengxi Coal Mine, which account for approximately 76.80% of
the Group’s total revenue for the period from 1 January 2023 to
31 December 2023 (the “Reporting Period” or “FY2023”). The
reporting scope is determined by the materiality of each entity
to our business and operations, as well as its ESG impacts.

REPORTING STANDARDS

The Report has been prepared in accordance with the latest
disclosure requirements of the Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Guide (the “ESG Reporting Guide”) as
set out in Appendix C2 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities (the “Listing Rules”) issued by The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “HKEX”").
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This Report has been prepared in accordance with the four
reporting principles below, as stipulated in the ESG Reporting

Guide:

Reporting Principle
HwEREA

Description

e

HERA

The Group’s Response
AEBEEE

A& Ty BIESGHMEE S| - REBETIIHARS
[RRIGREL

Materiality
EEM

Quantitative
21t

Balance
T

The Report should cover ESG
issues that are sufficiently important
to investors and other stakeholders.
HERRERREEREMPBNE
METHEZNESGEE °

The Report should disclose key
performance indicators (“KPI”) that
are measurable. Targets should be
set to reduce a particular impact.
Quantitative information should
be accompanied by a narrative,
explaining its purpose, impacts
and giving comparative data where
appropriate.

HERKE @S BEEERER
(TAREMXER]) - BRERDE
EXENERE - ELEAEHMEN
HmEEENREE  WEKIRE
LB -

The Report should provide an
unbiased picture of the Group’s
performance, and should
avoid selections, omissions, or
presentation formats that may
inappropriately influence a decision
or judgement by the report reader.
BREBRDNEMRBRAERER - I
@R TN EHE X ERSEER
KA HEHEE  BRRAB
o

The Group identifies and prioritises material
ESG issues through stakeholder engagement
and materiality assessment. For more details,
please refer to the sections “Stakeholder
Engagement” and “Materiality Assessment”.
AEEBBF/NESLELEZRFERIIEKR
ESGRRE - WHHETBEYF - FEF2H
[(FHE2E|RIEEHTH]ZE -

The Report discloses its environmental and
social KPIs in a quantitative manner, where
appropriate.
HREFARUECTARELRER L SRES
MR -

The Report presents both achievements and
challenges in an objective manner, to provide
a balanced and unbiased picture of the
Group’s ESG performance.
HMENTEH A 2500 B8 - LAFE -
NIEH R AR AR EBESGRIR ©
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Reporting Principle Description The Group’s Response

HERA B Z< 5L @ O] e

Consistency The methodologies used to Unless otherwise stated, the reporting scope
— Bt calculate the KPIs in this Report and methodologies are consistent with

should be consistent with those
used in the previous year, to allow
for meaningful comparisons of ESG
data over time.

AmEPARABEBRENERD
FEREFFE—B  WEHTR
R HHESGEUIBETTE ER LR o

ACCESS TO THE REPORT

As part of the Group’s annual report, this Report has been
prepared in both English and Chinese. It is available on the
official website of the Group, as well as the website of the
HKEX. In case of any discrepancy between these two versions,
the English version shall prevail.

YOUR FEEDBACK

Your feedback on our sustainability performance and
reporting is key to our continual improvement on sustainable
development. We invite you to share your comments using any
of the following means:

Address: Room 2201-2208, 22/F,
South Tower, Poly International Plaza,
No. 1, Pazhou Avenue East,
Haizhu District,
Guangzhou City
Telephone:  86-020-89898239

Email: ir@ginfagroup.com
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those adopted in the previous year, with
comparative data being disclosed in this
Report. Explanations have been provided
on any changes to the reporting scope and
methodologies as compared to the previous
year in the Report.

BREBHAN KR ENHRESEHE R TRE
FE—8 URAREPEBELEREE - BE
R R EEE R AR FFRAEL T E
PIHEAT R -

E®E

ERAREFERE D - AREUPEXR
B ABREARAKEE HBERAERXAEME
B o RERRAMAB I - AR SRASE -

BATzER

ATHRMANAFEEREAREBENONRER
R REATEHSENSEERNOBRE - BT
EBUTHARKTER -

ik o BN
B R
EMARERE
R BER EIS RS
22182201 FE 2208 =

EBEE | 86-020—-89898239

FE : ir@ginfagroup.com



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RiIR - HERERRE

ABOUT QINFA A
OUR BUSINESS OVERVIEW #5750 R

Established in 1996 and listed on the Main Board of the HKEX ~H&Z R — N NNFRIYL TR _ZETNAFRER
since 2009, Qinfa has grown into a leading non-state owned  FTEiR T - MEBEK ATEELNIEREH
thermal coal supplier in China. Central to the Group’s success N ER - AEBRINNERERE —2/1 8
is its integrated coal supply chain, which underpins its core  MER{tEsE - L EE T EZREBMZOER -
businesses, including: B

Coal Business
Coal mining, purchases and sales, filtering, storage and blending of coal in the PRC

R BIERE - BRI - B - KRR

OUR CULTURE E 398

Vision =

. Become an influential, producing and transporting and ~ ® KABRNAEZE NN  EEHFEaE 8
sales highly integrated energy group company. {ERgEIREE R A]
By constantly improving the quality of customer service BBTEHRAZTEREMEMEE ] &
and creating sustainable profit growth pattern, build EEABEAB T SCENRERFES
up enterprise strategic competition advantage, enlarge BARPEREN D  EXNPERES -
economics of scale, and achieve corporate vision.

Core Value BiEE

. Integrity, Tolerance, Creativity, Brilliance, Responsibility, BWiE 2R AF 28 B KE
Sharing
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OUR APPROACH TO SUSTAINABILITY

SUSTAINABILITY MANAGEMENT APPROACH AND
STRATEGY

As a committed corporate citizen, we strive to integrate
sustainability into our business operations and foster a culture
of responsibility. Our dedication is reflected in our sustainability
strategy, which has been approved by the Board. Built upon
four key pillars with corresponding goals and targets, our
sustainability strategy, together with our ESG policy, guide our
efforts on driving positive change to create a better and more
resilient future for all our stakeholders.

Approach:
Provide outstanding coal products and services that
meet and exceed customers’ expectations

Fet:

Rt E R R Em MR - MR BEEFH AR
Goal:

To enhance the quality of our products and services
to increase customer satisfaction
BE:

RAERMRBEER -
ReEEFPMER

Product
Excellence

FHEm

People
Empowerment

ERES

Approach:

Create a safe, inclusive and
nurturing work environment for
our employees to grow

Ft:
REERREELZE - BRRREIFERE
Goal:

To strengthen employee well-being, training and
occupational health and safety measures

B :

MR B TEA - il B EFEL2REE
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Operations

Community

BAINTIFRERRES &

AHFERREELH KRR

ER—RBANGEAR  HABNKAFHEE
BRRAXBLED  UHBEEUL - AIHEE
RRBEEBRBFINERGEE  ZRBCESES
GHUE - AIHEERRBUANAIERER - I
EHEREER  HESGHRRARBERMB N
HBREBEE  RAAERNEAEEXY - EF
FIERIARIE o

Approach:

Strengthen our climate resilience and reduce our

environmental footprint for a greener future

T &t

I RIREE S - WP RRERY -
BIET IR BRI

Goal:

To reduce our greenhouse gas and waste emissions,

while enhancing energy and water efficiency
B
AR E RIS MY -
R = AR AR e

Please refer to the section

headed “Green Operations”
for our green targets

BREEFIEREFIE - 752 2 25]
[AREEE] —F »

Green

BedsE

Thriving Approach:

Care for our community to
promote harmonious social
development
Fét:
REMFNEER

RO -

Goal:
To enhance community investment contributions
in line with community needs

B

REHRFBE - adRE AR
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SUSTAINABILITY GOVERNANCE AND BOARD’S
OVERSIGHT

Sound ESG governance is key to driving the long-term
success and value of the Group. As such, we have established
a robust ESG governance structure to enhance our ESG
performance. The Board of Directors (the “Board”) bears the
ultimate responsibility for our ESG strategy and reporting, and
provides oversight of ESG issues, including our sustainability
management approach, strategies and measures.

Delegated by the Board, the ESG Committee is responsible
for further assisting the Board in overseeing the Group’s
ESG management approach and strategy, as well as
evaluating, prioritising and managing material ESG-related
issues (including risks). The ESG Committee leads the ESG
Taskforce, which is also authorised by the Board and consists
of the heads of all functional departments, to implement our
sustainability policies. The ESG Committee, which is led by
board members and composed of three executive directors,
reports to the Board on an annual basis.

RE - HERERERE

IREARRECRESEEE

BENESGE AR ASERAKNILER
BEMRER - FHit - RAZIEEHESGE R
g AMERNESGEN - EFxe (B )Y
ESGREE MERARKEME  UHESGEEETT
BEE  BREAURERREEDH - RS REE -

EEEREESGRESREE—THDEEEE
BASBESGE T 8t MRS - ARFIE - BX
ISR ERESGHBMEAZHE (BHERR) - ESG
ZEGRGESGIIFMVAERAIFEZREE -
ST PMETTHESSRE - BB REERFIR
BEAHEK -ESGEEEHEZTEKERE ' i
ZERTEFER  BFRAEFEHRE X °
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98

The Board
EEE

Bears the overall responsibility for the Group's ESG strategy and reporting, oversees ESG
issues and reviews the ESG risks, opportunities, performance and progress made against
goals and targets regularly

BERAFAEEESCHMKLIER - BEBESCGEE - THEEESCGAMR - #i8 - BRUAKIZEH

BiEmaEE
A v
ESG Committee
ESG £ZEE

Monitors, reviews and reports on the ESG strategy, performance and progress against targets
and goals

BB BENREESCGRE - BRUANBRER

Identifies, evaluates, prioritises and manages material ESG-related risks and opportunities
(including but not limited to climate-related risks and opportunities as well as environmental
and social risks of the supply chain), and integrate ESG risks into our risk management and risk
control systems

Bhl -~ wHE - BIRBEDI R EIRESCHEE AR KB (BFEE TR E R X8R A E b &
BUARBRBORERERER) - W ESG AR RE IR KRR Z5c

Formulates ESG visions, objectives, targets, strategies, frameworks, principles and policies of
the Group

HEAREEESCRER - B - 515 - KEE - ER - RAIKBER

Communicates our ESG policy and requirements with internal and external stakeholders
BRI R ANER 1 BB B APIHIESGI R )R E 5K

A v

Assists the ESG Committee in coordinating the implementation of sustainability policies

BHEIESCGER B & A FrEE RN E B TIF
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ESG-RELATED RISK MANAGEMENT ESGHERMER

The Board has the overall responsibility in the oversight of the ZZE€2HAELEEBAREEHESGREREE - T &
Group’s ESG risk management. Delegated by the Board, the FE&Z:t ESGZE€aBHH - ;7 - BAHE
ESG Committee identifies, evaluates, prioritises, and manages 7| MBI EAESGHEER @ 2E A EEHERKE
material ESG-related risks, including climate-related risks as ANt EBREL T SRS - ESGEZE @ NHIE
well as environmental and social risks of the supply chain. The Y EEESGHEEIZHIEH - UEED #BIESGRE

ESG Committee also establishes and implements ESG-related 2o
control measures to mitigate the ESG risks identified.

For more details on our corporate governance and risk BREEMOCEEANRABERFIHNEZH

management approach, please refer to the “Corporate 15 B2HERTPHIDEEARE |0 -
Governance Report” section of the Annual Report.
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ESG POLICY

Our sustainability framework is supported by a comprehensive BRI AIFEZEBIERHE2EMNIRE £ hE
Environmental, Social and Governance Policy (the “ESG AR ([ESGHR]) X » ZBRFBEIEER M
Policy”), which has consistently guided us to incorporate
sustainable development into our business strategies. We

ESGH %

prioritize responsible procurement throughout our operations AR IRBERB@MFE -
and supply chain, ensuring that our activities do not have a
negative impact on both people and the environment.

The ESG Committee regularly reviews and updates the ESG WM EH - ESGEEZ <2
Policy, when necessary. The ESG Policy covers various £ - ESGHEREMEAIFEXEEWNSHE

aspects for corporate sustainability performance, including but ~ 83EEBTER :

not limited to:

Environment
53

Quality of Products
EmEE

Community
Engagement
HEam

Climate Change Responsible
and Resilience Procurement
SRS RIEE S BETRE

Diversity and Equal

: Health and Safety
Opportunity

_ e EERRZE
Zt R FEHe
ESG Governance Anti-corruption
ESGEA R&5
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

The Group is committed to maintaining close communication
with all stakeholders and creating long-term value for them.
We have established a range of channels to enable effective
communication with our key stakeholders, including investors
and shareholders, customers, employees, suppliers and
business partners, government authorities and regulators,
as well as communities. By understanding our stakeholders’
expectations and needs, we are able to further enhance our
sustainability strategies and measures.

RE - HERERERE

FESH

AEBENEMERNERTEDER - SEA
EREEE - RMBL—RRE  EXEHRD
FETAWER  BREREEERR EP R
B -HERBEKEBAERME  BUTHEREER
BUARMER - BB TRIFOERERFFR - &M
BESAE — 25 DN AT 5 48 3% R SRS o AG

Stakeholder Groups Communication Channels
& A5 BERE
Investors and Shareholders o Company website
REZEHEHRR YNCIEER
o Company announcements
NCIVN-S
o Annual general meeting
RERBFRE
. Annual and interim reports
FHREPHRE
Customers o Company website
®F NS
° Customer direct communication
HEFHEBR
° Customer feedback and complaints
BEPER LRI
Employees ° Training and orientation
-1 Bl B
° Emails and opinion box
BEHLERME
° Regular meetings
EHgE
° Employee performance evaluations
BB RITE
o Employee activities
BI)E®
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Stakeholder Groups Communication Channels
=& A 5 BERE
Suppliers and Business Partners ° Selection assessment
HEEREHSEBH TR
° Procurement process
REBRRE
° Performance assessment
RIRFHE
° Regular communication with business partners (e.g., emails,

meetings, on-site visits etc.)

HEBAERHEREBAMBELER  SHMBEHERSE)

Government Authorities and Regulators e Documented information submission
BAREREERE RRHER
° Compliance inspections and checks
EHRKERRE
Communities o Company website
HE NCIEEI
° Community activities
HRES
MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT EEMTM

During the Reporting Period, we conducted a materiality ~ RIR&EHIRE - BAIRBL A5 E 3R BB OB
assessment with the assistance of an independent TNETEZEWTE  UHPIREEERENGEMS
sustainability consultant, to identify the most important ESG S EEMESGEH - ESGEZEGNEEEBET
issues to our business and our stakeholders. The results of the  HiFE B Z 4445 R MIEBEESGERE °
materiality assessment and relevant ESG topics are regularly

reviewed by the ESG Committee and the Board every year.
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Our materiality assessment consists of the following steps:

N
/Step 1: Identification

g AR -Y:]

We identified a total of
24 relevant ESG topics
based on the HKEX
ESG Reporting Guide,
industry trends and
stakeholder feedback.

N

Step 2: Prioritisation
HER2 - BIRHES

HPIRIB B R FTESGH
HHEL TRBE R
hERBER - H£&R
2AMEMERIESGERE °

We invited our major
internal and external
stakeholders to partici-
pate in an online ques-
tionnaire and rate the 24
relevant ESG topics

EZUFERE TR

N
/ Step 3: Validation

3 B

based on the degree of
materiality.

BB EEZERNB R
BEFEOHELERELHS

We  consolidated and
presented the prioritised
list of material ESG topics
and submitted them to the
Board for discussion and
confirmation.

BMBEYMEFSRIE
RESGERBELTIZK - LA

> rEBRER

BE - WRIBEBER
24 BIABESGH B
#ITHES

A materiality matrix was
developed to illustrate
the rating based on the
importance to the Group
and our stakeholders.

BEMBEREDESE
AR E RSB K7D

/ EEZMERAR - / /
\ \ \

The degree of materiality of the 24 ESG issues to our 24fAESGiHEEHEKLRIBIHENBTERENIUT
business and our stakeholders is demonstrated in the ZEZWEEHZY - REFLHEFHELER &
following materiality matrix. Based on the results of the online  B24{HESGEEWE T AR HHEREEZE -
questionnaire, a total of 24 ESG topics were determined to be WEZMHEEFAERAR - B10EHZREZESG
the most material during the Reporting Period, shown in Tier ZER TXAHEXFTEHBET)EBEEMNER
1 of the materiality matrix. Information relevant to the 10 top ~ AIRERBEZHT il o

material ESG topics (highlighted in bold text below) have been

addressed in the subsequent sections of this Report.
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&
Higher

24

HENEEEH
Importance to stakeholders

AR
Lower

Lower

Eli
Tier 1:

Most Material Topics

EER  REZHE

Green Operations

. mEesE

1. Air emissions

BERIEDX

2. Waste
BEY

3. Carbon emission
and energy
efficiency
TREERU R BRI ER

4. Water consumption
KIREFE

5. Climate adaptation
and resilience

RIRBERIEED

6. Impacts on ecosys-
tems, diversity and
natural resources
HERRLG - ZHY
RBERERNZTE

7. Green procurement

BB

8. Environmental risk in
supply chain
HEEGEIRIB RS

104

10.

1.

12.

13.

Materiality Matrix
Z AR

° 4

22
21

14

10

18

® 6
17

16

Importance to the Group
HAEESEMN

Tier 2:

Material Topics

FEEHKEE

People Empowerment
i#ES

Staff welfare

BIEA

Equal-opportunity,
diversity and
anti-discrimination
TEKE  ZlbR
R

Occupational health
and safety

BEREREZR

Staff development
and training
8 T a3 R MIE

Employment
compliance

EEEHR

CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HEZZEEHFRAR

19.

20.

21.

22.

2%
EaBéIEE

Tier 3:

2

19

20 11

23

5 13
Tier 1

15 H—IEh

12

1 Tier 2
g

8
Tier 3
H=IEh

Higher
LIS

Relatively Less Material Topics

Product Excellence
FHER

. Social risk in supply
chain

st 2 a R

. Product assurance
and quality
EmRBRER

. Customer health and
safety
EPEREREZE

. Customer service

EFBRH

. Marketing and
advertising
miHEHIES
Anti-corruption
RES

Data protection and

cybersecurity
HERERAKZE

Economic perfor-
mance

KERR
Business growth
XBER

E-ER  EHETEERE

Thriving Community
Fit R

23. Community needs

and relations

HEFRKBE

24. Community

investment

HERE
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PRODUCT EXCELLENCE

Approach
T &t

RE - HERERERE

SEHEM

Provide outstanding coal products and services that meet and exceed customers’ expectations

REFEFURRKERERE - HRIBEEFNHE

Goal
BE

To enhance the quality of our products and services to increase customer satisfaction

RIERLRBEE  REEFHEE

Material Topic(s)

EXREE

° Customer service
=P AR

° Anti-corruption
RES

° Data protection and cybersecurity
BERERPERLD

Product excellence serves as the cornerstone of our success.
Through continuous improvement in customer service quality
and fostering sustainable economic performance and business
growth, we adapt to the evolving needs of our customers and
the dynamic business landscape. We have established
policies and procedures relating to health and safety and
privacy matters relating to products and services provided and
methods of redress. Moreover, we adhere compliance with all
relevant laws and regulations concerning product responsibility
and anti-corruption’, ensuring integrity and accountability in all
our endeavours.

During the Reporting Period, we were not aware of any material
non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations relating to
health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters
relating to our products and services provided and methods
of redress, as well as bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering.

! Please refer to the “Key Laws and Regulations” section for a list of
product responsibility and anti-corruption related laws and regulations
that are significant to the Group’s business operations.

SEMNEMERMAKNNESL - BBTHRESE
FPRBEER  RETUSELERGMNEBIER
BFEREFTEHZEMBRREEHERE
BB E R EER KRG EBNRERLZ 2
MWEALBEEABBEREERF - KR@RITE -
gEAN - RAITFERE TR A RERREMRES
MEERER BRAE TENREME TR

£ o

PR E AR - AP A AR AE ] B B IR B PR
HWERMRGHBRERZE - BE B8
LB EE LMY EEBRERERNTA - X
THZBES 9R  REFMARETR -

! FRHASEXBEEERANERBEERREISHA
ERERIBE  B2RIEBERER -

ZE-=FF# ANNUAL REPORT 2023
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R - HERERRE

SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

Ensuring product quality and safety hinges on comprehensive
supply chain management. We have established internal
guidance for supplier management. Our suppliers are
mandated to adhere to relevant laws and regulations governing
supply chain management.

HrEgREE

BREMEZLRLZEIRNEEMHERER - &
MHEHREREERTES - HEHLEETH
FEsRE IR VAERARIER o

Supplier Selection
@ pEERE

We select suppliers who meet
regulatory requirements and
our internal criteria, considering
ESG-related factors such as:

RAEEFTEERERLLAH
RERHER - FIEZBESGH

EElSER
0 Lower environmental
impacts

HRIEZ BB

o} Higher quality
BER

0 Compliance status
ARER

Suppliers must furnish
documented evidence for
evaluation, encompassing the
following certificates:
HERVARTENS BET
AHE - BEUATES
0 Product quality
inspection
EmEEmR
0 National environmental
product
BlZIRIREm
0 Management system
EREA

Supply Chain Risk
Management
HEERRER

In our daily operation, we
closely monitor the potential
environmental and socials risks
of our major suppliers along
the supply chain, with the goal
of effectively mitigating these
risks.

RMERREETENERH
JEE X EHERNELRE
Ritgmbg - #imABEEZ

TR o

CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HEZZEEHFRAR

Monitoring Supplier

@ Performance

EEREBRR

We conduct regular evaluations

of both current and potential

suppliers to ensure adherence

to our requirements, including:

BFEIRA KA EREETT

THAME UBEREFAE

KB

0 Product quality
EmEE

0 Environmental
responsibilities
RERE

0 Pricing
B

0 Overall capabilities
4 ki

o} Asset position

o Business nature
3y e

0 Industry reputation
EL

o} Goods delivery
BYRA

0 Compliance with law
and regulations
EERER
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BE - 4ERERERE

Supplier Selection Supply Chain Risk Monitoring Supplier
/@ HEmRE Management [ N Performance

fpE s B

o Site inspections are carried
out by the procurement team
to assess potential risks
associated with new suppliers
when necessary
FEEBRRVERGETEN
ZE U EFEERER
B E R

As of 31 December 2023, the breakdown of major suppliers by
geographical region was as follows:

EEHERRR

o We conduct ongoing monitoring
and assessment are conducted
of our suppliers, with major
suppliers and service providers
subject to annual reviews.
This process may lead to the
disqualification of unsatisfactory
vendors.
BRMEEEEETHEERER
Al HEEMER KRB MH
RHETFERE - WWBREA
REHTERHEEFHIEE
1% e

° The procurement department
promptly reports any significant
changes or incidents in the
supply chain to the Group’s
management to update internal
policies and strategies and
ensure timely implementation
and monitoring.
RESHNEIERASEER

BHREHERTEMNERED
HEM NEFTABBRRER
B EREBERLEE -

BHE-Z-=F+-A=+—1H ®kHEIHH
TEHERBANT

The PRC (including
Hong Kong) Other region(s)

TE(BEER) Hitup &
2023 —TCo=F 1,050 55
2022 —To—F 834 199

Figures for 2022 have been adjusted to reflect the actual situation.

During the Reporting Period, practices relating to engaging
suppliers were implemented for all 1,105 (2022: 1,033)
suppliers in the Group’s core businesses.

ERE-T-—FRTURBERER -
RBEHR - AREZLEBHZE1,105H (=

T4 1,033H)HERHC EERERHE
ERRAR A I o
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RE  HERERERSE

PRODUCT AND SERVICE QUALITY ASSURANCE AND
CUSTOMER SAFETY

To provide the highest quality and safety coal products, we
have established stringent policies and procedures for
production and sales that align with relevant laws and
regulations?. These measures guarantee excellence and
adherence to safety standards:

Storing coal products in designated or indoor areas to
maintain quality integrity

Conducting timely product inspections in nationally
qualified laboratories to ensure adherence to industry
standards and sustainability requirements

Ensuring health and safety standards are upheld for any
products identified as unqualified during inspections, in
accordance with our Quality Assurance Policy

Developing contingency plans to address unexpected
disruptions in product supply or service delivery to
ensure reliability

Conducting regular audits and inspections of facilities
to identify and address any health and safety hazards

Sampling and testing coal upon arrival at customer sites

Regularly assessing and inspecting product quality to
evaluate the supplier’s performance

Providing responsive customer service and support
through various communication channels to promptly
address issues or concerns

In the rare event warranting product recalls, we generally
provide customers with appropriate remedial solutions,
including compensation packages if necessary, as well
as proactive dialogue and negotiation, to maintain our
commitment to customer satisfaction and quality.

2
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Please refer to the “Key Laws and Regulations” section for a list of
product responsibility related laws and regulations that are significant to
the Group’s business operations.
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RE - HERERERE

We maintained stringent quality standards to ensure the FHFIBRFHRIZEXRIZE BRELEBLLE -
excellence of our products. The features of coals produced by EE4AEREREBATEL
the Group are as follows:

Huameiao
Huameiao Huameiao Energy - Shenda Shenda Sumber Daya
Energy - Energy-  Chongsheng Energy - Energy - Energi-
Xingtao Coal  Fengxi Coal Coal Xinglong Coal Hongyuan Coal ~ SDECoal  Unit
Sumber
EXRMR  EERER  EXRER BERR #BEEE  DayaEnergi
Coal Features B -RERRE  -BBRR  -SARE -EERX -ZERRX -SDERR Efl
Coal seam EE 4,8,9,10, 11 il 9.2, 1 2,5 2,5,6 B -
Moisture xp 7-10 8-12 8-12 85 85 6877 %
Ash %) 20-28 20-28 20-28 21.45 30-72 337351 db, %
Sulphur g 1419 1.2-16 16-25 1.2 1.45 06-1 db, %
Calorific value REAE 46505200  4,500-5,100  4,600-5,150 4,838 4187 4450-4500  (average,
kealkg, net, ar)
(B 5/
T FE-a)

During the Reporting Period, we encountered 0 complaints R ¥R&HAR - HAWEEE R RREEBEFE
from customers related to our products and service (2022: 0). FAN(ZZE__4F : 0)5F ° o - MEERER
Also, no coal products were subject to recalls for safety and HEZ2EREEREBEL(ZZE-—F:0)-
health reasons (2022: 0).
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RE  HERERERSE

DATA PRIVACY PROTECTION AND CYBERSECURITY

We place paramount importance on customer data privacy
and cybersecurity. In safeguarding customer data, we provide
training on our policies and internal guidelines to provide
clear instruction to safeguard proprietary and confidential
information, include:

° Exclusive processing and storage of all customer orders
and data by dedicated personnel, with no unauthorized
employee access permitted

° Mandating agreement upon joining the Group, ensuring
employees uphold the confidentiality of Company data

° Swiftly taking legal action and immediately terminating
employment contracts for any violation or divulgence of
information

o Installing firewalls and/or intrusion detection systems
to fortify the network against unauthorized access and
cyberattacks

° Regularly sharing of updates and tips on information
security and cybersecurity to enhance awareness and
preparedness

110 CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HE&=R&EBER A
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INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY PROTECTION

In safeguarding intellectual property rights, both ours and
those of third parties, we strictly adhere to relevant laws and
regulations concerning the protection of intellectual property
rights®. Our internal guidelines include the following provisions:

° Sourcing products exclusively from legitimate
manufacturers or suppliers

° Refraining from participating in activities that infringe
upon intellectual property rights

° Conducting due diligence before purchasing intellectual
property rights from third parties to ensure legality

o Promptly investigating any suspected cases of
intellectual property infringement

° Regularly reminding staff members to respect
intellectual property rights belonging to others and to
the Group, if applicable

o Encouraging reporting of suspected cases of
infringement

ANTI-CORRUPTION

We maintain a zero-tolerance against bribery, extortion, fraud,
and money laundering in our operations, extending to our
employees, suppliers, and business partners. Integrity and
fair competition are paramount in our business practices,
our governance structure is built upon the highest ethical
standards to uphold these principles.

8 Please refer to the “Key Laws and Regulations” section for a list of
product responsibility related laws and regulations that are significant to
the Group’s business operations.

RE - HERERERE

HIHE AR E

RRERMIRE=TMHEETE - ROERE
A BABERRERRER - AEIESIBEN
THRE

RS ARERIHERRBE®D

. T2RRILHBEENED

. RE=TBENBERETERAE - U
EREEMN

. RERE TSR BB ERN RN

. THREETESMARANEE(QER)
HY R EE A

. SRR IR A RE RAE R
RES

ROTRREE  HEREZRMANER - HEARK
EBaERH - BERRTREFREBERTE
HEZ  BMANERRBRINGRSBREREZ
- LR ERA -

B FREAEEEBEEEANERAEHEBERER
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RE  HERERERSE

Policies and Procedures

. Our policies reinforce our commitment to anti-
corruption, bribery, extortion, fraud, money laundering,
anti-competitive behaviour and conflict of interest

Whistleblowing System and Reporting Concerns

. Guided by our policies, we encourage employees,
suppliers and customers to report any suspected
malpractice or misconduct through our whistleblowing
channels. These channels operate under a strict policy
of whistleblower identity protection and prohibition of
retaliatory actions

° Subsequent investigations will be conducted in a fair
manner, and corrective measures and follow-up actions
will be taken promptly

° In the event of confirmed misconduct, appropriate
disciplinary action will be taken and instances of
criminal offenses are reported to the relevant authorities

° The Board has an overall responsibility for the
mechanism, whereas the Audit Committee is
responsible for overseeing and implementing the
system

Training and Awareness

o During the Reporting Period, we provided anti-
corruption training for both directors and employees,
where we share with them the information from ICAC

regarding ways to handle corrupt related situations.

o Regular training on anti-corruption policies is conducted
for employees and directors

° The Group reviews relevant policy periodically
During the Reporting Period, there were no concluded legal

cases regarding corrupt practices brought against the Group
or our employees (2022: 0).
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GREEN OPERATIONS

Approach
T &t

RBIE #HE8RERTRE

e
Y
T
i

Strengthen our climate resilience and reduce our environmental footprint for a greener future

R RARELR S - WMARBRY - BlEE AR E R ARIK
Goal
BR
To reduce our greenhouse gas and waste emissions, while enhancing energy and water efficiency
WAREREREYHENR - BRR S R AR
Material Topic(s)
EXREE
° Waste
FEEY)
° Climate adaptation and resilience
M 3 e N HE R )
° Impacts on ecosystems, diversity and natural resources
HERZG ZHRUEREABRNZE

We firmly believe it is our responsibility to promote climate
resilience and contribute to a greener future. Recognizing the
environmental implications of our operations, the Group
prioritizes environmental stewardship and the implementation
of cleaner mining methods. Policies and internal guidelines are
formulated to guide our employees in strengthening climate
resilience, mitigating pollution, ensuring responsible resource
utilization, and minimizing environmental footprints, in
accordance with relevant environmental laws and regulations®.

Furthermore, overseen by the CEO, an environmental team
manages the environmental management system (“EMS”)
and monitors environmental KPls. Regular risk and impact
assessments inform our stewardship approach, addressing air
pollutants, greenhouse gases (“GHG”), water, waste, noise,
and soil quality.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any
material non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations
relating to air and GHG emissions, discharges into water and
land, and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

4 Please refer to the “Key Laws and Regulations” section for a list of
environmental laws and regulations that are significant to the Group’s
business operations.

BMEBE RMOBETRERREZN - AEN
FEMARRELER - RMRBLELHRENY
2 AEBBREEENEREEZNRES A
TEREBSLEIE - KRMIBIEHEEER RAZIES -
S (B B IRIBIEEIR IR AR AN AR HKE
HRAER BRAETFAER  Uk&EK
FRERDIRIBZRY ©

AN RITBAREET  REBEBREEEER
FERRSG(EMS) W ERRFABEAMIER
EMETRREZEMERBAMNE EEE/HE
AR - ARERISAY - AEREB(ARE

B KR BEY RERTBEERZHE -

AR AEES B ERBREERER
BEER - MK R BB A RBEER
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KR ERE
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RE HEREARARE

CLIMATE RESILIENCE AND MANAGEMENT

As climate change advances the frequency and intensity of
extreme weather events like heavy rainfall are expected to
increase. Hence, our board and ESG committee regularly
assess and evaluate climate-related risks and opportunities to
devise effective strategies in response.

Risk Description Our Response Actions
JeB e 4 3t B TE

RIREENIRER

BEEREE(CNE  BARRETHAREGFIA
ERBEHEEN - Al - EESRESGEES
EHF A ESRAENERR RS - HEE X
i ap i

Climate-related Risks

RIZEE R

Physical Risk

Bmsm

= FLL

° Extreme weather events, ° Develop protocols to ensure employee safety and minimize operational
including flooding impact during extreme weather events, such as heavy rainfall leading to
T3 KSR (B IEHEK) flooding and landslides. These protocols strictly adhere to government-

issued extreme weather guidelines and necessitate adjustments to

mining activities.

HERIE  BREERE  WHRARERM D &RHRREF(NEREBOH

IKRIRER) S BN E o 2T HRAZ RS E ST BUT 34 80 18 0 K R e
5| - WHIRBEBETHNEFE -

. Establish emergency guidelines and measures to mitigate the impacts
of natural disasters on operations.

Il E FE &5 5| KB

Transition Risk

HMEARKEHEENTE -

R @ g
° Policy and legal risk o Review our climate-related policies on a regular basis to ensure their
R ROE AR effectiveness.

EHNBSRIRBBEER - BAREARE -
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RE - HERERERE

Risk Description Our Response Actions
TR i 4 EHITE

Climate-related Opportunities

RIREREKE

o Climate-related ° Enhance procurement procedures to improve resource efficiency.
Opportunities MABRERF - IR ERIE -
Rz B RS . Implement a comprehensive clearance and warehouse management

system to optimize inventory management.
EMEENEERERERERSG  BILEGTERE -

° Streamline the transportation process of coal production and trade
by establishing consolidation and delivery stations in Shanxi, Hebei,
Inner Mongolia, and other strategic locations, thereby reducing internal
transportation costs, and enhancing market flexibility and efficiency.
BEEREEREZSERTE - RNWUE At AR EERREMET
S8 MR EANERKAE - REMISEEEREE -
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To enhance our operations’ resilience to climate change, we ARS2EHAEEHMEE S - M2 HIE N

have set the following green targets: THRERRE
Our Green Targets Progress
BFEBE EE
L‘*ﬁ o To reduce our air and GHG emission by improving In Progress
G;V;D energy efficiency and incorporating energy-saving HEITH
Emission measures
ZieY) WIBR = AR M am MR EETRE IR i - R R RRE
REBHER
-,
ﬁ o To reduce our waste generation by applying 3R In Progress
principles, avoiding unnecessary consumption HEITH
Waste RABRRA| - @R TUEERE - TR EMESE
REZEY)
@ ° To reduce our energy consumption by enhancing In Progress
energy efficiency of our equipment EATH
Energy BRRESREERYE - BB
EIEV
O . To improve water efficiency by implementing water Achieved
IT=> conservation measures BiER
Water iR - RS AKEE
FA7K
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ENERGY, AIR AND GHG EMISSIONS

Our primary sources of air emissions, GHG emissions, and
energy consumption originate from purchased electricity as
well as fuel consumption in boilers and product transportation.
The Group incorporates the management of emissions into
our daily operations and evaluates the progress of emission
reduction annually. We have implemented a set of green
measures as stated below:

° Gradually transitioning from natural gas boilers to
desulfurization and denitrification boilers

o Implementing centralized management of vehicle use
and utilizing modern communication tools

o Upgrading mining equipment for enhanced energy
efficiency, including replacing conveyor motors with
inverter-integrated motors

° Promoting conservation awareness of energy and
resources among employees

o Adopting energy-efficient equipment and technologies
to reduce energy consumption

° Phasing out traditional lighting with energy-saving
alternatives like LEDs

o Prioritizing equipment with energy efficiency labels
during procurement

o Promoting green office practices, by switching off
idle lights, computers, and other electronic devices,
to minimize unnecessary energy consumption in the
workplace

RBiE - d28REARRE

RER - BREBERBHERK
BPIWERBEN  BERBHFRNMEERERTE
Xéﬁl\ﬁ%%ij&%ﬂ}fﬁﬁuu EHMPOBRE - KN

SEEBNERMARTEE  WHFHEREE
R o LPIERA T — ?ﬂﬁ”é?aﬁm

. MRARIDIBEZ P BE =R R E

J HEWMERETSETERE  UHARKRA
AITA

J ﬂ'ﬁ&%ﬁﬁ% 1%J//HE_‘!_J_§€/J$5\_&¥ C BLFE LA

PR B E B B ik B T

o ReREERMERIRESH

. AR R B R B - WA RERIERE

. LALEDZEfige B R miE S AKX E R RER
#

. KERELZREHRUREHRNRE

o EESENRLER  BHAREEE - &

REMETRE  TARERD TS
T ERERHFE
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Below is a summary of our air, GHG emissions and energy

AT REMNER BRERBHMLEREREHK

consumption data®: B ES -

FY 2023 FY 20225  Unit

—E-= =

MERFE MIFES By
Air Emission’
REREER
Nitrogen Oxides (NOx) 17,335,392.97 1,100.00 kg
RA/LYI(NOX) =
Sulphur Oxides (SOx) 284,561.60 0.00 kg
m%ﬂ:%(SOx) :F?E
Particulate Matters (PM) 646,950.27 150.00 kg
FERLYI(PM) T
GHG Emission
BEREHER
Total GHG (Scopes 1 & 2) Emission® 47,836.46 41,585.24 Tonnes CO.e
BERE(BE1R)FMEES W iR E 2
Direct Emission (Scope 1) 5,980.97 4,120.79 Tonnes CO.e
BEEEREE) WS bIRE 2
Energy Indirect Emission (Scope 2) 41,855.49 37,464.45 Tonnes CO.e
BeIRMEI B HE N (8 E2) —EtiREE
Total GHG (Scopes 1 & 2) Emissions Intensity 14.29 13.56 Tonnes CO.e/employee

BERE(HEE1BENETE

—SLHREE/EE

Energy
BEIR
Total Energy Consumption 30,163,325.95 17,451,315.06 MWh
ﬁ&/}?wu /ﬁ%‘f% JEEE;I
Purchased Electricity 68,604.31 64,482.70 MWh
INEEEE S JKEL B
Unleaded Petrol 199.23 63.86 MWh
E )M JK EL R
Dlesel Qil 9,026.73 7,846.01 MWh
geh JKFL B
Liquefied Natural Gas (“LNG”)° 30,085,495.69 17,378,922.49 MWh
BAERAR(DRIERARD? JKFL B
Total Energy Consumption Intensity 9,009.36 5,690.03 MWh/employee
BB EREEERE KEE1EE
5 Totals may not be the exact sum of numbers shown here due to  ° ERMEAA - B RV BFIREFEHERERN -
6 Ir:?ggrcjelggor 2022 have been adjusted to reflect the actual situation. 6 BERE_ZE-—FHFURBRERER -
7 Our data collection system was enhanced during the Reporting Period 7 RSB - KPR ERKERS - LUREEH

to cover the emission from transportation.

8 In accordance with The Greenhouse Gas Protocol —

A Corporate 8

Accounting and Reporting Standard (Revised Edition) published by
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the World Business Council for Sustainable Development and World
Resources Institute, Scope 1 direct emissions are resulted from
operations that are owned or controlled by the Group, while Scope 2
indirect emissions are resulted from the generation of purchased or
acquired electricity, heating, cooling, and steam consumed within the
Group.

Our data collection system was enhanced during the Reporting Period
to cover LNG in an additional operating site in Xingtao Coal Mine.

CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HEZZEEHFRAR

WE -
$E?F1ﬁ457?%i5§*@l?ﬁi§$§&1ﬁﬁéfﬁﬁﬁ TR E
MHCEERBHEATE - CEFHTRBREFEESET
hR)) - BENEERYBURNASEEREG SIEGINETR -
mEBEMEH RN AEBEANRLBELESHES -
HEg - 8L RFEITHERE

K& - RPNRE PR RS - URE R
TEFRIMEERHBILRAR



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RiIR - HERERRE

WATER AND WASTEWATER MANAGEMENT RKRBEKEE

The Group sources water from local water suppliers in  ZAREERFIE /KR A K EEHRENRR -

the regions where we conduct our operations. During the ~ R¥R&EHIM - AREE P ERUKR S E A8 BT
Reporting Period, the Group did not encounter any difficulties R £ - FIEIRE TN LA K REKEE » PR
in sourcing water. We emphasize water conservation HZHEEH @ B21F

proactively and wastewater management. Various measures
have been implemented, including:

. Placing conspicuous signage to remind employees of
water conservation

° Promptly maintaining dripping faucets o

. Gradually replacing equipment with water-saving e
alternatives

o Treating wastewater before releasing it into the e
environment

o Implementing water recycling and reuse systems in our e
operations to utilize water from on-site sources for coal
preparation and road-dust suppression

RERMLERER

K B 4 S R /KK BEBA

BB IEAKR

HREKEITRIBRBHNEIREF

REETERKERIBNBERS -
SKIR AR BRI S BB R B D ) T

1REE (R S EI A AK

#3R

Below shows our water consumption data'®: AT BRI R KSR
FY 2023 FY 2022  Unit
—E-=F —F-—
B FE MIRFE BN
Water
KR
Total Water Consumption 56,920.00 69,323.00 m?
Rkies TR
Total Water Consumption Intensity 17.00 22.60 md¥employee

Fkaa= g

MK/ EE

° Water consumption data covers Xingtao Coal Mine and Fengxi Coal 1
Mine only as the water consumption of Guangzhou office is controlled
by the property management and there is no sub-metering available.

PR 7K B 80 25 SR P R 5 P A bt T R T MY
MAENFKRMEEIZERES - WEDHKEIE -
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RE  HERERERSE

WASTE MANAGEMENT

The Group is committed to responsible waste management
practices, prioritizing waste segregation and recycling to
minimize environmental impact. Hazardous waste, such
as waste mineral oil and waste oil drums, is collected for
treatment by qualified third parties, while non-hazardous waste
like domestic waste, boiler slag and gangue from the washing
process are either reused in road repairs or handled by the
environmental officials for treatment. Minimizing waste and
optimizing resource efficiency, we have implemented several
waste management measures:

120

Simplifying our operational process to reduce
unnecessary waste generation

Selecting raw materials that generate less waste

Phasing out traditional boilers that generate significant
waste

Optimizing warehouse management systems to improve
material turnover

Monitoring consumption closely to avoid over-
purchasing

Advocating the 3R (Reduce, Reuse, Recycle) principles
throughout operations

Diligently monitoring and managing resource use to
improve efficiency

Encouraging a paperless office culture through
electronic communications and digital documentation

CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HEZZEEHFRAR
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Below shows the Group’s waste data'':

RE - HERERERE

TIIREEEZRDEIR

FY 2023 FY 2022  Unit
—EC-=FE —E__F

MBREE MIREE #Hf
Waste
BEEY
Total Hazardous Waste Generated 543.75 1,251.48 Tonnes
EXBEREYEE Mg
Total Hazardous Waste Intensity 0.16 0.41  Tonnes/employee
BEEEEDREE M E 8
Total Non-hazardous Waste Generated'? 3,885.94 N/A  Tonnes
EEEREEEYES? NEA WE
Total Non-hazardous Waste Intensity 1.16 N/A  Tonnes/employee
BEREMAEE TEA W BB
GREEN PROCUREMENT R

We are keen on emphasizing green procurement practices
and promoting environmentally preferable products and
services when selecting suppliers. Through ongoing monitoring

REZHERE  BRIPEREASERBER
{Eﬁy%mﬁﬁuuﬁﬂﬁ% BRHHER AR
aHE - RAB BAREERE BT BRHR

and assessment of our suppliers, we strive to ensure the f%ﬁ,a\ ERIE

environmental considerations are upheld throughout the

procurement process. Our approach includes:

. Prioritizing local suppliers to minimize environmental BRBERMWMHER  URER D HER

impacts associated with transportation

° Assessing potential environmental risks posed by e
our major suppliers along the supply chain and

implementing measures to mitigate these risks

° Upgrading our centralized inventory management e
system to optimize stock management, ensuring timely

tracking and avoiding over-procurement

° Considering the energy and water consumption and e

efficiency of items during procurement

o Minimizing or avoiding the use of disposable, single-use

items to reduce waste

" Due to the nature of our business, no packaging material is consumed. 1
2 Our data collection system was enhanced during the Reporting Period 2
to cover the non-hazardous waste generated in our operations.

EENIRIETE
At EES T S ER T s A R AIRIE

Rk - WIS MR EZ SRR

FRPREFEERLG  BLEFER
R R - @2 BERE

REREEBIZ T Z B AR RKIRBFE AR
an 2 FA R R
BEROHBAER—RMERM - AR
RE

MR AP EBIEE - iﬂ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂo
R|EMRT - RMMBARRERG  WRBEEE

EREERERY)
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RE #HE8RER

|E

BIODIVERSITY AND ECOLOGICAL PROTECTION

As a socially responsible enterprise, we recognize the
importance of respecting nature and the environment during
our operation. We prioritize initiatives that reduce natural
resource consumption and environmental impacts, ensuring
profitability while safeguarding our planet’'s ecosystems and
biodiversity. Our commitment to long-term sustainability
involves:

122

Integrating environmental preservation and resource
conservation into our operational strategies and
development planning

Regularly conducting risk assessments and
environmental impact assessments on the production
facilities to monitor the emissions of air pollutants, GHG,
water, sewage, hazardous and non-hazardous waste,
noise pollution and soil quality

Implementing rehabilitation measures for areas affected
by mining activities

Maintaining close relationships with the local community
nearby the mining site

Monitoring air quality and noise levels during mining
operations

Conducing toxicity tests to detect potential water quality
issues that could impact local farming

CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HEZZEEHFRAR
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PEOPLE EMPOWERMENT

Approach
T &t

RE - HERERERE

mERES

Create a safe, inclusive and nurturing work environment for our employees to grow

REEBKKEELRE  BRKRIFIERE

Goal
BE

To strengthen employee well-being, training and occupational health and safety measures.

MR B THEN - Fl B EREEL 25

Material Topic(s)

EXREE

° Staff welfare
BT &

° Occupational health and safety
BERERERS

° Employment compliance
BREEH

The Group views our employees as our most valuable assets.
We are committed to creating a harmonious work environment
for our employees, and we strictly abide by employment-
related laws and regulations in our areas of operation'. We
have established a comprehensive human resources
management strategy with a set of policies and standards that
clearly outline our policies on compensation and dismissal,
recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal
opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, performance
management, training and development and other benefits
and welfare.

During the Reporting Period, we were not aware of any material
non-compliance of relevant employment-related laws and
regulations.

s Please refer to the “Key Laws and Regulations” section for a list of
employment-related laws and regulations that are significant to the
Group’s business operations.

AEEREERREENEE - AR N AEE
BIEMGE TIFRIE - WEIR B TXBREARRE
BEBEERER? - RAICEYZEANERE
R WHIE - EBRRREE - AESAERM
REML AR - BERER - THERE - REY
FEHRE ol RER  ERER - Bk
BRAREMA B LB T EABOR

PSR - AP NBE AR EEREBE
ERERNBER -

& FREAEEEBEEERNERBBERERE
RSB RERERI -
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BB #ERERBE

EMPLOYEE OVERVIEW EEHR

As of 31 December 2023, we employed a total of 3,348 HZEZE-_ZT-_Z=ZF+_-_F=+—H HMEER
employees (2022: 3,067 employees). The number of our 3,348%EEB(ZZT-_%F : 3067%EE) - 7t
A aN

employees™ by gender, age group and geographical regionis Bl « F#4ERI M EE| S EE AZ T
outlined below:

FY 2023 FY 2022  Unit
—EB-=F —=E-=

MBEE WRFEE B
By Gender
R4 5l
Male 3,117 2,802 Number
Xl AE
Female 231 265 Number
7t A
By Employee Category
RESER
Management 69 61 Number
EEE AE
Functional Departments 699 324  Number
i aE BB P N
Frontline Departments 2,580 2,682 Number

(including local teams and groups)

AIARELPT (B 453 5 B P K A2 7)) AE
By Employment Type
RERER
Full-time 3,342 3,067 Number
DR AE
Part-time 6 0 Number
Fe N
By Age Group
R E AR
At or below 24 392 252 Number
DABRHIAT A
Between 25-40 1,563 1,445 Number
25-405% AE
Between 41-59 1,336 1,297  Number
41-595%, AE
At or above 60 57 73 Number
60 3k A I AE
By Geographical Location
RitE
The PRC (including Hong Kong) 2,080 2,249  Number
R (BESRE) AE
Indonesia 1,268 818 Number
21} AE
14 Data of the whole Group has been included. ik BREAEEEEYE -

124 CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HE&=R&EBER A
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RiIR - HERERRE

The turnover in our workforce'™ as of 31 December 2023 is HZ_-_ZT—

=FE+ZA=T—HMNBEIREBERS

shown below: O
FY 2023 FY 2022  Unit
—EC-=F —E-F
BFE MRFE B
Turnover Rate (by gender)
TR (R
Male 29.07 724 %
Eefea
Female 37.23 11.70 %
Zi
Turnover Rate (by age group)
MARRFRAR)
At or below 24 47.70 754 %
24FRIA T
Between 25-40 32.95 6.99 %
25-40%%
Between 41-59 19.69 8.02 %
41-59%%,
At or above 60 47.37 13.70 %
60X IA |
Turnover Rate (by geographical location)
REAR(RIBE)
The PRC (including Hong Kong) 22.45 7.43 %
FE(BERE)
Indonesia 41.40 819 %
Efe
15 Data of the whole Group has been included. = EREREEEEEIE -

ZE-=FF# ANNUAL REPORT 2023
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RE  HERERERSE

EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

We are committed to providing a fair work environment for our
employees that is free from workplace discrimination, to ensure
our employees are not subject to discrimination due to factors
such as gender, age, race, family status, religious belief, and
disability. As such, we have established an Equal Opportunity
Policy as well as recruitment and human resources procedures
to ensure that recruitment and promotion decisions are made
based on the qualification, experience and performance of
applicants and employees.

LABOUR STANDARDS

The Group strives to uphold human rights and promote ethical
employment in our business operations, and strictly comply
with all labour-related laws and regulations in our areas of
operation’.

We adopt a zero-tolerance approach on child and any form
of forced labour, including slavery, debt-induced labour and
coercion in the workplace. As such, we have developed robust
and systematic measures for recruitment and selection. All
candidates qualified for employment must reach the statutory
required age and be in possession of valid identification
documents, which are examined by the Human Resources
Department during recruitment and upon employment. If
any child or forced labour is discovered during our selective
identity checks, we will take prompt remedial actions
including but not limited to taking action to terminate the work
immediately, filing a report to the relevant authorities, and
review our management approaches the resolve the loophole.
Furthermore, we require all workers to enter labour contracts
voluntarily and fairly, and they are free to quit their jobs with
proper notice. To further promote ethical standards, we
have established a whistle-blowing procedure to encourage
employees to report any suspected cases of child and forced
labour.

Our Human Resources Department reviews our recruitment
practices on a regular basis, to ensure the effectiveness of
our existing measures against child and forced labour. During
the Reporting Period, we were not aware of any material non-
compliance of relevant labour-related laws and regulations.

6 Please refer to the “Key Laws and Regulations” section for a list of
labour standards-related laws and regulations that are significant to the
Group’s business operations.
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COMPENSATION AND BENEFITS

The Group provides our employees with fair and competitive
remuneration to recruit and retain talented individuals. Apart
from a base wage, the remuneration package includes social
security insurance and other fringe benefits. The package is
evaluated regularly to ensure its competitiveness in the labour
market and alignment with the Group’s performance.

We also provide our employees with a wide range of benefits,
to encourage them to adopt healthy lifestyles and cultivate
a strong sense of belonging to the Group. As such, we
organise regular medical check-ups for our employees and
provide fringe benefits such as housing provident fund and
supplementary medical insurance to enhance employees’
pension, medical insurance and quality of life. Additional
benefits, such as maternity and paternity leave are provided to
employees in order to meet their diverse needs.

OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH AND SAFETY

Given the substantial occupational health and safety (*“OHS”)
risks in the coal mining business, ensuring the health and
safety of our employees is of utmost importance for the Group,
particularly for those who work on mine sites. We strictly abide
by health and safety-related laws and regulations in our areas
of operation, including those that are specific to our industry."

We have established a comprehensive range of OHS
procedures and rules, with safety as our top priority and work-
related injury prevention as our primary objective. Additionally,
we have implemented a risk assessment and occupational
health management system that includes specified procedures
for risk identification, analysis, evaluation, treatment, monitoring
and review.

The Group regularly performs hazard identification in addition
to establishing, reviewing and monitoring OHS objectives and
policy. Our safety policy and guidelines set out our working
procedures and measures, and we expect our employees
to strictly comply with them. We provide our employees with
protective equipment, as well as adopting safety protection
measures for machines that may pose safety risks. Clear
procedures and regulations have been established for
operations with identified hazards, and we regularly carry out
safety inspections and maintenance on our daily operations
and machines. Rectification will be performed promptly if any
non-compliance is identified.

” Please refer to the “Key Laws and Regulations” section for a list of
health and safety-related laws and regulations that are significant to the
Group’s business operations.
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RE HEREARARE

We are deeply aware of the need to prepare for workplace
accidents and incidents, despite strong safety precautions
being in place. As such, the Group has developed emergency
preparedness plans to guide our employees in reporting,
responding and conducting investigations in various
emergency situations. Additionally, should an accident occur,
we ensure that our employees receive appropriate medical
care and compensation under social insurance. We have also
established a medical service agreement with nearby hospitals
to ensure effective rescue efforts from coal mines.

During the Reporting Period, we were not aware of any material
non-compliance of relevant health and safety-related laws and
regulations. There have been no work-related fatalities in each
of the past three years including the Reporting Period, and
there were O lost days due to work injury (2022: 0O lost days),
underscoring the Group’s steadfast commitment to health and
safety.

TRAINING AND DEVELOPMENT

The Group aspires to grow with our employees and drive
business growth and success together. As such, we actively
invest in our employees and encourage them to engage in
personal development and job-related training courses. We
have developed an employee training policy that outlines the
management’s duties for recognising the training needs of
each department.

In our daily operations, we provide on-board training to new
employees, with experienced employees being assigned as
mentors to guide new joiners. These mentoring arrangements
not only encourage collaboration and teamwork, but also
strengthen employees’ technical skills and managerial
capability. In addition, the Group regularly encourages our
employees to explore opportunities for further learning and
development, and we have also consistently enhanced our
training system based on operational needs. During the
Reporting Period, weekly vocational training was provided for
relevant staff to enhance their technical knowledge. We also
provided training to directors and the finance team to further
strengthen their understanding of corporate governance.
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RE - HERERERE

During the Reporting Period, we provided a total of 472,680
training hours to our employees (2022: 489,946 hours). Our

RS - RPIEAEERE472,680/ /)
EINZE = —F : 489,046/ \0F) o FKFIIZHI&R

training performance is shown below: W -
FY 2023 FY 2022  Unit
—EBC=F —ZF--
BB B MRFE B

Percentage of Employees Trained (by gender)
FIEE B2 (RERD
Male 95 9% %
S
Female 5 4 %
g
Percentage of Employees Trained

(by employee category)
FiEEES L (REESERD
Management 2 2 %
EIRE
Functional Departments 22 10 %
Eo il
Frontline Departments 76 88 %

(including local teams and groups)
AT AR EBPT (B 454 77 [ B Je 48 Bl))
Average Training Hours (by gender)
1 2 AR B (IR BY)
Male 112 174 Hours
Bt /N
Female 69 14 Hours
pegi AN
Average Training Hours (by employee category)
FHRIFHORESER)
Management 117 244 Hours
EIRE /INEF
Functional Departments 124 115  Hours
i3 RE BB s
Frontline Departments 105 182 Hours

(including local teams and groups)
AIAREPPT (B 45 77 B X R 48 51)) /INEF
18 The calculations of training data have included the relevant training data '@ BIHBEAEEREARGEE TNHEBEIIR

of resigned staff during the Reporting Period, to present an accurate
reflection of the training resources invested by the Group.

B AR RSB ARIEIIER o
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RE  HERERERSE

THRIVING COMMUNITY

Approach
T &t

ERHE

Care for our community to promote harmonious social development

BOLR - e S MEER

Goal
BE

To enhance community investment contributions in line with community needs

REHERE - M@t ERERR

Material Topic(s)

EpN-
o Community needs and relations

RS R E

To bring value to the communities in which we operate, the
Group has established relevant policies and encourages our
employees to embrace their social responsibilities towards
the community. In alignment with our commitment to fostering
positive community impact, we actively engaged in various
initiatives during the Reporting Period. These efforts included
both charitable donations and employee engagement in
volunteer activities, focusing on areas such as community
welfare and education.

During the Reporting Period, we sponsored local events
celebrating Indonesia’s Independence Day in Gedabaru,
providing support towards the construction and renovation
of infrastructure within the village. Additionally, we organized
visits and offered donations to support elderly residents in
the community and contributing funds to local nursing homes
during festivals. Also, we distributed festive allowances
to villages neighbouring our mining sites, reinforcing our
commitment to enriching the lives of those in our surrounding
communities.
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Furthermore, our commitment to education was exemplified
through the donation of essential learning materials, such as
stationery, to underprivileged students at Magalau Primary
School in Indonesia.

RiIR - HERERRE

S - BT ENfEMagalauw N2 K E R 2 4 15
BYAEENEBEERR - BEBMEHE K
o

During the Reporting Period, the total value of

%

Moving forward, the Group remains dedicated to continually
reviewing our objectives and directions concerning
community investments, sponsorships, and donation activities.
Furthermore, we are committed to evaluating the alignment
of our social performance with our community investment
policy and objectives. We will also prioritize enhancing our
team’s capabilities to ensure the effective implementation of
our community investment policies, thereby maximizing our
positive impact on the communities we serve.

OUTLOOK

As we look ahead into 2024, our commitment to advancing
sustainability remains unwavering. By reviewing and
developing relevant ESG policies and targets, we will continue
to explore opportunities to strengthen our climate resilience
while delivering product excellence, as well as empowering
our employees and surrounding communities. Together, we
can build a more sustainable and resilient future.

donations and resources assistance amounted to

RBEHE - BRREREDAES

RMB 263,404
AEK%263,4047T

RERK  AEESLEFNFEETENEER
B EBPRBRASHIEMBZRERTR © 1
BATBAIFELEEEREALEREBRE LB R
B — B o TP E LRI BERARES - JARE
REBEREERERR - MEAREZEER
ISR BOTRRRZE

RE-_ZF_NF  BAHHEETSERRNAR
TRABRETE - BBEE LHIEHEBESGHE K
B RASEERRSERE RREREVE
mE RS RIREER S - W ERE KRBT
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HEERARK

ZE-=FF# ANNUAL REPORT 2023

131



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RE  HERERERSE

KEY LAWS AND REGULATIONS FEREEER
ESG Aspect Significant Laws and Regulations
ESGEE FEEFEER
Aspect A: Environment ° Environmental Protection Law of the PRC
EBHA : RE (PEARKMBIRFREE)
° Law of the PRC on Promoting Clean Production
(PEARKMBEEREEREE)
o Law of the PRC on Appraising Environmental Impacts

(hEARAMBIRBEZETEE)

o Ambient Air Quality Standards of the PRC(GB3095-1996)
(FEARAMBEREERE E1F4) (GB3095-1996)

° Energy Conservation Law of the PRC
(g AR HMBEELEIRE)

° Renewable Energy Law of the PRC
CREARKEFB A BAERE)

° Water Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the PRC
(R EE AR EFBKGT R AE)
o Law of the PRC on the Prevention and Control of Environmental

Pollution by Solid Waste
(FREE AR A BE RS L IRERG AR
o Standard for Pollution Control on Hazardous Waste Incineration of
the PRC(GB18484-2001)
(PEARKEMBEG EZEEYR LS LIEFIZ L) (GB18484-2001)
° Standard for Pollution Control on Hazardous Waste Storage of the
PRC(GB18597-2001)
(e AR HMBE IR EY T F)5 25 HIR2E) (GB18597-2001)
o Standard for Pollution Control on the Hazardous Waste
Landfill(GB18598-2001)
(reke RE YRR )5 242 H1R 4E) (GB18598-2001)

Aspect B1: Employment ° Provisions on the Prohibition of Using Child Labor
EmEB1 : &R (BEILERETIRE)

Aspect B4: Labour Standards ° Special Protection Regulations for Juvenile Employees
[EHEB4 : 5 T%A| (REREFTERRERT)

o Labor Law of the PRC
(REE AR MBI E)E)

o Labor Contract Law of the PRC
(REARKEMBEILEE RE)
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ESG Aspect
ESGEM®

RE - HERERERE

Significant Laws and Regulations
FEAEEER

Aspect B2: Health and Safety
EHB2 : EREEZSE

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility
EmEB6 - EmAE

Aspect B7: Anti-corruption
EHEB7 : RES

Work Safety Law of the PRC

(REARKEME 22 EEE)

Law of the PRC on Occupational Disease Prevention and Control
(P EE AR FEMBIGE S REPAE)

The PRC’s Regulation on Safety Supervision of Coal Mines

(P EERLR 2 B IEA)

The Coal Mine Safety Rules

(BT 2 RIE)

The Regulation on Safety Testing and Inspection of Air
Compressors, and the Primary Ventilation System and Primary
Drainage System

(RBERATZREBEEE  TERERS - THKRRZ2RARER
)

Safety Inspecting-testing Specifications for Coal Mine(AG1011 -
AG1013)

(HEZ 28R ) (AG1011 - AG1013)

Coal Industry Law of the PRC

GAE 87979

Grade for Closed Process Water Circuit in Coal Preparation
Plant(MT/T810-1999)
CEERBOLKBAR AR Z AR (MT/T810-1999)

Coal Sizing Equipment Performance Evaluation (GB/T15716-1995)
(B 9 R @ TE MR E 7H5)(GB/T15716-1995)

General Rules for Analytical and Testing Methods of Coal (GB/
T483-2007)

(R 2 1T BB 77 0 — MR AR TE ) (GB/T483-2007)

Determination of Total Moisture in Coal(GB/T211-2007)

(R 27Kk 53 89815 75 7% ) (GB/T211-2007)

Determination of Mineral Matter in Coal(GB/T7560-2001)
CEARREYE 89817 77 %) (GB/T7560-2001)

Determination of Calorific Value of Coal(GB/T479— 2000)

(R B2V 28I E 77 7%) (GB/T479-2000)

Personal Information Protection Act

(BABRHREE)

Criminal Law of the PRC
CREIEDY
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R - HERERRE

HKEX ESG REPORTING GUIDE INDEX

Subject Areas, aspects, general disclosure and

B X FESGH &5 5| & 5l

key performance indicators (“KPIs”) Section Page Number
FEEH  FH —REERERENER(BRENER] E-3:] BH
A. Environmental
ARE
Aspect A1: Emissions
BEA1 : BB
General Disclosure | Information on: GREEN P.113-122
—MRHEE (a)  the policies; and OPERATIONS %1132 1228
(b) compliance with relevant laws and | & & 2&&
regulations that have a significant impact | KEY LAWS AND P. 132-133
on the issuer REGULATIONS $1322 1338
relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, | £ Z/A#%R
discharges into water and land, and generation
of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.
Note: Air emissions include NOx, SOx, and other pollutants
regulated under national laws and regulations.
Greenhouse gases include carbon dioxide,
methane, nitrous oxide, hydrofluorocarbons,
perfluorocarbons and sulphur hexafluoride.
Hazardous wastes are those defined by national
regulations.
ERABERIMOREREYEN - mKKRLHAIHES
BEEREEREDNELEFH
(@) BXR: &
(b) BTFHBEITABERTENEBERE KRN
BEFL -
7 BERBEReEAE/LY  REltPREMZEREE LR
BIREBS LY -
BERBEE_SR Bk StiR - af
WILEY » 2R ERASER -
BEEEEMEBRRROIMAESE -

KPI' A1.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions | ENERGY, AIR P.117-118
RRERUEEALL | data. AND GHG E117E118E
e iR LE R AR B B EMISSIONS
BEIR - BER K
BEREBBEN
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BE - 4ERERERE

Subject Areas, aspects, general disclosure and

key performance indicators (“KPIs”) Section Page Number
FTEES  FEH - —REBERBRENES(BERERIER]D =4:0] BH
KPI A1.2 Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) | ENERGY, AIR P.117-118
RABR4EMIEIZA1.2 | greenhouse gas emissions (in tonnes) and, where | AND GHG F17E1188
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production | EMISSIONS
volume, per facility). R - BERKR
BEE@E)REREZ(BE2)AERBHNE | ERBHM
AAE) R(MER)EE(WMAEESEM - &
BREAE) °
KPI'A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) | WASTE P. 120-121
RABR4EMIEIZA1.3 | and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of | MANAGEMENT | 512021218
production volume, per facility). EEEME R
FEAEEEEMRE ANETE) R(WER)ZE
(WMABESEN - BHEREE) ©
KPI A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) | WASTE P. 120-121
RSB MISIEA1.4 | and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of | MANAGEMENT | $£120F 1218
production volume, per facility). BEEMER
FrEAEEREEYHEE S R(WER) BE
(MABEEBN - BEZRBE) °
KPI A1.5 Description of emission target(s) set and steps | GREEN P. 113-122
B EBIEEA15 | taken to achieve them. OPERATIONS £1138 1228
HAERTENHEREBRLERMNEXNBENY | GELE
KPI A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous | WASTE P. 120-121
RASEEMIEIZEA1.6 | wastes are handled, and a description of | MANAGEMENT | $£120& 1218
reduction target(s) set and steps taken to achieve | EEEY) &

them.
HEEEERBEZEEYNS L - A RMEM
HRERREEE R REFEEGERK B IZM TR -
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Subject Areas, aspects, general disclosure and
key performance indicators (“KPIs”)

TREEE - FE

—REERBREMEE(BREARIEE]

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Section

0]

Page Number

T

Aspect A2: Use of Resources

EBEA2 : ERMEH
General Disclosure | Policies on the efficient use of resources, | GREEN P.113-122
—MREE including energy, water and other raw materials. | OPERATIONS F113E1228

Note: Resources may be used in production, in storage, ﬁ@%@

transportation, in buildings, electronic equipment, etc.

BEREAERBIEER - KREMERME 8K

Eﬁ o

7 BRAAREE  #F B8 BF ETIHES-

KPI' A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by | ENERGY, AIR P.117-118
RABR4EMIBIZA2.1 | type (e.g. electricity, gas or oil) in total (kWh in | AND GHG F117E2118H
'000s) and intensity (e.g. per unit of production | EMISSIONS

volume, per facility). BER - BRI
RERSS>HEER IBELERME B3 | ERBHK
MBREUTETERAZE) RBEWUEES
Bf - BERMEAE)
KPI A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per | WATER AND P. 119
RABR4ENIEIZA2.2 | unit of production volume, per facility). WASTEWATER F1198
BEKEREE(MABESEMN - BHERWHET | MANAGEMENT
H) - FAK R EEKE IR
KPI A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set | GREEN P.113-122
RABR4EMIEIZA2.3 | and steps taken to achieve them. OPERATIONS F11381228
R REANE  URERXRENEREREER | #BEE
ERBENLR -
KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in | WATER AND P. 119
BSEIEIEA2.4 | sourcing water that is fit for purpose, water | WASTEWATER %1198
efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to achieve | MANAGEMENT
them. KK BEKE TR

it SR EGE AR LRI B AR RE - BB RKK
@w WERERENEERDCERIERBREND
s%o
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Subject Areas, aspects, general disclosure and

key performance indicators (“KPIs”) Section Page Number
THEES  FEH - - —BREBEREAREXES(RAREXIER]) ;0] =E 4
KPI A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished | Due to the N/A
RABR4EMIEIZA2.5 | products (in tonnes) and, if applicable, with | business nature, | @M
reference to per unit produced. the Group does
SR MATABEMB RS (LABBETE) X (2EA) | not generate
BEESBUGE - a significant
amount of
packaging
material.
HREBMLE
REEWmAEE
REBEMH -
Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources
BHEA3 : BERAAER
General Disclosure | Policies on minimizing the issuer’s significant | GREEN P.113-122
—RRIREE impact on the environment and natural resources. | OPERATIONS F11321228
BMEZETAHRERRAEBREKNEATENR | ZELE
5% o
KPI A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities | BIODIVERSITY p.122
RASR AR MIBIZA3.1 | on the environment and natural resources and | AND F1228
the actions taken to manage them. ECOLOGICAL
HIREBEHHRBERRABERNERTEKRE | PROTECTION
KMEBEHATENTE - MBI RE
REIRAE
Aspect A4: Climate Change
[BEA4 : RIZE1L
General Disclosure | Policies on identification and mitigation of | CLIMATE P. 114-116
—RRHEE significant climate-related issues which have | RESILIENCE £114E1168
impacted, and those which may impact, the | AND
issuer. MANAGEMENT
BRIREHERRAREEHBEITAEETENE | RIEFEEZNKRE
ARRIEEFEEERNEE i
KPI A4.1 Description of the significant climate-related | CLIMATE P.114-116
RABR4EMIEIZA4.1 | issues which have impacted, and those which | RESILIENCE F114E1168
may impact, the issuer, and the actions taken to | AND
manage them. MANAGEMENT
HADERAIGEEHBTAEEZENEARE | RIREZNRE
HBESEE - RELHTH - i
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Subject Areas, aspects, general disclosure and

key performance indicators (“KPIs”) Section Page Number
THEEHS  FEH - —BREBEREAREXES(RAREXER]) ;] =E 4
B. Social
B.AtE
Employment and Labour Practices
EBREREIER
Aspect B1: Employment
EmEB1 : EfR
General Disclosure | Information on: PEOPLE P. 123-129
—REE (a)  the policies; and EMPOWERMENT | §123& 1298
(b) compliance with relevant laws and | B#ES
regulations that have a significant impact | KEY LAWS AND P. 132-133
on the issuer REGULATIONS %1322 1338
relating to compensation and dismissal, | EEXEEER
recruitment and promotion, working hours,
rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-
discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.
ERHMREE BERES  TERE - R
B FEHE  Zaot RERUREMEER
B
(@) BEK: &
(b) EBTFHBETABEARTZENRBEEZLRD
BEH -
KPI B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type | EMPLOYEE P. 124-125
RSB MIEEB1.1 | (for example, full-or part-time), age group and | OVERVIEW %1242 1258
geographical region. EEBR
R - EEER (Pl B3EE) - Fic/AEnl
MBI DEES B -
KPIB1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group | EMPLOYEE P. 124-125
RA4E4EIEIEB1.2 | and geographical region. OVERVIEW $124F 1258
RIER - FieRI KRB DHEEMAELLE - EEHR
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BE - 4ERERERE

Subject Areas, aspects, general disclosure and

key performance indicators (“KPIs”)

THEEE  TE —RERERERARESR(HEENEERD

Section

0]

Page Number

HE

Aspect B2: Health and Safety

EEB2: @EHEZE

General Disclosure | Information on: OCCUPATIONAL | P. 127-128
—MRHEE (a)  the policies; and HEALTH AND F12781288
(b) compliance with relevant laws and | SAFETY
regulations that have a significant impact | BiE¥f@FE8E%%S | P. 132-133
on the issuer KEY LAWS AND | 5132& 1338
relating to providing a safe working environment | REGULATIONS
and protecting employees from occupational | £Z/EAEER
hazards.
ERRMLZ2TERERREREREREBEMNRE
=4
(@) BXE: &
(b) EFHBETAGERTENHEEZERRA
BYER o
KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities | OCCUPATIONAL | P. 127-128
RABR4ENIE1ZB2.1 | occurred in each of the past three years including | HEALTH AND F1272 1285
the reporting year. SAFETY
BEZFBEERFE)BEFRAITHRNASER | BEEREETS
b= o
KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. OCCUPATIONAL | P. 127-128
R ERUIEEB2.2 | AIBEBAIIERH - HEALTH AND E1278 1288
SAFETY
BEEREZ R
KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety | OCCUPATIONAL | P. 127-128
R4S WIEIZEB2.3 | measures adopted, how they are implemented | HEALTH AND F127E 1288
and monitored. SAFETY
BIRPTER MM B R R 2 - U REBEHR | BEREREZSE
TREERETE -
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Subject Areas, aspects, general disclosure and
key performance indicators (“KPIs”)

THEEE  TE —BREERESARESR(HEERESRD

Section

0]

Page Number

T

Aspect B3: Development and Training

FEEBS3 : /& RE

General Disclosure | Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and | TRAINING AND P. 128-129
—MREE skills for discharging duties at work. Description | DEVELOPMENT F128F 1298
of training activities. Hl R R
Note: Training refers to vocational training. It may include
internal and external courses paid by the employer.
ERETEERT IIERE M MEB RN
o HHIEFES o
i FBIEREEY - TREREENBHRIMNERE -
KPI B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender | TRAINING AND P. 128-129
RASEAEWIE1ZB3.1 | and employee category (e.g. senior management, | DEVELOPMENT F£128F 1298
middle management). B RER
RUERREERN(INESRERERE  HREEE)
EIoMXIEERADL -
KPI B3.2 The average training hours completed per | TRAINING AND P. 128-129
RIS 4 MIEIZB3.2 | employee by gender and employee category. DEVELOPMENT F128FE 1298
mrUpIREEERNE S  BREETKIINTF | FlLkER
I8 o
Aspect B4: Labour Standards
fEEB4 - % TAA|
General Disclosure | Information on: LABOUR P. 126
—MREE (a)  the policies; and STANDARDS %1268
(b) compliance with relevant laws and | % T*#8|
regulations that have a significant impact | KEY LAWS AND P. 132-133
on the issuer REGULATIONS %132E 1338
relating to preventing child and forced labour. FEERBER

BRAPHIEE TekoaFl4s THY ¢

(a) HE: &

(b) BTHIEITABERTENRBERERR
K&K} o
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Subject Areas, aspects, general disclosure and

key performance indicators (“KPIs”) Section Page Number
FTEES  FEH - —REBERBRENES(BERERIER]D =4:0] BH
KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review employment | LABOUR P. 126
RASR A IEIEBA4.1 | practices to avoid child and forced labour. STANDARDS $126H
Rl BEEMNEEABEE T REHE | STHEE
I o
KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such | LABOUR P. 126
RA#4EMIE1EB4.2 | practices when discovered. STANDARDS #1268
R EERZRIBARERGRBAMERNO Y | $TER
Operating Practices
EEER
Aspect B5 : Supply Chain Management
[EmEB5 : HEEER
General Disclosure | Policies on managing environmental and social | SUPPLY CHAIN P. 106-107
—RRIRER risks of the supply chain. MANAGEMENT F1062 1078
EIRMEENIRE R GRRBER - e e E e
KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region. SUPPLY CHAIN P. 106-107
BARERUEEBS. | REB S HHERRE - MANAGEMENT | Z5106E 1078
HEHEER
KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging | SUPPLY CHAIN P. 106-107
RASREIEIEB5.2 | suppliers, number of suppliers where the | MANAGEMENT | $£106E107&
practices are being implemented, how they are | #fEH# &2
implemented and monitored.
M BEERHERNED - mERITTEBIED
BHEEEE - UREERITRERTX -

KPI B5.3 Description of practices used to identify | SUPPLY CHAIN P. 106-107
RS MIEIEBS.3 | environmental and social risks along the supply | MANAGEMENT | $£106E& 1078
chain, and how they are implemented and | HE#EEIR

monitored.
R B @R M EES EREGHIRE R g RR
EER - LARMBBERITRERE -
KPI B5.4 Description of practices used to promote | SUPPLY CHAIN P. 106-107
R EWIEIZEB5.4 | environmentally preferable products and services | MANAGEMENT | 10621078
when selecting suppliers, and how they are | f{EH#EEIE
implemented and monitored. GREEN P. 121
Mt EREHREER(RESZARRE®RMRBH | PROCUREMENT | 1218
BH - ARAEERITRERTE - FEWE
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Subject Areas, aspects, general disclosure and
key performance indicators (“KPIs”)

THEEE  TE —BREERESARESR(HEERESRD

Section

0]

Page Number

T

[EHEB6 : EmEIE

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility

AND CUSTOMER
SAFETY
Em Kk RGEE
REREFZE

General Disclosure | Information on: PRODUCT P. 105-112
— M= (a)  the policies; and EXCELLENCE F10521128
(b) compliance with relevant laws and | S#Em®
regulations that have a significant impact | KEY LAWS AND P. 132-133
on the issuer REGULATIONS %132E 1338
relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling | Due to our
and privacy matters relating to products and | business nature,
services provided and methods of redress. advertising and
EEFMEHERNMBRENERELZS - BES - 15 | labelling are not
FBERALBEEARMRITED applicable to us.
(@) B%E: & FEERBRER
(b) EBTHERTABEAZENHBEZRZERM | AREBMLE -
BER o B R
A o
KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped | PRODUCT P. 108-109
B4R AEIEIEB6.1 | subject to recalls for safety and health reasons. AND SERVICE $108E 1098
EENCEXERERTRAREREEEEAMA | QUALITY
BB DL - ASSURANCE
AND CUSTOMER
SAFETY
EmEkREEE
REREPLZE
KPI B6.2 Number of products and service related | PRODUCT P. 108-109
R4S IEIEB6.2 | complaints received and how they are dealt with. | AND SERVICE $108E 1098
REBRERMREHRFEE A REHTE - QUALITY
ASSURANCE
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BE - 4ERERERE

Subject Areas, aspects, general disclosure and

key performance indicators (“KPIs”) Section Page Number
FTEES  FEH - —REBERBRENES(BERERIER]D =4:0] BH
KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and | INTELLECTUAL P. 111
RASRAEIEIEB6.3 | protecting intellectual property rights. PROPERTY F111H
B A R E A B E R B - PROTECTION
TR EE MR
KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and | PRODUCT P. 108-109
RABE4EN3E1EB6.4 | recall procedures. AND SERVICE F108E 1098
HiEERERERERBKIEST QUALITY
ASSURANCE
AND CUSTOMER
SAFETY
EmEkRBER
REREPLZE
KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and | DATA PRIVACY P. 110
PSS IEIEB6.5 | privacy policies, how they are implemented and | PROTECTION #1108
monitored. AND
B & ERHMRE RALBBUER - LA RBB#HT | CYBERSECURITY
NERFIE - IR B RE R
Wiz
Aspect B7: Anti-corruption
EBEB7 : RES
General Disclosure | Information on: ANTI- P.111-112
— PR R (a)  the policies; and CORRUPTION F111E1128
(b) compliance with relevant laws and | R&)5
regulations that have a significant impact | KEY LAWS AND P. 132-133
on the issuer REGULATIONS %132E 1338
relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money | £ ZEAEER

laundering.

BRAM LBRER - 9% - BEFREREN ¢

(a) BX: &

(b) EBFHBEITABEATENBBEELRD
BEH -
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Subject Areas, aspects, general disclosure and

key performance indicators (“KPIs”) Section Page Number
FTEES  FEH  —REBERBRENESZ(BEREXIER]D E=4:0] BH
KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding | ANTI- P.111-112
RASRAEIBIEB7.1 | corrupt practices brought against the issuer or its | CORRUPTION F11121128
employees during the reporting period and the | R &5
outcomes of the cases.
RERBAHBETASEESERHITVEEENE
SR ARGEE RFAER -
KPI B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle- | ANTI- P.111-112
RASR4ENIBIZR7.2 | blowing procedures, how they are implemented | CORRUPTION F11E112E
and monitored. k&S
HIRP SRR BHREF - UEEERITRER
FE .
KPI B7.3 Description of anti-corruption training provided to | ANTI- P.111-112
BAEMIEZEB7.3 | directors and staff. CORRUPTION F111E1128
HmEERE TRENRESHE - RES
Community
HE
Aspect B8: Community Disclosure
[EHEB8 : #EHE
General Disclosure | Policies on community engagement to understand | THRIVING P. 130-131
—RRIRER the needs of the communities where the issuer | COMMUNITY %1302 1318
operates and to ensure its activities take into | & tE
consideration the communities’ interests.
BRAMER2ERTREEMELRETEMBR
HEBZBHEERHLRIRAIBUE -
KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, | THRIVING P. 130-131
RASE4E IB1EB8.1 | environmental concerns, labour needs, health, | COMMUNITY F1308 1318
culture, sport). gE
EIERERHE REFHE HIFTK £
Bt 85) -
KPI B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the | THRIVING P. 130-131
RASRENIE1EB8.2 | focus area. COMMUNITY £13021318
EEIHEMHBERNEEXER) - B ol
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

K| MOORE

Independent Auditor’s Report to the Shareholders of
China Qinfa Group Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Qinfa Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together, the “Group”) set out on pages 159 to 356 which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2023, and the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including material accounting policy
information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2023, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with IFRS Accounting
Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (“IASB”) and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

18 3 2 B AN

Moore CPA Limited % X
801-806 Silvercord, Tower 1, B E
30 Canton Road, Tsimshatsui, =
Kowloon, Hong Kong 7% E
o
T +852 2375 3180 =) ﬁ,_
F +85223753828 w
N =
www.moore.hk = =

BHERREEERQITRRZ
BYRBEERS
(RESHSEME A HRL 7))

=R

EEOEREIINE159E356EFRERERF
RAal((EARDRENMBAR(GEBIEEEDHN
RAMB®RE  ZEREAVBERREEN_-Z=
SE+ AT HORAVBERAREEEZ
AIEFEZGEEERAR  RAESEHREK
GEBERER  URGEAUBHERZHT &
FERGTHRERER -

EERR %GW?%#&%E*ETFII% At R
ﬁ%/\((l RE /EE'Jﬁ%AJ)ﬁJE%E’JI&‘%ﬁMW

%L‘EE'JUIWL Hﬁ%#ﬁ%ﬁﬁ'JJ)EEﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁ&
H)‘i BEEER_ZT_=F+_A=1+—HHKE
MBARRAAREBEZ A ILFENEEMBERER
MiEaReRE  WEEREB (R AR &
BREZARHE -

; IB)

ZE-=FF# ANNUAL REPORT 2023

145



146

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B AR S

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing ("HKSAs”") issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”) together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
consolidated financial statements in the Cayman Islands, and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements and the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion.

MATERIAL UNCERTAINTIES RELATED TO GOING
CONCERN

We draw attention to note 2 to the consolidated financial
statements, which highlights that the Group had net current
liabilities of approximately RMB3,324,762,000. As at 31
December 2023, the borrowings and accrued interest
amounting to an aggregate amount of approximately
RMB492,444,000 and approximately RMB176,405,000
respectively had been due for immediate payment. In addition,
as at 31 December 2023, there were several unsettled
litigations against the Group mainly requesting the Group to
repay certain payables with interest immediately.

CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HEIZZEEHFRAR
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

MATERIAL UNCERTAINTIES RELATED TO GOING
CONCERN (CONTINUED)

These conditions, along with other matters as set forth in note 2
to the consolidated financial statements, indicate the existence
of material uncertainties which may cast significant doubt over
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. Our opinion
is not modified in respect of these matters.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters. In addition to the matter described in the
Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern section, we
have determined the matters described below to be the key
audit matters to be communicated in our report.

B R BERE

FRFEKENEXRTHBRRE®
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Key audit matter

HREZEE

FAREFEZSE®

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EENBRNMEEZSEE

Impairment assessment of coal mining rights and related property, plant and equipment

BRERBERABEYE - BERRBZREFG

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had coal
mining rights and related property, plant and
equipment of approximately RMB1,864,159,000 and
RMB3,810,074,000 respectively, as disclosed in notes
15 and 16 respectively to the consolidated financial
statements. Impairment losses of RMB12,443,000 and
RMB32,712,000 in relation to coal mining right and
property, plant and equipment of the coal business
segment were recognised respectively during the year.
WA ERERMFISR16D AR - RZTEZ=F
TZA=+—H > EBESENRKRKREEREEDE -
E REED LA ARYE1,864,159,0007T X A R
3,810,074,0007T ° G A BE B IR £ 15 5 30 #O KR IR ERBE A2 A
K% - BB RRED HIERIRERE AR 12,443,000
TR ARM32,712,0007T °

CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HEIZZEEHFRAR

Our procedures to evaluate the impairment
assessment of coal mining rights and related property,
plant and equipment made by the management of the
Group included:

EHE EREEERBMETHRRREERARY

¥ BERRERENGR - BFRNTUATRERF
° We assessed management’s identification

of individual assets and CGUs to test the
assets for impairment based on the Group’s
accounting policies and our understanding of
the Group’s business;

. EERE BERENSHABRERLRE S5EX
BHTE FEEEERUEEETRENR
MEEEEENMREEFEMETHHER

o We evaluated the competence, capabilities,
objectivity and independence of the external
valuers;

. T EEINEBEER BRI - Be T - BE
M RIBE
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Key audit matter

HREEZER

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B % B

BREREE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EENERONEEZSE

Impairment assessment of coal mining rights and related property, plant and equipment (continued)

R RRERARBYIE - BE K RE 2R EF )

For the purpose of management’s impairment
assessment, the recoverable amounts of the individual
assets or the cash generating units (“CGUs”), to which
the assets belonged were determined by management,
with assistance of an independent qualified external
valuers engaged by the Group, based on their values
in use using cash flow projections. In carrying out the
impairment assessments, significant management
judgements were used to determine the key assumptions,
including projected sales quantities, unit selling prices,
unit costs, gross margins, growth rates, coal reserves,
production plan taking into account the time required
for the renewal of coal mining rights, and discount rates,
underlying the value-in-use calculations. Accordingly, the
impairment assessment of these assets and CGUs were
considered to be the most significance in the audit and
therefore determined to be a key audit matter.
RERBETHRENGME  EEEEXREEMBN
Eﬁé?i%f‘z(ﬁﬁé?iﬁﬁbE’JTH&Z@%%EBEE%:EE
SEEENBYA ﬁi@l\*ﬁfﬁ%ﬁﬂia’ﬂﬁ%ﬁﬂT%)ﬂfﬁ
Aﬁméﬁ BB REEETE - EETRETHE
fif’ﬁﬂjék#ﬂ%ﬁu?zrﬁz%fﬁj“ - BREEGEERE TE
HENTARHE  BAEE  BLKA - EH - BRE
BiRiEE - £EE Gt R EBEER T HRRE) KRR

oAt RFEERASELEEMARENGREAS
ZBEPRASENTEY — RNHEETABRERS
big

° We assessed the value-in-use calculations and
methodology adopted by management and the
external valuers;

. HFE fﬁﬂ%&ﬁl\*ﬁﬁ@ﬁﬂi TREREE
° We assessed the reasonableness of key

assumptions (including projected sales
quantities, unit selling prices, unit costs, gross
margins, production plan, growth rates, coal
reserves and discount rates) based on our
knowledge of the business and industry; and

o EERBREFHZERRITENRD - fHEE
ERB(DETAHHEE  BEUEE - BELKE -

EAMN - EEFE - BRE . KRFHEERBEX)
= T/\IE &
° We evaluated the sensitivity analysis performed

by the management and the external valuer
in respect of the growth rates and discount
rates to assess the extent of impact on the
calculations of the value in use.

. EEMHEREB RN EEMRERE KRR
RETHHRRESN - LT HEEREEFE
VR EBIRE -
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Key audit matter

HREZER

FAREFEZSE®

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EENERNNEEZEE

Valuation of new borrowings to be recognised on extinguishment of original borrowings

REEREERETRINMEENLE

We identified the valuation of new borrowings recognised
on extinguishment of the original borrowings as key
audit matter due to the significance of the balance to
the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and
the significant judgment involved by the management in
determining the fair value of the new borrowings to be
recognised.
ENEARHGEMBERREBNEEN ULEEEEE
EMEENAAESERNEARHE - EEREERE
ERERNHEELERDIAERERSER -

As explained in note 28 to the consolidated financial
statements, there were modifications to the terms of the
Group’s certain borrowings which the management of
the Group had concluded that the modifications were
substantial modifications and hence should be treated
as extinguishment of the original financial liabilities
and recognition of new liabilities. The new liabilities
are measured at fair values on respective dates of
extinguishment of the original borrowings with the
difference between the carrying amounts of the original
borrowings derecognised and the fair values of the new
borrowings being recognised in profit or loss.
MANER & BTSRRI L 28 PR AR - Ex.%?%“1
Brrgal - EXEERERRZFEIBEXNER
HEEAEEREMEBBEAERFTABRIE - A
REGENHEBEBPN AR ERE - KRILHER E
RESHEEFEEANBACHANEZENERER

150 CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HEZ=R&EBERA A

Our procedures in relation to valuation of the other
borrowings included:

BEEAHEMBERENRFEE

° We obtained the settlement agreements and
assessed the appropriateness of accounting
treatment on extinguishment of original
borrowings and recognition of new borrowings
with reference to terms and conditions of the

agreements;

. EERS MR Z - W2 E B E IR ARG
TEEEREENRERATEEN ST EENE
B

o We assessed the appropriateness of the

valuation methodologies and key inputs
adopted by the management in determining the
discount rates to be applied when determining
the fair values of the new borrowings;

. EETHEREERENBEQAAER  BE
AR KA ME R AR EEE A B
BEM
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Key audit matter
BRBEZBR
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BREREE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EENERONEEZSE

Valuation of new borrowings to be recognised on extinguishment of original borrowings (continued)

REEREERETRINHEENMGHEGE

In determining the fair values of new borrowings to be
recognised on extinguishment of the original borrowings,
the management of the Group is required to estimate a
suitable discount rates. The management of the Group
had taken into account key inputs such as risk-free rate,
credit spread and illiquidity spread when determining the
discount rate applied to determine the discount rates.
RETEEREEREIANMEENIAER - HEE
EREFEMFEENERX . BEEEEREENETHK
REREZEEARME - FERERERDUESEZEH
B AER - UEERIER o

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group had
recognised net loss on extinguishment of old liabilities
and recognition of new liabilities of approximately
RMB8,982,000 comprising of loss of RMB211,121,000
on substantial modification upon loan restructuring of
a loan and gain of RMB202,139,000 from a substantial
modification upon loan restructuring of another loan,
as disclosed in note 8 to the consolidated financial
statements.

BE_T_=F+_A=1T—HILFE > EXEE®ER
EREBBMERNBENEBRFENHARES,982,000
T BE—ZERREREEAREHEXNEIIZEEAR
#%211,121,000T & B — 2 ERXNEREARELEXE
7] 2 W AR %202,139,0007T © HKEENAR & B 15 R Mt
8

o We checked the accuracy of the calculations
prepared by the management for determining
the fair values of the new other borrowings; and

J EERECEREBRECHAMEBE AR EMR
HEGtENERT &

o We evaluated the sufficiency of the relevant
disclosures in accordance with the applicable
accounting standards in the consolidated
financial statements.

. ZERBGEAVBHRRTBEANSHERFG
HARBRFERES RS °
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Key audit matter
BREZBIR

FAREFEZSE®

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EENERNNEEZSEE

Litigation claims relating to dividends to non-controlling shareholders of Shanxi Huameiao Energy Group

Co., Ltd. (“Huameiao Energy”)

FROUAEXREREEER AT (EXRER]) FZRRTIKYREHFRHPR

As at 31 December 2023, there was an outstanding
litigation initiated by the non-controlling shareholders
against the Group to claim for their entitled benefits
in respect of acquiring 20% of coal production of
Shanxi Shuozhou Pinglu District Huameiao Xingtao
Coal Company Limited (“Xingtao Coal Mine”), Shanxi
Shuozhou Pinglu District Huameiao Fengxi Coal
Company Limited (“Fengxi Coal Mine”) and Shanxi
Shuozhou Pinglu District Huameiao Chongsheng Coal
Company Limited (“Chongsheng Coal Mine”) held by
subsidiaries of Huameiao Energy from the year of 2013
to 2020 at production cost prices as the distributions
entitled to non-controlling shareholders of Huameiao
Energy for the aforesaid period, which were equivalent to
aggregate amount of approximately RMB705,860,000.
RZZBZ=F+"A=+—H8  FEBRERR HEERE
HARREFRR - Bk EE RELIROIE 2 R FA#REA LA
MIFEREZREMEEZAR DG (HEEKE] - LA
MIFBREZRBAKEARQF(NEAKE]) RILFEAH
MFBREZRENMREZBR AR (RIEE]H20%HE
BHRFER T =FE_ZT_TFREREEERKT
HOEAENE - EREXERIFERRRAE LA BEAE
BRSNS - HERAFTHAR705,860,0007T °
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Our procedures in relation to repayment to the non-
controlling shareholders of Huameiao Energy included:

BEEABRERERIFERBRRERNEF B

o We discussed with the Group’s management
and evaluated the appropriateness of the
methodology of the assessment prepared by
the management;

o EEHE EEEERENRRIGEREERFR

[ M

SEFHETDENEE L

o We evaluated the competence, capabilities,
objectivity and independence of the external
lawyer engaged by the Group;

J EE5h ESEZENIMNERAM TR - B
h - BEEERBIY
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Key audit matter
BRBEZBR
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BREREE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EENERONEEZSE

Litigation claims relating to dividends to non-controlling shareholders of Shanxi Huameiao Energy Group

Co., Ltd. (“Huameiao Energy”) (continued)

FRAOUAEXREREEER QA (EXRER]) FZERR R KRS A FDREA R E

Pursuant to the judgment issued by the Shanxi
Provincial Shouzhou Municipal Intermediate People’s
Court on 14 October 2023, the Group was ordered to
deliver approximately 6.03 million tonnes of coal to
non-controlling shareholders without any charge. The
directors of the Company are of the opinion that the court
judgment deviated from the legal claims by the non-
controlling shareholders and also the clauses stated in
the relevant shareholders’ agreements. Subsequently, the
Group filed an appeal, which was accepted by Shanxi
Provincial High People’s Court. Up to the date when
the consolidated financial statements are authorised for
issue, the litigation claim is still in progress.
BEBELAEANTHRRARZEZRER-_Z_=F+HA+H
BEHEHDR - BEEEBASEIERBREERZML
6,030,000Mf % » BRAEEZRA @ Al HIREIET
BN EEZRERAAARR BRAAGTERE - B
% BERERBHLF WAEASRAREZREXESH
LR BEGAMBHRRERETZERE  ZHFABRD
FEETTH o

o We assessed the reasonableness of key inputs
and assumptions (including the historical
production volume, unit selling price, historical
production costs and possible outcome of
litigation) adopted in the assessment; and

o EETERIEFRAOBREALHRER
(BRELES  BUEE ELEERARRA
BERVER AR NAEE - &

° We engaged an external lawyer to provide legal
advice and assist in reviewing the legal opinion
issued by the external lawyer engaged by the
Group and the court judgement.

o EEZRIIEFMRERMEZEZER - YHHE
Bl E5EEZEMNIINEZMMEENZEZERER
ROEBTHIR ©
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED) EREEREEH®)

Key audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit
BREZBIR EENERNMERZSE

Litigation claims relating to dividends to non-controlling shareholders of Shanxi Huameiao Energy Group
Co., Ltd. (“Huameiao Energy”) (continued)
FHERLUAZEXREREEGR QA ([FEXRER] FERRRIKMSREHFRRR(E)

Management assessed and recognised the provision for
the dividends payable to non-controlling shareholders
according to the circumstances and the assessment
requires significant management judgment. To support
their determination, management sought a legal opinion
from an external lawyer engaged by the Group.

IR EARAR B AT il N HERR P A SEFE il R SR A B 4
ZAMEREELHERERAE - RFRENRTE - 12
B SEEZRNIMNERMSIEEER -

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group had
recognised the provision for dividends to non-controlling
shareholders of RMB672,856,000.
HE_Z_=F+_A=+—HIEFE > EHEEEZ®R
[F) SE 22 B A BRI A Pl B 188485 A R #6672,856,0007T °
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INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S REPORT
THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all the information included in the
annual report for the year ended 31 December 2023 of the
Group other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work
we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of the other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the audit committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

B R BERE
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of
engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control.

CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HEIZZEEHFRAR
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AUDITORS RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF R ERGESVMBRBRRERENSE
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ()
(CONTINUED)

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

AAEEEMANSABRRRTREARAM
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

We communicate with the audit committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the audit committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the audit committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Moore CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Cheung Sai Kit
Practising Certificate Number: P05544

Hong Kong, 28 March 2024
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
mEEZEBAR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE2—Z =%+ _A=+—HILtFE
2023 2022
—EBC-=E —E-CF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BitsE ARETR ARETT

Revenue g 7 3,449,182 3,794,039
Cost of sales HERA (2,571,162) (2,520,756)
Gross profit E 878,020 1,273,283
Other income, gains and losses HibA -~ i REHE 8 2,016 85,533
Distribution expenses AEAZ (2,207) (2,100)
Administrative expenses TBAX (297,643) (305,286)
Impairment losses on coal mining rights BB RERR (12,443) -
Impairment losses on property, plant and nE - BEREBEIREBERE

equipment (32,712) -
Impairment losses on prepayments and other  TEAT BR U Bt FE MR 7 2 RUE S 18

receivables, net FE ©) (3,082)
Other expenses Hibf (11,169) (27,878)
Operatingproft mgwN e 1,020,470
Finance income BBRA 12,950 16,197
Finance costs IHBAA (184,672) (269,886)
Netfinancecosts MEAARE 9 (7172 (253689)
Profit before taxation BRBLADE R 10 352,137 766,781
Income tax expense FIEBEX 11 (160,110) (276,745)
Profit after taxaton BogRM ] 192027 490,036
Other comprehensive (loss)/income Hi2mE(58) WA
ltem that may be reclassified subsequentlyto ~ E&macEHHEZBERMER ¢

profit or loss:

Foreign currency translation differences for BIEBEEINEREZESR

foreign operations (8,191) 11,714

Other comprehensive (loss)/income forthe  FREM2E (EE), WA - BE#%E
yenvetoftex G 1714
Total comprehensive income for the year FEREEBAAE 183,836 501,750
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

mEEEWAR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #{ 2 —Z =%+ _A=+—HILtFE

2023 2022
—EZ=F —F--
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Bzt ARET T ARETFT
Profit for the year attributable to: PR F R
Equity shareholders of the Company ARAERFAA 200,346 456,543
Non-controlling interests FERER (8,319) 33,493
Profit for the year FRER 192,027 490,036
Total comprehensive income for the year EhER2EKALE :
attributable to:
Equity shareholders of the Company ANAERFEA 192,155 468,257
Non-controlling interests RS (8,319) 33,493
Total comprehensive income for the year FREZERALE 183,836 501,750
Earnings per share attributable to the equity FRAXLAFAERZFEAEEESREA
shareholders of the Company during the
year 14
Basic earnings per share BRELREF RMB7.8 Cents RMB18.1 Cents
AR¥7.8% AR¥18.15
Diluted eamings per share BREERA RMB7.7 Cents RMB17.5 Cents
AR®1.7S AR#17.55
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
wE BT ESIR L R

31 December 2023 —E-_=F+-HA=+—H

2023 2022
—E-= —E-—
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BT AR®T AREET T
(Restated)
(& E5)
Non-current assets ERBEE
Coal mining rights B R 15 1,864,159 2,367,351
Property, plant and equipment W - BE A& 16 4,099,728 3,432,903
Right-of-use assets EREEE 17 18,909 17,325
Other deposit HEmize 23 28,331 27,858
Interest in an associate R—REEE R e 2 #Es 18 = =
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 6,011,127 5845437
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 21 201,046 439,373
Trade receivables U E 5 8RN 22 65,741 178,867
Prepayments and other receivables  FB BRF K H 4th FE U BR 3¢ 23 358,632 387,181
Pledged and restricted deposits EHER R ZR HIFER 24 918,295 143,676
Cash and cash equivalents B MREEEY 25 302,732 855,997
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 1,846,446 2,005,094
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade payables FEE 5 8RR 26 (420,599) (387,564)
Other payables and contract liabilites HithfER R LA D EE 27 (2,579,441) (1,967,025)
Lease liabilities HEBaE 30 (3,487) (8,794)
Borrowings BE 28 (1,876,125) (3,447,453)
Tax payable FERFRIE (289,656) (350,097)
Deferred income JRIE A 31 (1,900) =
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 5,171,208 6,160,933
Net current liabilities rEBEfFE 00 (3324762) (4195839
Total assets less current liabilites HERERABAMK 2,686,365 1,689,508
Non-current liabilities FRBERE
Accrued reclamation obligations THIRIEREA 29 (115,320) (179,614)
Lease liabilities MHEaE 30 (7,321) (1,534)
Borrowings BE 28 (1,689,917) (73,307)
Deferred taxation RERIE 19 (538,497) (621,932)
Deferred income EEYA 31 (16,392) =
(2,367,447) (876,387)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
& B AR R

31 December 2023 —E-_=F+_-_A=+—H

2023 2022
—E-= —EF_—
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
ihg=2 ARET T ARBTT
(Restated)
(ZE7)
Net asset EERE 318,918 813,211
Capital and reserves B R G#E
Share capital & 32 211,224 211,224
Perpetual subordinated convertible sk AR 4% A 2 A% 75 5
securities 32 156,931 156,931
Deficit B4t (841,024) (355,050)
Total (deficit)/equity attributable to Z&A2Q TR IFHE AEN
equity shareholders of the (B4 REmBEE
Company (472,869) 13,105
Non-controlling interests FEERES 791,787 800,106
Total equity A 318,918 813,211

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of directorsof R-ZE-_WMFE=A -+ \BEFHEZZLEB AR

China Qinfa Group Limited on 28 March 2024 NRIESEIEREERE -
Xu Da Bai Tao
®mE BHE
Director Director
= =
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

AEETRER

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #{ 2 —Z =%+ _A=+—HILtFE

2023 2022
—E-= —EF-—
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
FfaE ARBT R ARMBTT
Operating activities EEER
Profit before taxation B 5% B g A 352,137 766,781
Adjustments for: BTESIEEL AR
Depreciation of property, plant and Y - BEREETE
equipment 10 426,421 324,711
Amortisation of coal mining rights R PR 5 10 491,012 622,739
Depreciation of right-of-use asset FRAEEENE 10 5,275 15,589
Finance income B HS LA 9 (12,950) (16,197)
Finance costs BARSRAR 9 184,672 269,886
Net loss on disposal of property, plant &9 - BE L& HE
and equipment B8 58 8 49 210
Impairment losses on coal mining IR ERTERE 2 R E & 18
rights 15 12,443 -
Impairment losses on property, plant ~ #12 « BB & &2 4& 2 EEE
and equipment 16 32,712 -
Impairment losses on prepayments TERTEBR R H At R UBR SR 2
and other receivables, net BEBE 3 3,082
Net loss/(gain) on substantial REREARELEKXNBERZ
modification upon loan restructuring  E518 (W 25) F %8 8 8,982 (11,321)
Net loss/(gain) on non-substantial BEZIFEXENR
modification of borrowings B8, (k) FE 8 5,476 (31,203)
Fair value gain on financial assetat ~ EAREFABTZHNESBEE
fair value through profit or loss Z A ERE 8 = (438)
1,506,232 1,943,839
Changes in working capital: gEEeE
Change in inventories FE#g 253,263 (224,825)
Change in trade receivables RUWE SR EH) 118,169 2,288
Change in prepayments and other FEAST R 5% B H A [ Wy AR Sk
receivables 190,739 86,800
Change in trade payables JERTE SRR E E) 3,980 74,620
Change in other payables and Hit ENEERRAEHNBEED
contract liabilities (208,022) (336,465)
Change in deferred income IRIEUG A B 18,292 -
Cash generated from operations BETEIBES 1,882,653 1,546,257
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
llV_\éiﬁrﬁ‘;ﬁiﬂ%

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE2—Z =%+ _A=+—HILtFE

2023 2022
—E-= —EF-—
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt &k ARET T ARETT

Interest paid EfTFE (118,369) (155,910)
PRC Corporate Income tax paid BT BT EH (303,986) (405,915)
Net cash generated from operating EZEBHFEBHEESFE
aetivitles e 1,460,298 == = 984,432
Investing activities RETE
Interest received 2 UWH B 12,950 16,197
Proceeds from disposal of property,  HE¥E - E L&

plant and equipment FiS 3818 332 300
Proceeds from disposal of financial HEZ AR BEGT ABRER

asset at fair value through profit or TRVEEFTS IR

loss - 20,550
Payments for property, plant and MWE - BEREE IR

equipment (1,081,452) (731,108)
Placement of pledged and restricted 17 E 31 & 52 BR #7751

deposits (774,619) (141,573)
Netcash used in investing activities RREBAARSFE  (1.842789) (835,634)
Financing activities AR E
Proceeds from borrowings BEFSIA 25 1,132,210 641,871
Repayments of borrowings BEREE 25 (1,332,123) (939,478)
Repayments of principle portion of BEHEARNAESHS

lease liabilities (12,159) (10,207)
Net cash used in financing activities BEZBAAREFRE (212072) ! (307,814)
Net decrease in cash and cash FReRASEEYRDFE

equivalents (594,563) (159,016)
Cash and cash equivalents R—A—BZzE£R

at 1 January ReEEY 855,997 1,030,439
Effect of foreign exchange rate ERSENE

changes 41,298 (15,426)
Cash and cash equivalents R+=-A=+—-H2

at 31 December HEeRESEEY 302,732 855,997
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i E MR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #{ 2 —Z =%+ _A=+—HILtFE

168

GENERAL

China Qinfa Group Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 4 March 2008
as an exempted company with limited liability under
the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (2007 Revision) of the
Cayman Islands. The directors of the Company consider
the immediate and ultimate holding companies of the
Group to be Fortune Pearl International Limited (“Fortune
Pearl”), a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands and the ultimate controlling shareholder to be
Mr. Xu Jihua (“Mr. Xu”), the sole shareholder of Fortune
Pearl. The Company’s shares were listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) with effect from 3 July 2009 (the
“Listing Date”). The address of its registered office is
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand
Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman lIslands and the principal
place of business of the Company is Unit Nos. 2201 to
2208, level 22, South Tower, Poly International Plaza,
No. 1 Pazhou Avenue East, Haizhu District, Guangzhou
City, the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).

The principal activities of the Company and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are coal mining,
purchases and sales, filtering, storage, blending of coal
in the PRC and shipping transportation.

The Company’s functional currency is Hong Kong
dollars (“HKD”). However, the presentation currency
of the consolidated financial statements is Renminbi
(“RMB”) in order to present the operating results and
financial position of the Group based on the economic
environment in which the operating subsidiaries of the
Group operate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE2—Z =%+ _A=+—HILtFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had net current
liabilities of approximately RMB3,324,762,000
(2022: net current liabilities of approximately
RMB4,155,839,000). As at 31 December 2023,
borrowings and accrued interest (including default
interest) amounting to approximately RMB492,444,000
(2022: RMB1,330,634,000) and approximately
RMB176,405,000 (2022: RMB219,718,000) respectively
had been due for immediate payment, in which short-
term bank borrowings of nil (2022: RMB590,990,000)
are short-term bank facilities that have been rolled
over upon respective maturities in the past several
years; other borrowing of RMB492,444,000 (2022:
RMB492,444,000) and related interest payable of
RMB176,405,000 (2022: RMB199,402,000) classified
as current liabilities in respect of Settlement Agreement
of Loan Ill (as defined and detailed in note 28) only
have total carrying amount of RMB219,918,000
(2022: RMB50,602,000) payable within twelve months
from 31 December 2023 (2022: twelve months from
31 December 2022) if only based on the revised
scheduled repayment terms set out in the Settlement
Agreement of Loan Il (as explained in note 28); other
borrowings of nil (2022: RMB247,200,000) are due to
an asset management company or other lenders that no
settlement agreement has been reached and signed.

In addition, pursuant to the settlement agreements (as
detailed in note 28) entered into during the years ended
31 December 2018 and 2021, there are default clauses
that the asset management companies can require the
Group to pay the outstanding balance of the original
borrowings and interest payable immediately in the
event of default. As at 31 December 2023, in respect
of the settlement agreements, other borrowings, which
had no event of default occurred so far up to the end
of the reporting period, with carrying amounts of only
RMB2,257,498,000 (2022: RMB2,607,894,000) and
related interest payable of RMB176,405,000 (2022
RMB199,402,000) were recognised in the Group’s
consolidated statement of financial position.
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mEBBEEFENAEARES,324,762,000
T(CE-—F : RHEEFENARE
4,155,839,0007T) - RZE_=F+_H
=+—8" fﬁE&F?rﬂ@(a%ﬂ@Rﬂ
BRI ARME492,444,000T(ZFE =
—F : AR¥1,330,634,0007T0) R AR
#5176, 405, 000TL(ZEZ=4F : ARK
219,718,000 0) B BIHAZERNBE S 1+ - H
FREBRTEES(ZCZEZF : ARK
590,990,0007T) A5 EIR{TIR(EHE ' B
RBEBRFSEIHERT  EMEE
AR®EA492, 444 000 (ZE=ZZF : A
R#492,444,0007T) & M B8 FE -1 71 B A
R#¥176,405,0000(ZE=Z=F : AR
#£199,402,0007T) EARBEE KN4 E
(EENFHBEHREMF28) D EARDE
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AT EAREMMEEELEERSA
R#219,918,000c(ZFE==F : ARK
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&H EE W
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T A=+ —HIEFETINEE HEGE
BHsE28) - BEAKHKFIR —BEEEY
=Y BEETEQRN ERAEERRY
NREENREELEHLENFE - EA:
7f_¢+ A=+—H &8s
CEHE ﬁ%ﬁﬂfl?ﬁiﬁ‘iL%"]%ﬁﬁﬁﬂE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #{ 2 —Z =%+ _A=+—HILtFE
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

Moreover, there are a number of litigations against the
Group of which the details are set out in note 39 to the
consolidated financial statements, mainly requesting the
Group to settle long outstanding payables with interest.
And the Group’s bank deposits of approximately
RMB458,000 (2022: RMB13,000) were restricted for use
in relation to the litigation proceeding, as set out in note
24 to the consolidated financial statements.

These conditions indicate the existence of material
uncertainties which may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the assumptions that the Group will
continue to operate as a going concern notwithstanding
the conditions prevailing as at 31 December 2023
and subsequently thereto up to the date when the
consolidated financial statements are authorised for
issue. In order to improve the Group’s financial position,
immediate liquidity and cash flows, and otherwise to
sustain the Group as a going concern, the directors of
the Company have adopted several measures together
with other measures in progress at the date when the
consolidated financial statements are authorised for
issue, which include but not limited to, the followings:

(i) For borrowings which will be maturing before
31 December 2024, the Group is actively
negotiating with banks/lenders before they fall
due to secure their renewals so as to ensure
that the necessary funds will be in place to
meet the Group’s working capital and financial
requirements in the future will continue to be
met. The directors of the Company are of the
view that based on past experience and the
current communication with banks/lenders, no
significant difficulties are expected in renewing
the lender’s borrowings and banks’ short-term
revolving borrowings upon their maturities;
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(ii)

in relation to those borrowings that have
been past due or those borrowings that
became immediately repayable due to cross-
default clauses set out in the respective loan
agreements, which are classified as current
liabilities and detailed in note 28, the Group is
in the process of negotiating with the relevant
banks and other lenders to extend the repayment
dates and to obtain waivers from banks and
other lenders. The directors of the Company are
of the view that based on past experience and
the current communication with banks/lenders,
it is not probable that the banks will exercise
the cross-default clauses to demand immediate
payment;

the Group will actively obtain additional new
sources of financing as and when needed;

given the stability of demand in coal market and
coal prices still within moderately favourable
range, the Group will accelerate the coal
production of those coal mines currently under
production and apply for the renewal of those
expired coal mining rights of coal mines not
yet commenced production, together with
applying cost control measures in cost of
sales, administrative expenses and capital
expenditures, to increase the Group’s internally
generated funds and operating cash inflows in
coming years continuously. The Group recorded
a net operating cash inflow of approximately
RMB1,460,298,000 (2022: RMB984,432,000)
during the year; and
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(v) the Group has appointed external lawyers and/
or assigned internal lawyers to handle the
outstanding litigations, and to mitigate the risk
exposure from any legal claims. In respect
of some of the litigations, the directors of the
Company are of the opinion that the Group has
valid grounds to defend against the claims.

On the basis of the successful implementation of the
measures described above in the foreseeable future
and after assessing the Group’s current and forecasted
cash positions, the directors of the Company are
optimistic that the Group will be able to meet in full the
Group’s financial obligations as they fall due for the
twelve months from 31 December 2023. Accordingly,
the consolidated financial statements of the Group have
been prepared on the going concern basis.

Should the Group be unable to continue in business as
a going concern, adjustments would have to be made
to write down the carrying amounts of the Group’s
assets to their recoverable amounts, to provide for any
further liabilities and to reclassify non-current assets
and non-current liabilities as current assets and current
liabilities respectively. The effects of these adjustments
have not been reflected in these consolidated financial
statements.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO 3. FE P37 5] Iz 2R 4& T B R Bt 7% 3R 5 ZE Al

IFRS ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (B BR B A 3 5 2E Al 1)
New and amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily FAZS 5 E o 4l 4 SR B ET 2 R4S 5T B P Bt
effective for the current year B EER
In the current year, the Group has applied the AREBOMBRGEVEHREANAFER
following new and amendments to IFRSs issued by the RERABAEBEerEZEg (R 2s
International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) for EREBE )EME T FHE] REIEETH
the first time, which are mandatorily effective for the PREAFEIREAER|  ZEHAN B - —F
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 for —A— Az BB FEHRREH £
the preparation of the consolidated financial statements: LUgE
IFRS 17 (including the June 2020 Insurance Contracts ERMBERELENE17H RBAY

and December 2021 (BEZTZTEXA

Amendments to IFRS17) KT —-%+=-A

MEETERI RS
ERF175)

Amendments to I1AS 8 Definition of Accounting KBTI 2 R SHENTEE
Estimates F8%
Amendments to 1AS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets B TR @5 4R HE-CFESXHNEE
and Liabilities arising from a F12%% REERHH
Single Transaction ERHIE
Amendments to IAS 12 International Tax Reform=Pillar RIEETER &R BRI NE
Two model Rules £108 - B Y IRERE
Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Disclosure of Accounting Policies KIBETRBR @5 R SHBENEE
Practice Statement 2 F1RRERMBRE

EAEBLEF2IR

Except as described below, the application of the new MTEI AAREERERFZTLREST
and amendments to IFRSs in the current year has had BB R EEAE AN ERRANEE KB
no material impact on the Group’s financial positions FEENITBRIRERIEL 58875
and performance for the current and prior years and/ MERHFEETEEATE

or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated
financial statements.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
IFRS ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (CONTINUED)

New and amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (continued)

Impact on application of Amendments to IAS 12 —
Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising
from a Single Transaction

The Group has applied the amendments for the first
time in the current year. The amendments narrow the
scope of the recognition exemption of deferred tax
liabilities and deferred tax assets in paragraphs 15 and
24 of IAS 12 Income Taxes so that it no longer applies
to transactions that, on initial recognition, give rise to
equal taxable and deductible temporary differences.

In accordance with the transition provision:

(i) the Group has applied the new accounting
policy retrospectively to leasing transactions that
occurred on or after 1 January 2023;

(ii) the Group also, as at 1 January 2023,
recognised a deferred tax asset (to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary
difference can be utilised) and a deferred tax
liability for all deductible and taxable temporary
difference associated with right-of-use-assets
and lease liabilities.

The application of the amendments has had no
material impact on the Group’s financial position and
performance, except that the Group disclosed the
related deferred tax assets of RMB1,696,000 and
deferred tax liabilities of RMB2,143,000 on a gross
basis as at 31 December 2023 in respect of new
leases entered during the year in note 19 but it has no
impact on the retained earnings at the earliest period
presented.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE2—Z =%+ _A=+—HILtFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO 3. FE P37 5] Iz 2R 4& T B R Bt 7% 3R 5 ZE Al

IFRS ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (CONTINUED) ([EIFR B 3R 2 2l D) (@)

New and amendments to IFRSs in issue but not yet B EME N R ERFET R LIS ERR A
effective &R

The Group has not early applied the following new and AEBUWERFEEBATEEMAEMEKE
amendments to IFRSs that have been issued but are not A E] MR E ST BB B fs s 5 22 -

yet effective:

Amendments to IFRS 10 and Sale or Contribution of Assets BEETERE S RE 2D REFREBLE N AT
IAS 28 between an Investor and its F10RRER S BETEZEN

Associate or Joint Venture' 8| F 0857 BEHERTE

Amendments to IFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and BISETBIBREL IR 3R & EXAONTEEa®E
Leaseback? B E 1657

Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as ISR @t BaEIEARE
Current or Non-current? ER|E15E R E?

Amendments to IAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with KETRRe: MERZNIETREE B
Covenants? RRIE1H

Amendments to IAS 7 and IFRS 7 Supplier Finance Arrangements? BB @5 R I RS T HE2

ETRRERNBRE
LERE TR

Amendments to 1AS 21 Lack of Exchangeability® KiETRR et B A AT HA S
AERZE215%

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 PETFHEIS 2 BB EE B
a date to be determined. R o

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 2 R -_MFEF—F—H=kz2&HAB
1 January 2024. B E R AR -

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 3 R-E-_RF— A —H=kz&HRB
1 January 2025. KFEBREAER -

Except for the new and amendments to IFRSs BN Xt BT E] MRS ET BBR B S R &5

mentioned below, the directors of the Company BN RATIEETEEERATE £ E

anticipate that the application of all other new and T RS TR B 7 R 5 X B A ] B 53k

amendments to IFRSs will have no material impact on NS EERREKNEATE -

the consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable

future.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
IFRS ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (CONTINUED)

New and amendments to IFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (continued)

Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities
as Current or Non-current and Amendments to IAS
1 Non-current Liabilities with Covenants (the “2022
Amendments”)

The 2020 Amendments provide clarification and
additional guidance on the assessment of right to defer
settlement for at least twelve months from reporting date
for classification of liabilities as current or non-current,

clarify that if a liability has terms that could,
at the option of the counterparty, result in its
settlement by the transfer of the entity’'s own
equity instruments, these terms do not affect its
classification as current or non-current only if
the entity recognises the option separately as
an equity instrument applying IAS 32 Financial
Instruments: Presentation.

specify that the classification of liabilities as
current or non-current should be based on rights
that are in existence at the end of the reporting
period. Specifically, the amendments clarify
that the classification should not be affected by
management intentions or expectations to settle
the liability within 12 months.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
IFRS ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (CONTINUED)

New and amendments to IFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (continued)

Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities
as Current or Non-current and Amendments to IAS
1 Non-current Liabilities with Covenants (the “2022
Amendments”) (continued)

For rights to defer settlement for at least twelve
months from reporting date which are conditional
on the compliance with covenants, the requirements
introduced by the 2020 Amendments have been
modified by the 2022 Amendments. The 2022
Amendments specify that only covenants with which an
entity is required to comply with on or before the end
of the reporting period affect the entity’s right to defer
settlement of a liability for at least twelve months after
the reporting date. Covenants which are required to
comply with only after the reporting period do not affect
whether that right exists at the end of the reporting
period.

In addition, the 2022 Amendments specify the
disclosure requirements about information that enables
users of financial statements to understand the risk
that the liabilities could become repayable within
twelve months after the reporting period, if an entity
classifies liabilities arising from loan arrangements as
non-current when the entity’s right to defer settlement
of those liabilities is subject to the entity complying
with covenants within twelve months after the reporting
period.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
IFRS ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (CONTINUED)

New and amendments to IFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (continued)

Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities
as Current or Non-current and Amendments to IAS
1 Non-current Liabilities with Covenants (the “2022
Amendments”) (continued)

The 2022 Amendments also defer the effective date
of applying the 2020 Amendments to annual reporting
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024. The 2022
Amendments, together with the 2020 Amendments, are
effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2024, with early application permitted.
If an entity applies the 2020 Amendments for an earlier
period after the issue of the 2022 Amendments, the
entity should also apply the 2022 Amendments for that
period.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of the amendments in the future may affect
the classification of the Group’s liabilities and related
disclosures. However, it is not practicable to provide a
reasonable estimate of the effect of the amendments
until the Group completes a detailed review.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all IFRSs, which collective
term includes all applicable individual IFRS, IAS and
related Interpretations, promulgated by the IASB
and the applicable disclosure requirements of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (“Listing Rules”) and of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis at the end of
each reporting period, as explained in the accounting
policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of
the consideration given in exchange for goods and
services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price is
directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a
liability, the Group takes into account the characteristics
of the asset or liability if market participants would take
those characteristics into account when pricing the
asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such
a basis, except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of IFRS 2 “Share-based
Payment”, leasing transactions that are ac